
�
�

v1�2015�

AGENDA�
�

Meeting� Planning�Committee�

Date� Thursday�22�January�2015�

Time� 10.00�am�

Place� Committee�Room�5,�City�Hall,�The�
Queen's�Walk,�London,�SE1�2AA�

�
Copies�of�the�reports�and�any�attachments�may�be�found�at��
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/planning��
�
Most�meetings�of�the�London�Assembly�and�its�Committees�are�webcast�live�at�
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts�where�you�can�also�view�past�
meetings.�
�
Members�of�the�Committee�
Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair)�
Steve�O'Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�
Tom�Copley�AM�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�
Navin�Shah�AM�

�

A�meeting�of�the�Committee�has�been�called�by�the�Chair�of�the�Committee�to�deal�with�the�business�
listed�below.��

Mark�Roberts,�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�
Wednesday�14�January�2015�

�
Further�Information�
If�you�have�questions,�would�like�further�information�about�the�meeting�or�require�special�facilities�
please�contact:�John�Johnson�Committee�Officer;�Telephone:�020�7983�4926;�E-mail:�
john.johnson@london.gov.uk;�Minicom:�020�7983�4926�
�
For�media�enquiries�please�contact�Ash�Singleton,�External�Relations�Officer;�Telephone:�020�7983�
5769.��If�you�have�any�questions�about�individual�items�please�contact�the�author�whose�details�are�at�
the�end�of�the�report.��
�
This�meeting�will�be�open�to�the�public,�except�for�where�exempt�information�is�being�discussed�as�
noted�on�the�agenda.��A�guide�for�the�press�and�public�on�attending�and�reporting�meetings�of�local�
government�bodies,�including�the�use�of�film,�photography,�social�media�and�other�means�is�available�
at�www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.��
�
There�is�access�for�disabled�people,�and�induction�loops�are�available.��There�is�limited�underground�
parking�for�orange�and�blue�badge�holders,�which�will�be�allocated�on�a�first-come�first-served�basis.��
Please�contact�Facilities�Management�on�020�7983�4750�in�advance�if�you�require�a�parking�space�or�
further�information.�



�

�
Certificate�Number:�FS�80233�

If�you,�or�someone�you�know,�needs�a�copy�of�the�agenda,�minutes�or�reports�
in�large�print�or�Braille,�audio,�or�in�another�language,�then�please�call�us�on�
020�7983�4100�or�email�assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.���
�

�
�



�

3�
�

Agenda�
Planning�Committee�
Thursday�22�January�2015�
�
�

1 Apologies�for�Absence�and�Chair's�Announcements��
�
� To�receive�any�apologies�for�absence�and�any�announcements�from�the�Chair.��

�
�

2 Declarations�of�Interests�(Pages�1�-�4)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:��John�Johnson;�email:�john.johnson@london.gov.uk;�telephone:�020�7983�4926�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

 

(a) Note�the�list�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members,�as�set�out�in�the�table�at�

Agenda�item�2,�as�disclosable�pecuniary�interests;�

�

(b) Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�disclosable�pecuniary�interests�

in�specific�items�listed�on�the�agenda�and�the�necessary�action�taken�by�the�

Member(s)�regarding�withdrawal�following�such�declaration(s);�and�

�

(c) Note�that�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�other�interests�deemed�to�

be�relevant�(including�any�interests�arising�from�gifts�and�hospitality�

received�which�are�not�at�the�time�of�the�meeting�reflected�on�the�

Authority’s�register�of�gifts�and�hospitality,�and�noting�also�the�advice�from�

the�GLA’s�Monitoring�Officer�set�out�at�Agenda�Item�2)�and�any�necessary�

action�taken�by�the�Member(s)�following�such�declaration(s).�
�
�

3 Minutes�(Pages�5�-�60)�
�
� The�Committee�is�recommended�to�confirm�the�minutes�of�the�meeting�of�the�

Planning�Committee�held�on�18�November�2014�to�be�signed�by�the�Chair�as�a�

correct�record.�
�

� The�appendix�to�the�minutes�set�out�on�pages�9�to�60�is�attached�for�Members�and�officers�only�

but�are�available�from�the�following�area�of�the�GLA’s�website:�

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/planning�
�
�
�
�
�



�

4�
�

4 Summary�List�of�Actions�(Pages�61�-�62)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:��John�Johnson;�john.johnson@london.gov.uk;�020�7983�4926� �
�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to�note�the�outstanding�action�arising�from�a�

previous�meeting�of�the�Committee,�as�listed�in�the�report.��
�
�
�

5 Localism�in�London�(Pages�63�-�102)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:��Paul�Watling;�paul.watling@london.gov.uk;�0207�983�4393�

�
The�Committee�is�recommended�to�agree�its�report�Localism�in�London:�What’s�the�
Story?�as�set�out�at�Appendix�1�to�the�report.�
�
�
�

6 Options�for�Accommodating�London's�Growth�(Pages�103�-�106)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:��Paul�Watling;�paul.watling@london.gov.uk;�0207�983�4393�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to�note�the�report�as�background�to�hearing�from,�

and�putting�questions�to,�a�number�of�invited�experts�on�the�issues�to�be�considered�

when�planning�London’s�future�growth.��
�
�
�

7 Planning�Committee�Work�Programme�2014/15�(Pages�107�-�108)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:��Paul�Watling;�paul.watling@london.gov.uk;�0207�983�4393�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a) Note�the�content�of�its�draft�work�programme�for�the�remainder�of�2014/15,�
as�set�out�in�the�report;�and�

�

(b) Delegate�authority�to�the�Chair�and�Deputy�Chair�to�agree�outside�of�the�
meeting�the�details�of�the�main�agenda�item�for�the�meeting�on�18�March�

2015.�
�
�
�
�



�

5�
�

8 Date�of�Next�Meeting��
�
� The�next�meeting�of�the�Committee�is�scheduled�for�18�March�2015�at�2pm�in�Committee�

Room�5,�City�Hall.�
�
�
�

9 Any�Other�Business�the�Chair�Considers�Urgent��
�
�
�



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk
 
 v3/2014�

 

Subject:�Declarations
of
Interests�


Report
to:
 Planning
Committee



Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
22
January
2015�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�details�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�for�noting�as�disclosable�pecuniary�

interests�and�requires�additional�relevant�declarations�relating�to�disclosable�pecuniary�interests,�and�

gifts�and�hospitality�to�be�made.�




2.
 Recommendations
�


2.1 That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
below,
be
noted


as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests1;


2.2 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
disclosable
pecuniary
interests
in
specific

items
listed
on
the
agenda
and
the
necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
regarding


withdrawal
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted;
and


2.3 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
other
interests
deemed
to
be
relevant

(including
any
interests
arising
from
gifts
and
hospitality
received
which
are
not
at
the


time
of
the
meeting
reflected
on
the
Authority’s
register
of
gifts
and
hospitality,
and


noting
also
the
advice
from
the
GLA’s
Monitoring
Officer
set
out
at
below)
and
any

necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted.




3.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�
3.1 Relevant�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�are�listed�in�the�table�overleaf:�

                                                 
1�The�Monitoring�Officer�advises�that: Paragraph�10�of�the�Code�of�Conduct�will�only�preclude�a�Member�from�
participating�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�or�being�considered�at,�for�example,�a�meeting�of�the�Assembly,�
where�the�Member�has�a�direct�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�that�particular�matter.�The�effect�of�this�is�
that�the�‘matter�to�be�considered,�or�being�considered’�must�be�about�the�Member’s�interest.�So,�by�way�of�
example,�if�an�Assembly�Member�is�also�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X,�that�Assembly�Member�will�be�
precluded�from�participating�in�an�Assembly�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�the�
Member’s�role�/�employment�as�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X;�the�Member�will�not�be�precluded�from�
participating�in�a�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�an�activity�or�decision�of�London�
Borough�X. 

�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



        

�
 

Member
 Interest

Tony�Arbour�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions��
Gareth�Bacon�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Bexley�
John�Biggs�AM� �
Andrew�Boff�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Victoria�Borwick�AM� Member,�Royal�Borough�of�Kensington�&�Chelsea;��

Deputy�Mayor�
James�Cleverly�AM� Chairman�of�LFEPA;�Chairman�of�the�London�Local�

Resilience�Forum;�substitute�member,�Local�Government�
Association�Fire�Services�Management�Committee�

Tom�Copley�AM� �
Andrew�Dismore�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Len�Duvall�AM� �
Roger�Evans�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions;�Trust�for�London�(Trustee)�
Nicky�Gavron�AM� �
Darren�Johnson�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Jenny�Jones�AM� Member,�House�of�Lords�
Stephen�Knight�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Kit�Malthouse�AM� Deputy�Mayor�for�Business�and�Enterprise;�Deputy�Chair,�

London�Enterprise�Panel;�Chair,�Hydrogen�London;�
Chairman,�London�&�Partners;�Board�Member,�TheCityUK���

Joanne�McCartney�AM� �
Steve�O’Connell�AM� Member,�LB�Croydon;�MOPAC�Non-Executive�Adviser�for�

Neighbourhoods�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM� �
Murad�Qureshi�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM� �
Navin�Shah�AM� �
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Richard�Tracey�AM� Chairman�of�the�London�Waste�and�Recycling�Board;�

Mayor's�Ambassador�for�River�Transport������
Fiona�Twycross�AM� Member,�LFEPA�

 

[Note:�LB�-�London�Borough;�LFEPA�-�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�Authority;��
MOPAC�–�Mayor’s�Office�for�Policing�and�Crime]�

�
3.2 Paragraph�10�of�the�GLA’s�Code�of�Conduct,�which�reflects�the�relevant�provisions�of�the�Localism�

Act�2011,�provides�that:��
�

- where�an�Assembly�Member�has�a�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�
or�being�considered�or�at��

�

(i)� a�meeting�of�the�Assembly�and�any�of�its�committees�or�sub-committees;�or��
�

(ii)� any�formal�meeting�held�by�the�Mayor�in�connection�with�the�exercise�of�the�Authority’s�
functions��

�

- they�must�disclose�that�interest�to�the�meeting�(or,�if�it�is�a�sensitive�interest,�disclose�the�fact�
that�they�have�a�sensitive�interest�to�the�meeting);�and��

�

Page 2



        

-� must�not�(i)�participate,�or�participate�any�further,�in�any�discussion�of�the�matter�at�the�
meeting;�or�(ii)�participate�in�any�vote,�or�further�vote,�taken�on�the�matter�at�the�meeting�

�

UNLESS�
�

-� they�have�obtained�a�dispensation�from�the�GLA’s�Monitoring�Officer�(in�accordance�with�
section�2�of�the�Procedure�for�registration�and�declarations�of�interests,�gifts�and�hospitality�–�
Appendix�5�to�the�Code).����

�

3.3 Failure�to�comply�with�the�above�requirements,�without�reasonable�excuse,�is�a�criminal�offence;�as�is�

knowingly�or�recklessly�providing�information�about�your�interests�that�is�false�or�misleading.�

3.4 In�addition,�the�Monitoring�Officer�has�advised�Assembly�Members�to�continue�to�apply�the�test�that�
was�previously�applied�to�help�determine�whether�a�pecuniary�/�prejudicial�interest�was�arising�-�

namely,�that�Members�rely�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�whether�a�member�of�the�public,�with�

knowledge�of�the�relevant�facts,�could,�with�justification,�regard�the�matter�as�so�significant�that�it�
would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.��

3.5 Members�should�then�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�in�view�of�their�interests�and�

the�interests�of�others�close�to�them,�they�should�participate�in�any�given�discussions�and/or�
decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�It�remains�the�responsibility�of�individual�Members�to�

make�further�declarations�about�their�actual�or�apparent�interests�at�formal�meetings�noting�also�

that�a�Member’s�failure�to�disclose�relevant�interest(s)�has�become�a�potential�criminal�offence.�

3.6 Members�are�also�required,�where�considering�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�

from�whom�they�have�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25�within�the�

previous�three�years�or�from�the�date�of�election�to�the�London�Assembly,�whichever�is�the�later,�to�
disclose�the�existence�and�nature�of�that�interest�at�any�meeting�of�the�Authority�which�they�attend�

at�which�that�business�is�considered.��

3.7 The�obligation�to�declare�any�gift�or�hospitality�at�a�meeting�is�discharged,�subject�to�the�proviso�set�
out�below,�by�registering�gifts�and�hospitality�received�on�the�Authority’s�on-line�database.�The�on-

line�database�may�be�viewed�here:��

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.��

3.8 If�any�gift�or�hospitality�received�by�a�Member�is�not�set�out�on�the�on-line�database�at�the�time�of�

the�meeting,�and�under�consideration�is�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�from�

whom�a�Member�has�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25,�Members�
are�asked�to�disclose�these�at�the�meeting,�either�at�the�declarations�of�interest�agenda�item�or�when�

the�interest�becomes�apparent.��

3.9 It�is�for�Members�to�decide,�in�light�of�the�particular�circumstances,�whether�their�receipt�of�a�gift�or�
hospitality,�could,�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�a�member�of�the�public�with�knowledge�of�the�

relevant�facts,�with�justification,�be�regarded�as�so�significant�that�it�would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�

Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.�Where�receipt�of�a�gift�or�hospitality�could�be�so�
regarded,�the�Member�must�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�they�should�participate�in�

any�given�discussions�and/or�decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�

�
�

�

4.
 Legal
Implications




4.1 The�legal�implications�are�as�set�out�in�the�body�of�this�report.�

Page 3



        



5.
 Financial
Implications

�
5.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�directly�from�this�report.�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� John�Johnson,�Committee�Officer�
Telephone:� 020�7983�4926�

E-mail:� John.Johnson@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 4



�
�

�
�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk�

MINUTES

�

Meeting:
 Planning
Committee

Date:
 Tuesday
18
November
2014

Time:
 10.00
am

Place:
 Committee
Room
5,
City
Hall,
The


Queen's
Walk,
London,
SE1
2AA

�

Copies�of�the�minutes�may�be�found�at:



http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/planning


�
Present:

�
Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair)�
Steve�O'Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�
Tom�Copley�AM�
Navin�Shah�AM�
�
�
�

1 Apologies
for
Absence
and
Chair's
Announcements
(Item
1)�



1.1�� An�apology�for�absence�was�received�from�Kit�Malthouse�AM,�for�whom�Andrew�Boff�AM�
substituted.�





2 Declarations
of
Interests
(Item
2)�




2.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

2.2� Resolved:





That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
on
the
table
at
Item


2,
be
noted
as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests.











Agenda Item 3

Page 5



Greater
London
Authority

Planning
Committee


Tuesday
18
November
2014


�

�
�

3 Minutes
(Item
3)�



3.1� Resolved:





That
the
minutes
of
the
meetings
of
the
Planning
Committee
held
on
14
October


2014
be
signed
by
the
Chair
as
a
correct
record.


�



4 London
Infrastructure
Plan
2050
-
Consultation
(Item
4)�




4.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

4.2� Resolved:





That
the
Committee’s
response
to
the
Mayor’s
consultation
on
the
London


Infrastructure
Plan
2050,
as
set
out
in
Appendix
1
to
the
report,
be
noted.��
�



5 Planning
Committee
Work
Programme
2014/15
(Item
5)�




5.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

5.2� Resolved:





(a) That
the
Committee’s
work
programme
for
the
remainder
of
2014/15,
as
set


out
in
the
report,
be
agreed;






(b) That
the
main
agenda
item
for
the
next
meeting
on
22
January
2015
will
focus


on
issues
surrounding
the
long-term
options
for
accommodating
future
growth


on
brownfield
land
within
London’s
boundaries,
or
whether
greenfield
sites


should
be
considered
as
a
location
for
future
development.


�



6 The
Mayor's
Strategic
Planning
Decisions
(Item
6)�



6.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�as�background�to�

putting�questions�to�the�following�guests:�
���������

• Sir�Edward�Lister,�Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning;�

• Stewart�Murray,�Assistant�Director,�Planning,�GLA;�

• Colin�Wilson,�Senior�Manager,�Planning�GLA;;�

• Duncan�Bowie,�Senior�Lecturer�in�Planning,�University�of�Westminster;�

• Peter�Eversden,�Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies;�

• Mike�Franks,�Chair,�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association;��
�

Page 6



Greater
London
Authority

Planning
Committee


Tuesday
18
November
2014


�

�
�

• Marcus�Bate,�Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP;�and�

• Councillor�James�Murray,�Executive�Member�for�Housing�and�Development,�LB�of�
Islington.�

�
6.2� A�transcript�of�the�discussion�is�attached�at�Appendix
1.�
�
6.3� During�the�discussion,�the�GLA�Planning�Officers�agreed�to�supply�the�Committee�with�some�

statistics�around�the�number�of�London�planning�applications�which�are,�and�which�are�not,�
determined�within�the�boroughs’�16�week�target.�

�
6.3� Resolved:

�

 That
the
report
and
discussion
with
guests
on
the
Mayor’s
strategic
planning


decisions,
and
the
commitment
outlined
in
paragraph
6.3
above,
be
noted.






7 Date
of
Next
Meeting
(Item
7)�




7.1� The�next�meeting�is�scheduled�for�22�January�2014�at�10am�in�Committee�Room�5,�City�Hall.�
�



8 Any
Other
Business
the
Chair
Considers
Urgent
(Item
8)�




8.1� There�was�no�other�business.�
�



9 Close
of
Meeting�



9.1�����The�meeting�ended�at�12.10pm.�
�



�
� � � �
Chair�� � Date�
�
Contact
Officer:
 John�Johnson�Committee�Officer;�Telephone:�020�7983�4926;�E-mail:�

john.johnson@london.gov.uk;�Minicom:�020�7983�4926�
�
�
�

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix�1�

�

Planning�Committee�

�

18�November�2014�

�

Agenda�Item�6:�The�Mayor’s�Strategic�Planning�Decisions�

�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Good�Morning.��We�are�going�to�have�an�introduction,�are�we�

not?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��A�brief�one,�

yes.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��A�brief�introduction�from�the�Greater�London�Authority�(GLA).��

Introduce�yourself�first�please.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��I�am�

Stewart�Murray,�the�Assistant�Director�of�Planning�based�in�the�Development,�Enterprise�and�

Environment�Directorate�for�the�GLA,�accompanied�by�my�deputy.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��I�am�

Colin�Wilson,�the�Senior�Manager�of�Development�and�Projects.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��As�you�

know,�we�head�up�the�Planning�Unit,�which�includes�both�Colin’s�area�on�the�development�and�

projects�area�decisions�and�the�planning�applications,�which�is�the�item�this�morning,�and�also�

the�London�Plan�strategy�and�policy�side�and�the�monitoring�of�development.��We�cover�the�full�

scope�of�strategic�planning.��Would�you�like�me�to�go�into�a�summary�of�the�strategic�decisions�

and�call-ins?�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��It�would�be�helpful.��It�would�set�the�context�for�everyone.��Thank�

you.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��Thank�you,�

Chair.��The�paper�sets�out�the�context�in�terms�of�the�legislation.��Some�of�us,�as�you�will�know,�

Chair,�were�here�in�the�early�days�when�the�GLA�Act�1999�and�the�Mayor�of�London�Order�2000�

set�up�the�powers�and�the�referable�strategic�planning�applications�that�would�come�to�the�

Mayor.��There�are�thresholds�set�out�summarised�on�page�96�in�Appendix�1�of�those�categories�

of�potential�strategic�[importance]�applications�or�what�we�call�PSIs.��In�2000,�the�Mayor�only�

had�powers�to�influence�and�be�consulted�upon�or�to�direct�refusal�to�a�borough�of�strategic�

applications�and�at�that�time�there�were�approximately�300�to�400�referrals�a�year,�although�it�

took�some�time�to�build�up�to�that.�

Page 9



 

�

Subsequent�to�that�situation,�the�Government�reviewed�legislation�and�considered�under�the�

former�Mayor�the�possibility�of�introducing�positive�planning�powers.��There�was�quite�extensive�

debate�in�Parliament�and�with�London�councils�and�obviously�the�Mayor�at�that�time�–�in�about�

2006�and�2007�-�to�introduce�positive�powers�where�the�Mayor�could�directly�take�over�a�

strategic�application�and�become�the�planning�authority.��However,�in�that�debate�and�in�the�

final�decision�to�introduce�positive�powers,�which�came�into�effect�in�2008,�there�were�a�number�

of�stringent�tests�on�what�the�Mayor�could�determine�and�what�he�had�to�fulfil�in�terms�of�

taking�over�an�application�for�his�own�consideration.��Those�are�set�out�in�your�paper,�including�

areas�such�as�cross-borough�development�where�they�need�to�meet�the�implementation�of�the�

London�Plan�and�the�proper�planning�for�London.��Those�tests�are�legally�binding�on�any�Mayor.��

The�current�Mayor�-�elected�in�2008�-�was�the�first�Mayor�to�have�those�positive�powers.�

�

Subsequently,�for�the�intervention,�the�number�of�applications�where�that�has�taken�place�to�

date�has�been�11.��Colin�[Wilson]�will�confirm�how�many�applications�are�referred�to�the�GLA�

annually�and�during�the�period�since�those�positive�powers�were�implemented�in�2008,�but�that�

represents�less�than�1%�of�all�applications,�if�one�does�the�maths.��Obviously,�the�approach�is�to�

be�highly�selective�and�to�intervene�only�when�it�is�felt�that�the�strategic�objectives�of�the�

Mayor’s�London�Plan�and�his�wider�objectives�need�to�be�implemented�or�are�not�being�

implemented�and,�particularly�in�terms�of�the�London�Plan’s�thrust�of�growth,�housing�need,�

jobs�and�development,�to�use�that�power�very�lightly.��In�the�paper,�you�can�see�how�many�

interventions�there�are.�

�

Our�approach�as�officers�in�advising�the�Mayor�is�that�at�all�times�it�is�better�for�the�borough�to�

first�take�the�decision�and�for�the�Mayor�to�operate�under�the�normal�strategic�referral�process,�

which�is�for�99.2%�of�all�applications�that�are�referred�to�the�Mayor�and�dealt�with�at�stage�one�

in�consultation�and�stage�two�-�whether�to�support�change�or�direct�refusal.��It�is�only�at�stage�

three�where�those�applications�are�taken�over�and�are�determined�by�the�Mayor.��The�officers�

advice�is�to�use�that�power�very,�very�lightly�and�only�in�exceptional�circumstances.�

�

The�interest�has�been�that�the�number�of�applications�taken�over�in�the�last�two�years�has�been�

similar�to�the�number�that�had�been�taken�over�in�the�past�four�or�five�years.��One�needs�to�look�

at�that�in�context.��Firstly,�in�the�previous�five�years�we�were�in�a�deep�recession�and�many�sites�

were�stalled.��The�Mayor�and�the�GLA�have�been�working�with�the�London�boroughs,�

developers�and�landowners�to�try�to�get�development�going.��This�has�now�started�to�really�

move�with�a�number�of�strategic�developments.��The�London�Plan�has�been�revised�in�2011�and�

then�we�had�the�affordable�housing�revised�with�only�minor�alterations�last�year.��We�have�just�

gone�through�an�examination�in�public�on�the�Further�Alterations�to�the�London�Plan�with�a�

very�significant�increase�in�London’s�housing�targets�across�all�boroughs�with�approximately�a�

one-third�to�50%�increase�in�the�housing�targets�and,�also,�London�pulling�out�of�recession�and�

the�need�to�improve�prospects�for�the�economy�and�to�support�development,�create�jobs�and�

support�London�to�maintain�its�position�as�an�economic�hub�for�the�country�and�those�parts�of�

London�that�are�the�lifeline�of�local�economic�communities.��The�Mayor�when�looking�at�his�

interventions�is�looking�at�his�housing�targets,�his�jobs�targets�and�also�where�development�is�

being�brought�forward�or�being�frustrated.�

�

Page 10



 

The�other�issue�that�is�very�important�to�set�out�is�that�the�GLA�works�very�closely�with�the�

boroughs�at�all�stages�and�the�boroughs�have�their�own�planning�committees�and�their�own�

local�democratic�processes.��There�is�a�two-stage�system�where�the�boroughs�take�the�decision�

first�and�the�Mayor�goes�second.��It�is�only�when�schemes�are�frustrated�or�stalled�or�there�is�a�

breakdown�in�communication�between�boroughs,�developers�and�landowners�that�the�Mayor�

may�be�asked�to�intervene.�

�

One�would�also�need�to�compare�that�to�the�role�of�the�Secretary�of�State,�who�also�has�call-in�

and�intervention�powers�and�can�exercise�that�on�any�application�at�any�time,�whereas�the�

Mayor’s�call-in�powers�are�very�tightly�controlled�by�the�three�tests�set�out�in�the�legislation�of�

2007�and�the�order�of�2008.�

�

Colin�will�just�quickly�refer�to�the�applications�that�we�have�taken�over.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes.��

As�Stewart�[Murray]�said,�as�at�about�2008�we�had�taken�about�220�applications�that�were�

being�referred�to�the�Mayor.��That�was�just�before�the�recession.��They�dropped�down�to�180�

and�then�170�in�2010/11,�following�that�path�of�the�recession.��However,�then�the�referrals�

have�been�climbing�back�up�again.��In�2013,�for�instance,�we�were�back�to�212,�which�is�broadly�

similar�to�what�we�had�in�2008.��This�year�-�2014�-�we�are�probably�on�our�way�to�280�or�300�

referrals,�which�will�be�the�most�we�have�ever�had.��That�is�reflected�also�in�the�pre-application�

service�that�we�run.��We�will�probably�get�more�pre-applications�this�year�than�we�have�ever�had�

at�the�GLA�throughout�its�existence.�

�

As�Stewart�said,�it�is�against�a�context�of�there�being�more�developments�in�London�and�more�

referrals.��On�that�basis,�whilst�the�Mayor�has�taken�over�more�schemes�in�the�last�two�years,�the�

numbers�absolutely�are�still�quite�low.��It�is�three�in�each�year�and�prior�to�that�it�was�even�one�

or�two�applications�in�each�year.��Therefore,�as�it�was�intended�when�it�was�set�up�in�the�

legislation,�it�is�an�exceptional�power�that�we�use�fairly�rarely�and�only�when�we�absolutely�have�

to�and�only�when�it�is�an�absolutely�strategic�purpose,�a�purpose�which�I�suppose�you�could�say�

is�local�to�London,�rather�than�local�to�the�local�authority.��When�the�Mayor�does�hold�a�

representation�hearing�or�stage�three,�which�has�been�set�out�in�the�paper,�and�he�resolves�to�

approve�a�strategic�application,�it�is�always�the�approach�of�the�GLA�to�involve�the�boroughs�

and�the�developers�in�the�section�106�planning�obligations�negotiations�from�the�very�start�right�

through�to�the�signing�with�the�joint�signatories�or�the�boroughs�if�they�wish�to�sign�that�and�be�

party�to�securing�maximum�community�benefits�for�their�local�communities.��That�includes�

housing�and�affordable�housing.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you.��There�is�a�lot�there�that�we�can�pick�up�on�during�the�

rest�of�this�session.��It�would�be�very�helpful�if�each�of�our�guests�could�just�introduce�

themselves�and�then�we�will�crack�on�with�the�questioning.��Thank�you.�

�

Marcus�Bate�(Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP):��Good�morning.��My�name�is�

Marcus�Bate.��I�am�a�planning�lawyer�from�Pinsent�Masons,�which�is�the�largest�firm�of�planning�

lawyers�in�the�country.��I�am�here�today�because�we�represent�around�half�a�dozen�key�London�

boroughs�on�strategic�planning�applications�and�also�a�significant�number�of�private�sector�

Page 11



 

commercial�or�residential�developers�and�foreign�investors�increasingly�asking�about�the�Mayor’s�

planning�powers.�

�

Mike�Franks�(Chair,�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association):��Good�morning.��My�name�is�

Mike�Franks.��I�am�the�Chairman�of�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association.��I�think�that�is�all.��I�am�an�

architect�planner,�if�it�helps,�or�does�not.�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��My�name�is�

Peter�Eversden�and�I�am�Chairman�of�the�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies,�which�

represents�180�community�groups�and�associates�across�the�capital�and�was�established�by�the�

Civic�Trust�25�years�ago�as�a�charity.�

�

Duncan�Bowie�(Senior�Lecturer�in�Planning,�University�of�Westminster):��I�am�

Duncan�Bowie.��I�am�a�Senior�Lecturer�in�Planning�at�the�University�of�Westminster.��I�undertook�

a�research�report�for�this�Committee�about�two�years�ago�on�the�Mayor’s�planning�decisions�in�

the�2008�to�2011�period�and�I�also�in�2010�published�a�very�detailed�study�of�planning�and�

housing�in�London�with�the�previous�regime.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you�for�that.��We�are�expecting�-�and�he�has�given�

apologies�for�being�late�-�Councillor�Murray�from�Islington,�but�we�can�start�straight�away.��If�I�

can�just�open�with�the�first�question�to�our�GLA�representatives,�could�you�just�tell�us�why�you�

think�the�Mayor�really�needs�call-in�powers?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��Firstly,�that�

was�a�big�issue�for�debate,�as�I�said�earlier,�when�drawing�up�the�positive�planning�powers�of�

call-in�intervention�back�in�2006�to�2008.��That�was�in�a�situation�where�it�was�rather�strange�

that�the�Mayor�had�powers�of�direction�to�instruct�a�borough�to�refuse,�a�negative�power�which�

is�to�some�extent�a�powerful�measure�but�is�not�necessarily�going�to�deliver�the�outcome�of�

getting�development�going�or�delivering�housing�and�affordable�housing.�

�

There�were�a�number�of�cases�in�the�period�from�2000�to�2008�such�as�cross-borough�

developments�where�two�boroughs�were�taking�different�local�decisions�on�the�same�

development.��The�classic�one�that�is�often�referred�to�is�the�Lots�Road�Power�Station�site,�

which�falls�within�the�London�Borough�of�Hammersmith�&�Fulham�and�the�Royal�Borough�of�

Kensington�&�Chelsea,�where�at�the�time�the�two�boroughs�were�taking�different�decisions�on�a�

very�strategic�development.��That�development�was,�some�may�say,�delayed�significantly�

because�of�those�odd�decisions.��Those�are�some�of�the�reasons.�

�

The�other�reason�is,�as�Colin�[Wilson]�described,�the�Mayor’s�need�to�implement�the�London�

Plan�targets�with�a�growing�population�and�growing�targets�for�the�boroughs,�on�developers�

and�for�London�as�a�whole,�particularly�on�housing�but�also�on�commercial�and�employment�

areas.��The�Mayor�needs�to�be�seen�to�have�an�effective�implementation�plan�and�part�of�that�

should�be�the�toolkit�of�powers�to�intervene�when�that�is�not�being�implemented�locally�but�

only�for�those�developments�which�are�very�strategic.�

�

Page 12



 

A�good�example�is�the�Mayor’s�decision�to�take�over�the�Convoys�Wharf�development,�which�is�

in�a�London�Plan�strategic�opportunity�area�on�the�riverside,�identified�for�thousands�of�homes�

and�jobs.��I�recall�being�on�a�site�visit�there�in�2000�and�it�was�a�semi-derelict�site�or�partly�

occupied.��Twelve�years�later,�it�was�still�a�derelict�site�and�completely�unoccupied�and,�as�well�

as�a�recession,�it�had�gone�through�a�planning�process�with�no�outcome�and�no�development.��

There�is�a�case�where�the�Mayor�needs�to�be�seen�to�implement�his�London�Plan�objectives�

where�it�has�not�been�possible�at�the�local�borough�level.��However,�in�that�particular�case�and�

in�all�other�cases,�his�intervention�is�in�collaboration�with�the�borough�at�the�point�of�

intervention,�even�if�the�borough�may�object�to�that�intervention.�

�

The�other�issue�is�that�often�developers�get�frustrated�by�the�negotiations�and�some�of�the�local�

requirements�that�go�backwards�and�forwards�between�the�borough�and�developer�on�major�

schemes�which�are�strategically�important�for�the�London�Plan.��The�Mayor�can�intervene�only�

after�the�borough�has�taken�a�decision�or�not�before�a�major�application�has�passed�a�certain�

timescale,�which�in�the�case�of�major�applications�is�either�13�weeks�or�16�weeks�for�an�

environmental�impact�assessment�(EIA)�development,�which�is�most�of�the�schemes,�actually.��

The�Mayor�has�to�wait�for�at�least�16�weeks�before�a�developer�can�request�that�he�take�that�

over.��Often,�most�of�the�schemes�the�Mayor�has�taken�over�before�the�borough�has�taken�a�

decision�have�taken�far�longer�than�16�weeks,�which�is�the�Government’s�statutory�target�

decision�date.��That�creates�uncertainty�in�the�development�industry�and�for�investors�when�

London�needs�development�needs�to�be�brought�forward.��Also,�it�dissuades�other�investors�

where�planning�has�been�frustrated,�maybe�for�issues�that�are�less�than�strategic,�and�there�is�

less�attention�to�the�strategic�targets.��Again,�the�Mayor�uses�those�powers�only�very�lightly�and�

the�legislation�sets�out�clearly�why�he�should�intervene�and�should�not�intervene,�the�London�

Plan�being�the�key�implementation�objective�to�deliver�that.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Yes.��Can�I�just�follow�up�with�one�thing�there?��You�mentioned�

Convoys�Wharf.��Then�I�will�bring�you�in,�Andrew�[Boff�AM].��On�Convoys�Wharf,�you�cited�

delay�by�the�borough�in�coming�to�a�decision.��Is�that�right?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��One�of�the�

reasons�was�that�negotiations�with�the�key�developer/landowner�had�been�going�on�not�just�for�

weeks�or�months�but�for�years.��That�situation�had�broken�down�and�there�was�not�any�

reasonable�prospect�that�the�borough�and�the�developer�were�going�to�reach�agreement�and�

ultimately�take�a�decision�on�the�development.��In�fact,�interestingly,�that�development�already�

had�a�resolution�to�grant�with�an�unsigned�section�106�from�(overspeaking)�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Can�I�just�ask?��Was�there�a�stage�one?�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes,�there�

was.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��There�was�a�stage�one�and�you�were�awaiting�stage�two?�

�

Page 13



 

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes,�we�

did�stage�one�because�we�have�to�do�the�stage�one�within�six�weeks�of�the�application�being�

validated.��We�had�completed�a�stage�one�report�and�then�we�were�in�discussion�with�the�

borough�and�also�Hutchison�Whampoa�about�progress�on�resolving�the�issues�the�borough�had�

with�the�application.��Of�course,�stage�two�is�only�triggered�by�the�borough�going�to�a�

committee�to�take�a�decision.��The�borough�did�not�get�to�a�position�where�it�had�a�committee�

date�fixed�because�it�could�not�resolve�the�disagreements�it�had�with�the�developer.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Did�the�developer�come�to�you,�saying,�“Call�this�in”?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��The�

developer�formally�wrote�under�the�provisions�in�the�legislation�or�regulations�requesting�that�

the�Mayor�take�over�the�application,�to�which�we�have�to�by�law�respond�within�14�days,�I�

believe,�the�same�as�in�stage�two.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Just�let�me�understand�this.��If�an�applicant�writes�to�you,�you�

have�to�call�it�in�or�you�--�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��No,�we�have�

to�report�to�the�Mayor�similar�to�a�stage�two�decision�and�we�have�only�14�days�to�do�so.��The�

Mayor�can�decide�to�reject�the�request,�which�he�has�in�one�case�from�another�borough�that�is�

not�identified�in�the�paper.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Which�one�was�that?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��This�was�a�

development�in�the�London�Borough�of�Redbridge�for�a�strategic�development�in�the�green�belt�

at�Five�Oaks�Lane,�which�--�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��What�you�are�saying�is�that�if�an�applicant�asks�the�Mayor�to�call�it�

in,�except�in�one�case,�you�have�said,�“Yes,�we�will�call�it�in”.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��In�two�cases.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��All�right.��The�reason�you�were�citing�Convoys�Wharf�was�lack�of�

resolution�and�delay,�but�it�did�take�you�five�months�then,�did�it�not,�to�get�to�the�actual�--�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��To�get�to�

stage�three�of�the�hearing.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��The�hearing?�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes,�it�

did,�but�all�of�the�things�we�were�doing�in�that�period�were�trying�to�resolve�the�differences�

between�the�developer�and�Lewisham�and�also�resolve�some�issues�with�Transport�for�London�

(TfL)�as�well.��Having�become�the�planning�authority,�we�then�engaged�-�as�Lewisham�would�be�

Page 14



 

and�we�were�engaged�with�Lewisham�in�this�process�-�in�trying�to�resolve�differences�of�opinion�

about�the�scale�of�development,�the�amount�of�affordable�housing�and�the�provisions�made�for�

other�community�groups.��When�we�take�over�a�scheme,�it�is�not�a�case�of�taking�it�over�and�

then�just�rubber-stamping�it�through�a�decision�process.��We�take�it�over�as�the�local�planning�

authority�and,�like�a�local�planning�authority,�we�are�then�engaged�in�further�debate�and�

discussion�with�the�developer�to�get�a�closer�fit�with�both�the�borough�plan�and�also�the�

London�Plan.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��You�may�then�become�more�sympathetic�about�the�reasons�why�

some�of�these�very,�very�complex�cases�take�quite�a�while�because�of�all�the�different�interests�

that�have�to�be�resolved.���

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��We�always�

advise�developers,�Chair,�actually,�that�if�they�resolve�their�differences�and�negotiate�

appropriately�with�the�borough,�it�is�the�fastest�route�to�determine�the�application�in�the�normal�

manner.��It�is�when�those�processes�and�negotiations�break�down�or�there�is�a�standoff�between�

the�borough�and�the�developer�on�very�major�strategic�developments�that�the�Mayor�may�be�

seen�as�the�only�way�to�deliver�the�outcome.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Do�you�think�it�was�the�case�in�Convoys�Wharf�that�there�was�a�

stand-off?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes.��On�

Convoys�Wharf,�the�borough�and�the�developer�were�not�seeing�eye-to-eye�whatsoever.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��That�was�purely�on�section�106,�you�said,�was�it�not?��The�borough,�from�

what�I�heard,�was�minded�to�grant�subject�to�section�106�--�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��To�start�off�

with,�yes.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��--�and�therefore�the�stand-off�was�to�do�with�section�106,�was�it�not?�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��No,�

there�were�still�outstanding�disagreements�about�levels�of�affordability�and�also�about�design�

and�about�height,�mass�and�bulk.��It�was�not�as�simple�as�saying�that�the�borough�was�content�

with�the�entire�package�except�for�section�106�levels.��There�were�ongoing�negotiations�that�

were�part�of�that�five-month�period�about�design,�about�layout,�about�space�and�about�

heritage.��There�were�all�sorts�of�things�that�were�not�resolved.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��It�is�just�a�simple�technical�question,�really.��You�were�going�on,�Mr�Murray,�

about�how�it�is�important�that�applications�should�be�determined�within�16�weeks.��How�many�

potentially�strategic�applications�are�determined�within�16�weeks?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��In�terms�of�

the�Mayor’s�decisions,�the�Mayor�has�only�6�weeks�to�give�his�stage�one�and�14�days�to�give�his�

Page 15



 

stage�two,�which�often�falls�within�the�16�weeks�in�which�the�borough�is�seeking�to�meet�its�

own�local�targets.��Sixteen�weeks�is�the�borough’s�target.��The�Mayor�has�to�fit�within�that.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Yes,�but�you�were�saying�that�one�of�the�reasons�for�calling�in�an�

application,�as�I�understood�what�you�said,�is�to�ensure�that�the�reputation�of�planning�in�

London�is�not�damaged�and�that�developers�can�be�confident�that�their�applications�are�going�

to�be�determined�within�16�weeks.��I�am�interested�to�know�how�many�are�determined�within�16�

weeks.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��It�varies�per�

borough.��We�could�probably�provide�you�with�the�London�figure.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��If�you�could,�that�would�be�great.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��I�know�it�is�

not�as�high�as�the�average�for�the�rest�of�the�country,�probably�because�of�the�complexities�of�

London�and�having�a�two-tier�system�might�be�part�of�that.��However,�generally�boroughs�are�

incentivised�to�try�to�achieve�it.��The�target�used�to�be�about�65%�of�those�applications�within�

16�weeks.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��For�strategic�importance?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��Of�strategic�

importance�are�the�300�or�400.��We�can�provide�you�with�those�figures.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Yes,�please.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��Of�course,�

many�of�them�do�take�longer�because�they�are�---�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��This�is�what�I�am�trying�to�get�to�the�point�of.��If�they�are�going�to�take�

longer�because�they�are�of�strategic�importance,�using�that�as�a�reason�for�determining�them�

does�not�seem�to�be�a�very�effective�one�if�they�are�going�to�take�longer�than�16�weeks�anyway�

because�they�are�so�complex.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��That�is�the�point�I�was�making.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��It�is�who�

goes�first�and�it�is�the�certainty�of�getting�a�target�for�a�decision.��On�the�one�that�I�referred�to�

earlier,�Convoys�Wharf,�there�was�no�degree�of�certainty�that�the�borough�was�going�to�take�a�

decision�in�the�foreseeable�future.��In�fact,�we�had�evidence�to�show�that�the�borough�actually�

deferred�taking�the�decision�-�it�was�in�2013�in�September�-�and�it�was�not�prepared�to�take�a�

decision�until�February,�which�was�well�beyond�the�16�weeks.��Also,�there�was�no�degree�of�

certainty�that�the�developer�was�going�to�get�anything�other�than�a�refusal�after�a�sustained�

further�delay.��It�is�the�certainty�issue�rather�than�the�very�specific�16�weeks�or�13�weeks.��It�is�

about�when�the�borough�is�going�to�take�a�decision�and�whether�it�is�providing�certainty�to�the�

Page 16



 

developers,�who�are�entitled�to�know�when�their�application�is�going�to�be�brought�forward�for�

a�decision.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Steve,�you�wanted�to�come�in,�and�then�Peter�[Eversden].�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Yes,�just�briefly�on�the�back�of�that�before�Peter,�I�

understand�that�there�is�a�distinction�between�applications�where�there�is�a�breakdown,�in�

essence,�in�relations�between�the�applicant�and�the�borough�and�a�determination�is�unlikely�and�

overdue,�as�opposed�to�sites�where�the�market�has�changed.��At�3.00pm�today�there�is�a�

ground-breaking�ceremony�at�Ruskin�Square,�which�has�been�desperate�for�12�or�15�years�and�

the�Mayor�has�not�taken�it�in,�but�that�was�partly�because�the�market�has�moved,�et�cetera.�

�

The�point�I�wanted�to�just�come�back�on�was�your�point�about�the�fact�that�there�have�been�

only�two�applications�where�there�has�been�an�approach�by�the�developer�and�the�Mayor�has�

said�no.��One�of�them�was�greenbelt�and�pretty�obvious.��That�suggests�that�for�the�rest�of�the�

approaches,�the�Mayor�has�quite�happily�accepted�the�applicants’�overtures.��That�might�worry�

people�to�a�degree�in�that�there�is�almost�an�assumption�or�a�default�position�for�the�Mayor�that�

if�an�applicant�approaches,�he�will�take�it�over.��I�would�have�thought�there�might�have�been�

more�of�a�balance.��I�thought�we�might�have�seen�more�approaches�where�the�Mayor�said,�“No,�

it�does�not�fit�the�three-point�criteria”,�or,�“Go�away,�Mr�Applicant.��Your�reasons�are�weak.��Go�

back�and�work�with�the�borough�because�we�like�the�boroughs�to�determine�applications”.��I�

was�quite�surprised�you�said�it�was�only�two.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��There�were�

only�two�development�proposals�which�the�Mayor,�at�a�formal�request�from�the�developer,�has�

intervened,�although�it�is�actually�three�because�one�of�them�was�on�the�same�site.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��I�must�have�missed�it.��Sorry,�did�I�mishear?��I�thought�

I�heard�that�there�have�been�11�or�12�or�whatever�applications�where�the�developer�has�come�

forward�and�the�Mayor�has�taken�over�the�application.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��No.��Of�the�

11,�the�vast�majority�of�those�are�where�the�borough�has�determined�the�application�formally�

and�in�most�cases�it�has�been�a�recommendation�for�refusal,�subject�to�the�Mayor’s�direction.��It�

is�actually�three�applications�because�Mount�Pleasant�was�two�applications�on�the�same�site�in�

two�different�boroughs�and�there�is�Convoys�Wharf.��There�are�those�applications�only�where�

the�Mayor’s�intervention�at�the�request�of�the�applicant�to�take�over�was�before�the�local�

planning�authority�had�gone�to�its�planning�committee�for�a�determination.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Are�there�many�situations�where�the�applicant�has�

requested�the�Mayor�to�take�over�the�determination�and�where�the�Mayor�has�said�no?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��There�was�

the�one�I�have�just�referred�to�in�Redbridge,�but�Colin�[Wilson]�gets�a�lot�of�others�that�do�not�

see�the�light�of�day.��There�are�others�that�do�not�formally�come�in.�

�

Page 17



 

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��That�is�my�question.��On�the�face�of�it,�we�are�hearing�

-�and�Colin�is�probably�right�-�that�in�essence�the�applicants�come�along�and�it�is�very�rare�for�

your�office�to�say,�“No,�we�will�not�take�this�on”.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��That�is�what�I�heard,�too.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��It�does�not�shine�out�from�my�briefing�how�many�you�

have�turned�away,�Colin.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes.��

As�Stewart�has�set�out,�there�are�two�mechanisms�for�the�Mayor�taking�over.��One�is�where�the�

borough�has�gone�to�committee�and�then�it�has�to�be�referred�back�to�the�Mayor.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Stage�two,�yes.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Then�

the�Mayor�can�take�a�view�and�we�can�advise�the�Mayor�on�whether�or�not�to�call�that�in.��That�

is�not�a�formal�request.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��No,�I�get�that.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Then�

there�is�a�formal�request�process�where�they�write�in�and�that�has�tended�to�be�used�

infrequently.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��The�question�is�-�how�many?�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Getting�

on�to�the�question�of�how�many�people�and�whether�that�absolutely�reflects�the�approaches�

that�we�have�had�to�call�in�applications�-�because�we�get�informal�inquiries�from�developers�

before�committee�or�after�committee�-�they�will�approach�me�or�they�will�approach�Stewart�

[Murray]�and�will�say,�“Look,�we�would�like�this�and�we�think�the�Mayor�should�take�this�over�--�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��“We�think�we�are�not�getting�the�answer�we�want.��

Would�you�kindly�take�it�over?”�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes.��In�

quite�a�lot�of�those�instances,�although�it�is�not�formally�recorded�because�it�does�not�come�in�

an�email�or�a�letter,�quite�often�either�Stewart�[Murray]�or�I�will�say,�“No.��For�the�following�

reasons,�we�do�not�think�we�would�as�officers�recommend�to�the�Mayor�that�we�would�do�that”.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��How�many�formal�ones?�

�

Page 18



 

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��The�formal�

ones�you�have.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Two?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes.��There�

were�actually�three�applications�because�one�was�one�site�with�two�boroughs.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��How�many�have�you�turned�down?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��One�

formally.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Just�one�formally?��Of�the�formal�applications,�of�the�three�or�four�that�you�

have�received�--�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��Of�four,�

three�we�have�taken�over�on�the�two�sites�and�one�has�been�rejected.��What�Colin�[Wilson]�was�

also�saying�-�but�we�do�not�have�the�numbers�-�was�that�we�get�quite�a�few�informal�requests�

and�they�do�not�get�further�because�we�say�it�does�not�meet�the�test�or�is�not�appropriate.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��I�bet�you�do,�yes.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��I�just�want�to�welcome�Sir�Edward�Lister�who�has�joined�us�and�to�

bring�in�Peter�Eversden�and�Mike�Franks�who�wanted�to�come�in.��This�is�on�why�the�Mayor�

needs�a�call-in,�yes?�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��On�what�Stewart�

[Murray]�said,�I�thought�it�was�interesting�that�when�talking�about�the�time�when�the�Mayor�

had�only�negative�powers,�Stewart�referred�to�the�Lots�Road�development.��That�was�one�which�

left�the�communities�and�the�boroughs�in�little�doubt�as�to�how�the�Mayor�would�act�in�future�

because�on�that�occasion,�although�he�had�no�powers�at�that�time�to�direct�approval,�the�Mayor�

acted�on�behalf�of�the�developer�at�an�appeal�public�inquiry.��It�resulted�in�Colin�[Wilson]�sitting�

on�the�opposite�side�of�the�triangle�to�me�as�I�supported�eight�community,�voluntary�and�

waterways�groups�and�Colin�was�opposing�me�and�the�London�Borough�of�Hammersmith�and�

Fulham.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��

Probably�Kensington�and�Chelsea�and�Hammersmith�and�Fulham�by�the�--�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��Yes,�

Hammersmith�and�Fulham.��The�application�was�approved�and�people�said,�“Is�this�what�the�

Mayor�is�going�to�do�in�future�or�is�any�Mayor�going�to�do�that?”��It�is�still�thought�by�many�

people�that�that�development�will�harm�the�Arcadian�Thames�landscape�views.��That�left�

hanging�in�the�air�-�quite�apart�from�in�2008�when�the�Mayor�could�actually�have�greater�

powers�-�how�the�Mayor�would�act�in�appeal�inquiries.�

Page 19



 

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes.��In�

that�particular�case�of�Lots�Road,�obviously�we�had�made�a�report�to�Ken�Livingstone,�then�

Mayor,�and�to�Nicky�[Gavron�AM,�former�Deputy�Mayor�of�London]�and�they�had�agreed�that�

we�would�appear�at�that�inquiry�in�support�of�Hammersmith�and�Fulham.��In�that�instance,�the�

Royal�Borough�of�Kensington�and�Chelsea�had�refused�the�scheme�on�one�ground�alone,�which�

was�the�height�of�the�building�on�their�site.��Hammersmith�and�Fulham�had�an�even�taller�

building�opposite�that�they�approved�and�they�were�very�happy�with�the�affordable�housing�

provision.��We�were�happy�with�that�and�also�with�the�design.��We�went�to�an�inquiry�to�support�

the�borough,�but�it�was�a�very�long�process�and�a�very�expensive�process�and�a�very�drawn-out�

process.�

�

Lots�Road,�as�Stewart�[Murray]�has�mentioned,�is�one�of�the�examples�we�gave�to�the�

Department�for�Communities�and�Local�Government�(DCLG)�as�an�example�of�how�the�Mayor�

having�a�positive�power�could�speed�up�a�process�and�could�also�give�the�decision-making�to�an�

elected�individual�rather�than�to�the�inspectorate�or�to�the�Secretary�of�State,�also�an�elected�

individual�but�not�elected�necessarily�in�London.�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��You�can�

understand�how�it�would�appear�that�you�were�acting�on�behalf�of�the�developer.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��No.��In�

part,�yes,�but�also�on�behalf�of�one�of�the�boroughs�involved,�Hammersmith�and�Fulham,�which�

supported�the�scheme.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Mike,�do�you�want�to�come�in?�

�

Mike�Franks�(Chair,�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association):��Yes.��The�story�of�how�Mount�

Pleasant,�which�is�sitting�in�Camden�and�Islington,�ended�up�with�the�Mayor,�has�a�reasonably�

transparent�plot�behind�it�-�and�by�‘plot’�I�do�not�mean�sinister�or�anything�like�that�-�because�

the�developer,�prior�to�making�the�approach�to�the�GLA,�reduced�the�affordable�housing�offer�

down�to�12%.��He�was�offering�20%.��The�end�product�was�24%.��The�issue�about�whether�they�

were�affordable�is�extra�to�that.��However,�the�strategy�that�the�developer’s�agents,�DP9,�the�

specialists�in�getting�planning�permission,�put�forward�seemed�to�me�to�be�reasonably�

transparent.�

�

I�would�have�thought�that�the�GLA�officers�would�have�seen�what�that�was�about:�the�

attenuated�period�in�which�the�boroughs�were�trying�to�get�the�Royal�Mail�Group�(RMG)�to�

answer�a�number�of�questions�to�effectively�open�the�relevant�books�and�to�understand�the�

profitability�of�the�scheme.��The�complaint�was�that�it�was�reduced�over�the�two-year�period.��It�

was�reduced�in�the�last�three�months�quite�significantly�or�maybe�six�months.��It�became�

obvious�that�the�boroughs�were�dissatisfied�and�two�or�three�weeks�later,�after�Boris�[Johnson],�

the�Mayor,�called�it�in,�they�refused�the�permissions.��Both�of�them�took�the�position�to�

committee�and�refused�it.�

�

Page 20



 

I�worry�that�the�process�is�very�easily�capable�of�being�manipulated�by�skilful�developers’�

agents.��I�see�the�particular�one�here�that�affects�us�in�Mount�Pleasant�as�pretty�transparent.��

The�dialogue�between�the�boroughs�and�the�GLA�could�have�been�more�effective�in�this.��The�

GLA�could�have�acted�as�a�goad�to�the�developer�to�improve�its�figure.��After�a�lot�of�hard�work�

and�difficulty�-�in�which�we�were�not�involved�as�a�community�and�as�a�mature�third-sector�

organisation;�we�were�not�involved�-�the�result�was�transparent.��I�feel�that�there�ought�to�be�

more�proactive�decisions�and�intervention�before�a�legal�call-in�in�which�the�GLA�could�have�

worked�with�the�boroughs�to�press�the�RMG�to�improve�what�they�had�done�or�to�open�their�

books�because�they�eventually�opened�their�books�to�the�GLA�but�they�did�not�do�so�in�the�

same�way�to�the�borough.��We�have�lots�of�complaints�about�speed.�

�

One�other�point�is�a�general�point�and�I�believe�this�has�been�true�for�a�very�long�time.��The�

urban�design�issues�on�this�and�many�other�decisions�are�placed�as�secondary�issues.��The�

design,�the�quality�of�the�environment�and�the�general�nature�of�the�place�is�not�given�the�

attention�it�deserves.��I�am�not�convinced�that�there�are�relevant�officers�in�both�the�boroughs�

and�the�GLA�to�address�this.��Effectively,�you�design�something�in�paint�on�the�outside�of�a�big�

decision�---�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Mike,�can�I�just�say�-�we�are�going�to�come�on�to�place�and�design�

a�bit�later�on.�

�

Mike�Franks�(Chair,�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association):��Sorry,�I�cannot�see�the�agenda�at�

the�minute.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��We�are�at�the�moment�just�trying�to�grapple�with�the�--�

�

Mike�Franks�(Chair,�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association):��OK.��The�final�point�to�say�is�that�

we�were�cut�out�of�the�ability�to�have�any�dialogue�with�the�developer�from�the�time�it�went�to�

the�Mayor.��Essentially,�the�decision�came�from�an�analysis�of�the�policies�but�not�an�intimate�

knowledge�of�the�site.��That�is�a�big�question�to�ask�for�the�whole�of�the�community�because�

their�claim�was�that�it�was�bad�design.��The�issue�never�came�up.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Interesting.��We�are�going�to�move�on�to�that.��Just�to�close�on�

this�opening�question�on�why�the�Mayor�needs�a�call-in�and�because�of�the�delay�and�the�

frustration�argument,�I�just�want�to�mention�a�couple�of�examples.��They�were�quite�early�on.��It�

was�Columbus�Tower�and�Southall�Gas�Works�that�you�called�in,�neither�of�which�has�

progressed.��Perhaps�you�will�say�they�are�progressing�now.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��They�

are�progressing�because�Columbus�Tower�was�--�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��That�was�in�2011.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes.��

Columbus�Tower,�for�instance,�has�been�sold�on�again�and�probably�will�progress,�I�would�say,�in�

the�next�year�or�so�and�probably�will�come�back�as�a�new�application.��That�is�not�unusual�for�

Page 21



 

sites�in�London.��Southall�Gas�Works�is�again�a�similar�situation�in�that�the�consent�was�granted�

and�National�Grid,�the�owner,�was�in�the�process�of�an�estate�review�of�all�the�land�it�owned�in�

the�United�Kingdom�(UK).��As�part�of�that,�there�has�been�a�delay�then�in�selling�it�on�to�a�

developer.��Again,�not�unusual�in�London,�but�at�the�moment�a�very�live�scheme�coming�forward�

to�implementation�with�the�Berkeley�Homes.��You�will�see�that�implemented�shortly�as�well.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��OK.��Eddie,�do�you�want�to�come�in?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��If�I�may,�

Chair.��Just�on�those�two,�perhaps�I�can�just�come�to�Southall�Gas�Works.��Yes,�there�was�a�

delay,�but�the�granting�of�the�planning�permission�was�key�to�the�decision�then�being�made�by�

National�Grid�to�make�its�decision�to�decommission�the�gasworks,�which�was�a�very�expensive�

operation.��There�are�high�levels�of�contamination�in�the�ground�and�there�was�also�a�need�for�a�

large�number�of�compulsory�purchase�orders�(CPOs).��Therefore,�it�was�a�very�complex�site.��I�

would�argue�that�without�the�Mayor’s�intervention�at�that�stage,�we�would�not�be�where�we�are�

today,�which�is�where�we�have�--�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��There�would�not�have�been�a�planning�permission?��Do�you�not�

think�there�would�have?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��I�think�it�

would�have�gone�on�for�quite�a�long�time�and�caused�even�more�uncertainty�within�National�

Grid�because�it�was�the�uncertainty�within�National�Grid�that�was�delaying�things.��May�I�just�

also�come�on�--�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Hang�on.��Can�I�just�be�clear?��Southall�Gas�Works�had�reached�

planning�permission�and�was�then�called�in?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��Yes.��They�

had�gone�for�planning�permission�on�the�site,�but�National�Grid�needed�the�certainty�of�having�

that�planning�permission�under�its�belt�to�do�the�negotiations�which�they�then�subsequently�did�

with�various�partners�and�then�they�settled�on�Berkeley�Homes�in�whatever�their�internal�

property�transaction�process�was.��I�am�saying�it�was�an�integral�part�of�getting�a�very�difficult�

site�to�market�and�getting�us�where�we�are�today.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��I�accept�that.��We�had�a�preamble�before�you�came,�Eddie.��One�of�

the�points�I�was�trying�to�draw�out�is�that�there�is�the�same�complexity.��All�the�different�things�

that�have�to�be�done,�also�have�to�be�done�by�boroughs.��Slowness�of�process�and�frustration�

with�the�complexity�and�the�delays�is�one�of�the�reasons�being�given�for�the�Mayor�calling�in�

therefore�an�application,�either�with�the�applicant�asking�for�it�or�because�of�whatever�or�he�just�

decided�to�call�it�in.��I�wanted�to�just�make�the�point�that�boroughs�also�struggle�with�that.��The�

point�has�just�been�made�that�the�Mayor�could�get�more�involved�at�an�earlier�stage�with�the�

complexity�that�the�boroughs�are�facing.��Anyway,�it�is�just�a�point�I�wanted�to�make.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Just�in�

relation�to�Hertsmere�House�and�Southall�and�that�very�point,�GLA�officers�are�very�closely�

Page 22



 

involved�with�Ealing�officers�in�developing�the�Southall�scheme�and�also�the�Hertsmere�scheme.��

I�spent�a�lot�of�time�with�Ealing�officers�and�colleagues�from�TfL�getting�to�a�point�where�

Southall�Gas�Works�was�recommended�by�officers�at�Ealing�for�planning�permission,�which�was�

then�overturned�at�committee.��We�did�an�enormous�amount�of�work�to�get�that�to�a�point�

where�professionally�we�felt�and�the�Ealing�officers�felt�that�it�was�a�completely�fine�scheme,�

but�it�was�overturned�at�committee.�

�

The�other�thing�with�both�Hertsmere�and�Southall�is�that�they�were�both�subsequently�

consented�by�the�Mayor�at�the�end�of�2009/early�2010,�which�really�was�in�the�teeth�of�the�

recession.��Therefore,�delays�in�implementation�have�to�be�seen�in�that�context�as�well.�

�

However,�it�is�not�the�case�that�we�do�not�get�ourselves�involved�with�borough�officers�in�

negotiating�these�things�and�we�are�not�aware�of�the�complexities.��It�is�just�that�--�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��That�is�a�point�just�been�made�by�Mike�Franks,�by�the�way,�that�

you�might�have�become�involved�earlier,�but�we�will�come�on�to�Mount�Pleasant,�I�am�sure,�in�

later�questioning.��Shall�we�move�on�to�question�2?��Shall�we�just�--�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes,�I�was�

just�going�to�say�the�other�point�is�the�opportunity�areas�that�we�work�with�very�collaboratively�

lead�to�the�applications�that�subsequently�follow.��We�are�often�collaborating�and�leading�with�

the�boroughs�such�as�on�Southall�to�identify�opportunities�where�strategic�applications�are�the�

next�stage�in�the�planning�process.��We�are�there�usually�at�the�very�start�and�we�follow�that�

through.��We�are�very�committed�to�working�collaboratively�with�boroughs.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��That�is�good�to�hear,�but�I�am�just�thinking�about�what�has�just�

been�said�by�Mike�Franks�as�well.��We�will�come�on�to�that�when�we�deal�with�Mount�Pleasant.��

Question�2?�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��Thank�you,�Chair.��Sir�Eddie,�on�three�occasions�the�Mayor�has�called�in�

applications�from�boroughs�that�he�has�acknowledged�are�performing�well�against�their�housing�

targets:�Camden,�Islington�and�Lewisham.��Why�was�that?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��You�have�to�

now�start�talking�about�the�specifics�of�some�schemes�here.��It�is�about�the�specifics�of�the�

schemes.��Mount�Pleasant,�for�example,�was�well�over�the�16-week�period�in�which�a�decision�

should�have�been�taken�by�Islington�and�Camden.��No�decision�was�forthcoming.��Indeed,�when�

our�officers�here�were�talking�to�officers�in�Islington�and�Camden,�there�was�no�indication�of�

when�a�decision�would�be�taken.��In�that�particular�case,�the�developer�made�contact�with�the�

GLA�and,�under�the�powers�within�the�Act,�asked�us�to�take�that�one�over.��That�was�the�reason�

we�became�involved:�because�no�decision�was�taken.�

�

In�the�case�of�Convoys�in�Lewisham,�if�you�will�excuse�me�saying�so,�that�site�has�been�empty�

now�for�I�think�17�years�but�somebody,�I�am�sure,�will�correct�me�if�it�is�not�17�years.��This�was�

the�latest�in�a�long�line�of�planning�applications�which�had�gone�nowhere.��It�was�not�that�they�

were�turned�down�or�approved,�they�were�just�languishing.��This�one�was�languishing�and�going�

Page 23



 

absolutely�nowhere.��Again,�it�was�a�decision.��Sixteen�weeks�had�more�than�passed.��In�fact,�it�

was�more�like�about�six�months�by�then.��The�decision�was�then�taken�that�we�should�actually�

take�that�one�over�and�for�that�reason.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��It�took�two�years,�did�it�not,�for�the�Mayor�to�reach�a�decision�on�Convoys�

Wharf?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��Yes,�but�it�

had�taken�17�years�for�Lewisham�to�make�no�decision.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��The�Mayor�saw�no�prospect�that�the�borough�was�going�to�--�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��I�was�

involved,�as�indeed�were�officers,�in�discussions�and�it�was�very�clear�there�was�no�decision�likely�

to�be�forthcoming�in�the�immediate�future.��That�was�why�the�officers�then�became�involved.��

That�was�why�an�enormous�amount�of�negotiation�then�took�place.�

�

Just�to�be�clear,�for�us�it�is�also�about�the�section�106�and�the�planning�application.��Sorry,�I�

know�a�planning�application�has�to�have�a�section�106,�but�for�us�it�is�not�just�about�making�a�

decision�on�the�planning�application.��It�is�about�a�decision�on�the�section�106�as�well.��You�

need�to�sort�out�both�halves�of�the�equation.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��On�Mount�Pleasant,�how�far�over�16�weeks�were�the�boroughs?��Sorry.��It�is�

shame�that�Councillor�Murray�[Executive�Member�for�Housing�and�Development,�London�

Borough�of�Islington]�is�not�here.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��In�the�case�

of�Mount�Pleasant,�I�am�looking.��Colin�[Wilson]�will�know�and�he�can�tell�me�the�time.��It�was�a�

good�bit�over.��It�was�not�under�16�weeks,�if�that�was�your�suggestion.��It�was�well�over�the�16�

weeks.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��Yet�you�still�have�two�boroughs�that�are�performing�well�against�their�

targets.��It�might�be�over�the�16-week�limit,�but�why�did�the�Mayor�so�readily�accept�this�appeal�

from�the�developers?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��Nothing�is�

‘readily’�taken�on.��The�Mayor�has�been�campaigning�constantly�with�the�Secretary�of�State�and�

officers�here�have�been�campaigning�constantly�to�get�a�move�on�and�to�build�London’s�houses�

that�we�need.��That�is�about�making�quick�decisions�over�planning.��I�am�not�saying�too�quickly.��

I�am�just�saying�within�the�law�as�it�is�laid�out,�16�weeks,�which�is�a�reasonable�period�for�a�

decision�to�be�taken.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��I�hear�what�you�say�--�

�

Page 24



 

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��You�can�turn�

them�down�and�that�would�at�least�enable�the�applicant�to�go�to�appeal,�but�making�no�decision�

is�not�fair�---�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��They�can�appeal�against�a�non-determination,�can�they�not?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��They�could�

go�for�a�non-determination�appeal,�but�it�is�a�very�long�process.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��Particularly�in�terms�of�the�Mount�Pleasant�plan�-�and�I�hope�I�am�not�

straying�on�to�anyone’s�questions�-�there�was�a�real�sense�there�that�the�community�was�not�

happy�with�what�Royal�Mail�were�offering.��Perhaps�if�there�had�been�more�time,�a�scheme�

could�have�been�put�together�which�would�have�been�much�more�-�and�I�see�Mike�Franks�

nodding�-�acceptable�to�local�people.��Perhaps�this�was�a�case�where�there�would�have�been�a�

benefit�to�slowing�down�a�bit�and,�rather�than�rushing�a�scheme�which�was�unpopular,�coming�

up�with�a�scheme�that�would�benefit�the�local�community.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��I�would�

respond,�if�I�may,�with�respect,�by�saying�that�there�was�a�pre-application�period�long�before�

the�planning�application�was�submitted.��I�do�not�know�how�long�the�pre-application�period�

was.��I�am�rather�hoping�somebody�can�tell�me.�

�

Mike�Franks�(Chair,�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association):��About�a�year.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��If�it�was�a�

year,�it�was�a�year�to�sort�all�this�out�before�the�planning�application�started�its�journey.��What�

we�are�now�saying�is�that�this�is�an�enormous�amount�of�time.��All�of�this�should�have�been�

sorted�out.��The�signals�could�have�been�given�quite�clearly�during�that�pre-app�period�to�

Mount�Pleasant�that�it�was�going�to�be�turned�down�and�that�it�should�have�been�turned�down�

if�that�was�the�view�of�Islington�Council.��However,�it�did�not�take�that�view.��It�in�fact�took�a�

view�that�it�was�making�no�decision�on�the�matter�and�that�is�where�it�was�at�that�particular�

point�in�time.��That�was�when�the�Mayor�became�involved.�

�

Could�I�just�also�add?��The�argument�at�the�end�was�not�about�design.��Design�actually�was�not�

the�issue�for�Islington�and�Camden.��It�was�about�the�percentage�of�affordable�housing.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��The�level�of�affordable�housing,�yes.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��If�you�do�not�

mind�me�saying�so,�those�other�arguments�had�been�resolved�to�everybody’s�satisfaction,�not�

necessarily�the�community’s�satisfaction�and�I�accept�that,�but�as�for�the�council�to�its�

satisfaction.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��Did�you�want�to�come�in,�Mike,�before�I�move�on?�

�

Page 25



 

Mike�Franks�(Chair,�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association):��Yes.��On�the�history�of�the�two-

year�period,�which�is�more�than�two�years�now,�I�need�to�explain�the�difference�between�a�

‘planning�brief’�and�a�‘development�brief’.��It�is�not�a�common�usage.��I�have�been�a�planner�in�

local�authorities.��A�planning�brief�is�much�more�about�planning�with�an�urban�design�side�to�it.��

A�development�brief�is�a�check�whether�it�is�feasible�to�implement�that�planning�brief.�

�

What�happened�with�Mount�Pleasant�was�that�-�and�we�guess�that�it�has�probably�been�two�

years�before�the�supplementary�planning�document�came�out�-�that�Royal�Mail�was�talking�to�

the�boroughs.��It�paid�for�consultants�to�help�prepare�the�supplementary�planning�document,�

which�was�a�planning�brief.��That�was�where�the�scheme�went�wrong�because�Royal�Mail�told�its�

four�architects�to�immediately�start�developing�what�was�an�illustrative�component�of�the�brief.��

Actually,�the�proposal�that�came�forward�was�almost,�with�minor�exceptions,�what�was�shown�in�

the�supplementary�planning�document.�

�

In�the�year�of�aggravation�after�the�document�was�approved,�there�was�not�enough�awareness.��

There�were�5,000�documents.��There�were�pages�of�this�thing.��There�was�not�enough�

awareness�in�the�community�trying�to�catch�up�-�and�Royal�Mail�had�spent�£10�million�on�this�-�

with�the�sheer�body�of�information�because�it�takes�an�awful�lot�of�absorbing�when�you�have�

volunteers�--�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��It�is�a�David�and�Goliath�situation.��You�have�Royal�Mail�with�lots�of�money�

and�people�and�--�

�

Mike�Franks�(Chair,�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association):��That�is�right.��We�are�catching�up�

with�that,�but�that�is�a�separate�story.��The�problem�of�absorbing�the�complexity�of�what�was�

put�forward�and�the�problem�of�the�lack�of�urban�design�skills�in�the�borough�-�because�the�

majority�of�the�opposition�to�the�scheme�was�about�the�quality�of�the�buildings�and�was�about�

the�height�and�block�form�-�to�allow�eventually�what�amounts�to�certain�statistics�of�height,�

quantity�and�generalised�location�allowed�Royal�Mail�to�come�back�with�those.�

�

I�had�worked�with�Eric�Sorenson�[former�Chief�Executive,�London�Development�Partnership]�for�

the�preparation�of�the�Mayor’s�right�to�call�in�before�the�GLA�was�set�up.��It�was�estimated�there�

would�be�only�three�appeals�or�three�call-ins�a�year�simply�because�it�could�be�very�expensive�

and�a�lot�of�drain�on�officers’�time�or�going�to�Government�appeal.��The�supplementary�planning�

document�had�flaws�in�it�that�the�community�immediately�identified.��The�dialogue�with�

boroughs�was�not�about�design,�Sir�Edward.��Therefore,�there�was�an�intractable�problem.�

�

On�the�other�side,�the�calculation�of�affordable,�we�know,�was�deliberately�slowed�down�

because�the�representation�that�the�boroughs�made�was�that�they�did�not�get�enough�

information.��However,�I�believe�very�firmly�that�the�boroughs�were�prepared�to�make�a�decision�

but�it�was�going�to�be�a�refusal�and�they�must�have�flagged�that�up�for�a�long�time�if�they�did�

not�get�adequate�information�on�the�land�economic�issues.��The�problem�stayed�as�an�

intractable�position.�

�

I�have�to�say�that�RMG�was�a�very�old-fashioned�group�in�the�way�in�which�it�approached�this�

whole�thing.��It�did�not�listen.��It�did�not�talk�to�us.��It�presented�flat�exhibitions�and�

Page 26



 

information.��They�did�not�take�it�back�and�say,�“We�have�thought�about�what�you�have�said�

and�we�have�considered�this”.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��Thank�you.��Can�I�bring�in�Duncan?��I�think�Duncan�wanted�to�come�in.�

�

Duncan�Bowie�(Senior�Lecturer�in�Planning,�University�of�Westminster):��I�just�wanted�

to�comment�that�most�of�the�discussion�so�far�has�been�on�the�issue�of�process.��A�discussion�

about�process�can�disguise�the�issues�about�policy�and�policy�differences.�

�

The�first�point�I�really�wanted�to�make�was�on�the�issue�of�the�justification�for�intervention�

generally�and�not�specifically�in�this�case.��Following�the�question�you�put,�Mr�Copley,�the�

justification,�as�Sir�Edward�has�responded,�was�not�on�the�cases�of�the�boroughs�concerned�not�

delivering�the�overall�housing�targets.��It�was�on�the�specifics�of�the�case.��Therefore,�there�is�an�

issue�about�to�what�extent�the�specifics�of�the�case�were�a�challenge�to�the�delivery�of�the�

London�Plan�policies�in�aggregate�and�that�can�be�in�a�sense�disputed�differently�in�different�

cases.�

�

On�the�policy�side,�there�are�two�elements�to�this.��The�first�issue�is�where�there�is�an�explicit�

difference�of�policy�between�the�local�authority�and�the�London�Plan.��That�in�a�sense�relates�to�

what�actually�is�the�latest�plan�in�statutory�terms.��The�critical�issue,�clearly,�in�Islington�was�the�

extent�to�which�the�recent�amendment�to�the�London�Plan�on�affordable�housing�overrode�the�

council’s�own�policy.��Obviously�Councillor�Murray�[Executive�Member�for�Housing�and�

Development,�London�Borough�of�Islington],�if�he�were�here,�would�talk�about�that�in�more�

detail.�

�

There�is�a�more�complex�issue�which�applies�in�most�of�these�cases,�which�is�that�even�if�there�is�

not�any�distinction�between�the�local�plan�and�the�London�Plan�position,�what�is�the�

interpretation�of�the�London�Plan�in�terms�of�the�different�emphases�on�different�priorities?��

The�previous�research�I�did�for�this�Committee�raised�a�number�of�issues�about�consistency�of�

approach�on�density,�on�housing�mix,�on�affordable�housing�proportions�and�fundamentally�on�

viability.��Clearly,�as�has�already�been�commented�on,�some�of�those�issues�arise�in�some�of�

these�cases.�

�

Lots�Road�was�mentioned�in�the�sense�that�it�was�actually�a�justification�for�the�original�

legislative�change.��We�do�need�to�recognise�that�that�was�a�different�regime�and�a�different�

London�Plan.��Bluntly,�the�issue�there�was�primarily�the�issue�I�am�just�raising:�the�actual�

interpretation�of�the�London�Plan�and�whether�certain�aspects�of�that�application�did�justify�

exceptional�treatment�in�terms�of�the�application�policy.�

�

What�we�have�in�most�of�these�recent�cases�is�the�negotiations�undertaken�by�the�Mayor’s�team�

allowing�variations�from�published�policy�to�a�degree�which�is�possibly�not�viewed�as�acceptable�

either�by�the�local�residents�or,�effectively,�by�the�borough.��Inevitably,�any�planning�decision�is�

a�balance�of�priorities.��I�would�argue,�as�I�have�argued�on�a�number�of�occasions,�that�in�a�

number�of�cases�including�some�of�these�cases�the�focus�has�been�very�much�on�unit�maximum�

output�and�not�necessarily�on�full�compliance�with�a�range�of�other�issues�in�terms�of�

affordability�and�density�policy.��That�in�a�sense�has�been�the�fundamental�element�of�the�

Page 27



 

disputes�with�the�boroughs,�although�obviously�there�are�some�design�components�and�

different�perspectives�on�that,�as�we�discussed.�

�

The�point�I�am�making�is�that�this�debate�is�partly�about�whether�these�applications�and�the�way�

the�councils�were�treating�them�was�threatening�the�overall�delivery�of�the�London�Plan�as�a�

whole�and�much�more�fundamentally�was�whether�the�application�of�the�London�Plan�in�these�

individual�cases�and�the�decisions�made�-�primarily�on�grounds�of�viability�-�were�actually�

justifiable�in�terms�of�the�variation�and�the�balance�of�priorities.��That�in�a�sense�is�the�main�

matter�for�discussion�rather�than�primarily�the�process�issue.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��May�I�just�ask�on�that�point�just�to�get�it�clear�in�my�mind?��Are�you�saying�

that�there�is�a�situation�in�some�of�these�applications�where�local�residents�are�concerned�that�

GLA�officers�themselves�are�using�a�more�flexible�interpretation�of�the�London�Plan�than�what�

residents�would�like?��Is�that�what�you�are�saying?�

�

Duncan�Bowie�(Senior�Lecturer�in�Planning,�University�of�Westminster):��Certainly�in�a�

number�of�cases�residents�have�opposed�schemes�on�grounds�of�density,�inappropriate�mix�or�

insufficient�affordable�housing.��Mr�Eversden�will�comment�on�that�and�a�few�cases�in�detail�if�

he�wishes�to.�

�

The�previous�research�I�did�for�this�Committee�-�never�mind,�I�have�to�say,�the�study�I�did�for�

the�previous�regime�because�it�is�not�actually�a�vast�difference�of�approaches�by�the�different�

regimes�although�the�legislation�has�changed�-�did�raise�issues�about�consistency�of�application�

and�consistency�of�assessment�on�a�number�of�the�factors�I�have�referred�to.��Fundamental�in�

this�is�the�way�in�which�the�viability�assessment�is�treated�and�assumptions�-�especially�in�the�

Mount�Pleasant�case�-�about�the�actual�value�of�the�site�and�the�justification�for�the�cost�of�the�

site�actually�being�included�in�the�viability�assessment,�including�all�the�hope�value�rather�than�

in�any�relation�to�the�pre-existing�use.��Clearly,�the�borough�and�the�Mayor’s�team�took�a�

different�interpretation�of�that�fundamental�element�in�terms�of�the�deliverability�of�the�

scheme.��There�is�very�little�Government�guidance�on�this�and�it�is�very�much�a�matter�for�

interpretation.��Clearly,�in�the�Mount�Pleasant�case�-�and�Councillor�Murray�[Executive�Member�

for�Housing�and�Development,�London�Borough�of�Islington]�would�have�said�more�on�this�had�

he�been�here�-�the�borough�took�a�different�view�on�the�viability�and�the�deliverability�of�the�

scheme�from�the�Mayor.��The�Mayor’s�perspective,�as�Sir�Eddie�[Lister]�has�focused�on,�was�that�

in�all�these�projects�there�was�a�wish�for�the�schemes�to�actually�progress,�recognising�that�

whatever�decision�is�made�does�involve�a�degree�of�compromise�and�not�all�the�policy�objectives�

will�be�met.�

�

I�am�not�necessarily�taking�a�view�on�whether�the�Mayor’s�decision�was�right�on�the�individual�

schemes.��I�am�just�trying�to�make�the�point�that�no�scheme�is�ever�fully�policy-compliant.��My�

own�view�is�from�the�previous�research�and�is�that�in�some�cases,�including�some�of�these�cases,�

the�focus�on�unit�output�and�the�timetable�of�delivery�has�been�given�greater�precedence�than�

some�of�the�other�components�of�London�Plan�policy,�leaving�the�individual�borough�policy�in�

these�cases�to�one�side.��The�issue�is�the�appropriate�interpretation�of�the�London�Plan�policy.��

As�I�say,�it�is�a�matter�of�compromise.��The�question�is�whether�this�actually�was�the�right�

Page 28



 

compromise�or�whether�factors�other�than�unit�output�should�have�been�given�greater�

consideration.��It�is�a�matter�of�judgement.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��That�was�very�interesting.���

�

Marcus�Bate�(Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP):��For�me,�it�is�a�similar�point.��It�is�

this�contrast�between�the�London�Plan�as�a�whole�assessment�as�you�were�just�describing,�which�

is�one�of�the�three�tests�that�Mr�Murray�described�that�the�Mayor�has�to�go�through.��However,�

when�you�look�at�the�11�stage�two�reports,�it�is�done�very�specifically�by�reference�to�a�limited�

number�of�what�are�seen�as�key�policies.��I�can�only�second�the�observation�that�the�legal�test�of�

implementation�of�the�London�Plan�as�a�whole�has�in�practice,�certainly�from�a�lawyer’s�

perspective,�been�analysed�by�reference�to,�in�particular,�London�Plan�policies�maximising�

housing�delivery�and�employment�floor-space.��It�is�that�tension�as�a�whole�versus�specific�

policies�which�is�particularly�important�for�people�to�discuss�today.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Very�helpful.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��That�is�a�very�interesting�point.��I�want�to�go�back�to�Sir�Eddie�with�just�a�

couple�more�questions�on�this�because�we�have�been�on�this�for�quite�a�while.��In�terms�of�

affordable�--�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��I�wonder�if�I�

can�respond�to�just�one�of�those�points,�which�is�very�important,�Chair,�that�Duncan�raised.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��Go�on,�yes.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��For�the�

Mayor�and�the�boroughs�and�the�developer,�when�deciding�the�level�of,�for�example,�affordable�

housing�and�the�tender�split�and�the�viability�assessment,�however�you�interpret�the�viability�

assessment,�there�are�clear�choices�and�some�of�those�are�difficult�choices.��Although�we�have�

to�be�careful�about�what�we�say�in�terms�of�Mount�Pleasant�and�Convoys�Wharf�because�we�

actually�have�not�signed�the�section�106�agreements�and�there�is�not�actually�planning�

permission�yet,�there�are�clear�choices�to�the�Mayor�and�the�boroughs�and�the�developer�about�

the�priority�between�maximising�units�and�meeting�lower-rent�affordable�housing.��Higher�

subsidies�mean�lower�numbers�of�units.�

�

In�all�of�those�cases�-�for�example,�Mount�Pleasant�-�options�were�presented�in�the�viability�

assessment�for�a�range�of�units,�affordable�rents�and�target�rents�and�they�were�meticulously�

discussed�and�debated�in�the�representation�hearing,�including�by�Councillor�James�Murray�

[Executive�Member�for�Housing�and�Development,�London�Borough�of�Islington],�who�asked�

the�Mayor�a�number�of�questions.��As�Duncan�[Bowie]�described,�a�balanced�decision�had�to�be�

reached.��The�GLA’s�and�the�Mayor’s�approach�is�not�to�go�singularly�one�way�in�interpreting�

the�London�Plan�and�affordable�housing�policy.��It�is�actually�to�present�a�range�of�options�and�

what�works�best,�considering�what�the�boroughs�see�as�important�local�housing�need�and�what�

the�developer�can�viably�afford�to�deliver.��There�is�a�need�for�balance.�

�

Page 29



 

Tom�Copley�AM:��It�could�be�perceived�as�an�emphasis�on�certain�aspects�over�others,�perhaps.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��One�can�

interpret�it�in�different�ways,�but�what�we�presented�was�a�range�of�options�on�higher/lower,�on�

affordability�and�on�numbers.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Coming�

back�to�the�point�about�policy,�our�particular�policy�is�concentrated�on�in�the�Mayor’s�reports,�

which�is�a�point�Duncan�[Bowie]�has�made�in�previous�reports�he�has�done�for�the�Assembly.��It�

is�worth�bearing�in�mind�that�the�Convoys�Wharf�stage�three�report�was�113�pages�long�and�that�

is�probably�about�twice�as�long�as�the�national�Planning�Policy�Guidance�Notes.��If�we�were�to�

put�everything�in�these�reports,�we�would�be�up�to�about�300�or�400�pages,�at�which�point�they�

become�rather�pointless�and�self-defeating.��There�is�a�professional�task�we�have�to�do�

synthesising�information�and�policy�and�giving�due�emphasis�to�things�which�are�proportionately�

more�important�in�these�things,�so�that�we�can�give�clear�guidance�to�the�decision-maker,�to�the�

Mayor�and�to�Ed�[Lister].�

�

On�the�point�of�whether�design�is�a�secondary�issue:�absolutely�not.��We�have�designers�and�

architects�working�in�the�GLA�and�I�know�in�the�particular�instance�of�Mount�Pleasant�that�

certainly�Camden�and�Islington�are�doing.��I�know�we�have�taken�different�views�about�what�is�

good�or�bad�design,�but�that�is�not�by�any�means�unusual�on�issues�about�design.�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��Just�on�this�

point�about�viability:�we�have�had�two�big�hurdles�on�this�subject.��One�was�the�Mayoral�

Community�Infrastructure�Levy�(CIL),�which�was�necessary�for�Crossrail�1.��The�other�one�was�

the�‘get-out-of-obligations�card’�which�Nick�Boles�[Planning�Minister]�dealt�to�developers�to�

play�whenever�they�wanted�to.��Very�few�boroughs�-�and�Westminster�comes�to�mind�-�have�the�

skill�to�talk�about�build�costs�and�building�configurations�and�everything�else�which�is�necessary�

in�that�process.��It�is�advantageous�that�the�GLA�is�involved�and�is�supportive�on�some�of�those�

because�it�does�have�the�capability�to�get�more�deeply�into�those�arguments�and�the�books�

than�some�of�the�local�authorities�and�is�better�skilled�to�do�so.��That�can�be�helpful,�but�it�is�a�

question�of�whether�the�Mayor�is�really�taking�into�account�‘affordable’�affordable�housing�on�

what�is�finally�delivered�because�we�do�not�seem�to�be�getting�enough�of�that.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��That�brings�me�neatly�on�to�my�next�question�for�Sir�Eddie.��Has�the�Mayor�

secured�more�affordable�housing�when�he�has�called�these�applications�in�than�the�boroughs�

would�have�done?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��You�have�

heard�of�Mount�Pleasant�and�the�numbers�quoted.��It�was�12%�and�it�was�raised�to�24%�and�it�

has�been�--�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��One�could�argue�that�the�developers�were�going�deliberately�low�than�

perhaps�if�it�had�been�left�to�the�boroughs.��Islington�was�going�for�50%�but�there�might�have�

been�a�compromise�at�30%�or�something�like�that.�

�

Page 30



 

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��Yes,�but�all�I�

would�say�to�you�-�and�I�come�back�to�this�point�-�is�that�they�had�it�at�pre-application�for�well�

over�a�year.��Those�are�the�kinds�of�discussions�which�need�to�take�place�and�it�is�part�of�the�

process�of�working�their�way�through�it.��They�were�asking�for�50%�affordable�housing�on�the�

site.��Royal�Mail�was�indicating�at�a�very�early�stage�in�the�process�that�it�would�never,�ever�

achieve�50%.��Maybe�30%�was�a�compromise�number�that�they�may�have�reached�at�some�

point,�but�my�point�is�that�the�clock�is�ticking�on�everybody�and�they�need�to�get�a�move�on,�

make�that�judgement�call�and�either�approve�what�they�have�or�turn�down�what�they�have.��

They�need�to�make�that�decision.�

�

On�the�amount�of�affordable�housing,�I�think�I�am�right�in�saying�that�in�every�case�the�Mayor�

has�called�in�where�housing�has�been�an�issue,�he�has�increased�the�percentages.��Certainly�at�

Convoys�he�increased�the�percentages�that�were�on�offer.��There�has�been�a�pattern�of�better�

outcomes.�

�

However,�Peter�[Eversden]�is�right.��We�are�blessed�in�a�way�at�City�Hall.��We�have�really�good�

planning�officers�who�do�actually�understand�all�of�this.��They�can�actually�negotiate�and�they�

are�much�stronger.��Sorry,�I�do�not�want�to�dwell�on�a�particular�borough�here�and�please�do�not�

read�this�in�that�way,�but�they�are�in�a�position�where�they�are�able�to�negotiate�the�amount�of�

affordable�housing.�

�

There�are�a�number�of�stage�one�reports�I�review�with�the�planning�team�on�a�regular�basis�-�

and�indeed�the�Mayor�does�-�where�the�percentage�of�affordable�housing�that�is�on�offer�and�is�

possibly�going�to�be�accepted�by�the�borough�is�found�to�be�unacceptable�to�us.��We�push�

those�numbers�up.��Our�record�of�pushing�affordable�housing�numbers�up�is�a�good�one�and�we�

could�with�a�little�bit�of�work�actually�demonstrate�that�to�you�with�some�of�the�stage�one�and�

stage�two�reports�that�we�do.��I�do�not�want�to�create�lots�of�work,�but�I�am�on�very�safe�ground�

in�making�that�assurance.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Duncan�wanted�to�come�in�on�this.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��There�is�also�the�question�of�course�of�what�‘affordable’�is,�which�you�might�

want�to�comment�on.���

Duncan�Bowie�(Senior�Lecturer�in�Planning,�University�of�Westminster):��My�point�was�

just�that�the�focus�can�often�be�just�on�the�numbers�of�affordable�houses�as�a�percentage�of�the�

total.��The�key�issue�obviously�from�a�local�housing�needs�point�of�view�is�the�type�of�affordable�

housing�in�terms�of�the�size,�the�bedroom�size�mix,�often�issues�relating�to�the�built�form�in�

relation�to�the�ground�in�some�of�these�schemes�and,�much�more�critically,�the�level�of�rent.��

Clearly�in�the�Mount�Pleasant�case,�it�was�the�fundamental�issue�in�all�the�negotiations�really�

from�the�first�stage.�

�

The�Mount�Pleasant�issue�is�much�more�problematic�because�of�the�original�way�in�which,�

effectively,�Royal�Mail�was�privatised�and�the�basic�assumptions�about�the�profit�margins�that�

the�privatised�company�were�actually�assuming,�which�acted�as�a�very�severe�constraint�on�the�

affordable�housing�output.��You�can�then�obviously�as�a�planning�authority�make�a�different�

judgement�about�whether�that�original�assumption�about�land�value�was�reasonable�or�not.��

Page 31



 

That�was�why�I�referred�earlier�to�this�whole�issue�about�the�way�in�which�viability�relates�

acquisition�cost�to�existing-use�value,�on�which�Government�guidance�is�very�confused.��That�

obviously�acted�as�a�major�constraint�on�a�site�that�had�actually�been�public-sector�owned.��

Clearly,�there�is�a�historic�agenda�and�a�site�that�was�public-sector�owned�could�have�actually�

been�used�more�effectively�for�a�much�wider�range�of�affordable�housing�provision�had�the�basis�

of�the�transfer�of�ownership�from�the�public�sector�into�the�private�sector�been�different.�

�

I�agree�that�that�is�not�directly�relevant�to�planning�applications,�but�it�does�actually�set�the�

framework�and�has�raised�the�whole�issue�of�how�you�treat�land�cost�in�viability�appraisals.��

There�is�still�a�continuing�debate�both�within�Government�and�outside�Government�as�to�the�

basis�of�such�assessments,�with�the�Lyons�Review�proposing�a�couple�of�weeks�ago�now�that�

existing-use�value�should�actually�be�the�basis.��That�is�not�the�view�of�the�Royal�Institution�of�

Chartered�Surveyors�(RICS)�but�the�view�that�has�come�out�in�several�Government-supported�

reports�over�the�years.��In�a�sense�it�is�that�fundamental�issue,�I�have�to�say,�that�has�to�be�

resolved�if�we�actually�have�a�better�starting�point�for�some�of�these�negotiations�and�to�

actually�make�the�use�of�planning�powers�far�more�effective.�

�

I�know�that�actually�goes�beyond�the�agenda�of�this�discussion,�but�it�is�absolutely�fundamental�

to�the�debate�about�how�we�get�more�affordable�housing�in�London.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��May�I,�Chair,�

just�slightly�respond�to�Duncan’s�[Bowie]�point?��I�am�not�in�disagreement�with�where�he�is�

coming�from,�but�I�would�make�a�point�which�I�think�is�important.��The�RMG�is�a�private�

company.��It�was�no�longer�a�state-owned�operation.��It�has�shareholders�who�have�a�right�to�

best�value.��That,�at�that�point,�changes�the�basis.��The�Government�can�make�a�decision�to�sell�

land�at�a�low�price�whether�that�is�by�a�low�price�or�by�putting�affordable�housing�in�to�a�greater�

percentage�or�however�you�do�the�calculation,�but�a�corporation�of�any�kind�or�any�individual�is�

going�to�seek�best�value.��I�do�want�to�just�defend�the�position�that�Royal�Mail�was�in�when�

seeking�the�best�value�for�its�land,�as�indeed�would�any�individual�in�this�room.��I�just�feel�it�is�

important.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��I�appreciate�it�is�now�a�private�company,�yes.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��However,�it�

is�also�true�that�you�have�the�same�issue�with�National�Health�Service�(NHS)�Trusts,�which�

would�be�a�good�example.��They�are�going�to�be�in�exactly�the�same�position.��I�could�cite�a�

couple�of�planning�applications�flying�around�the�ether�at�the�moment�where�we�have�NHS�

Trusts�which�because�of�their�locations�will�make�substantial�amounts�of�money�out�of�the�land�

transactions.��To�be�fair,�those�Trusts�are�then�putting�that�money�back�into�the�hospitals,�but�

you�could�be�asking�why�they�should�be�making�so�much�money�because�of�their�geographic�

locations.��I�am�afraid�they�are�independent�bodies,�no�different�to�anybody�else.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��One�can�argue�they�should�be�providing�key�worker�housing�for�nurses,�

perhaps.�

�

Page 32



 

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Can�I�draw�this�topic�to�a�close?��It�is�a�very�interesting�point,�but�

we�are�trying�to�stick�now�to�the�situation�we�are�in�at�the�moment.��I�want�to�move�on�to�

Steve.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��If�I�may�go�away�from�the�specific�to�the�more�general:�

I�understand�that�the�number�the�Mayor�has�taken�over�is�small.��We�are�talking�about�11�or�

something,�about�1%�of�total�applications�in�London�but�there�is�still�a�question�I�posed�earlier�

about�this�does�send�signals�out�to�developers�that�there�is�another�process.��I�am�long�in�the�

tooth,�I�know�the�planning�system�in�town�halls�and�I�understand�how�developers�think.��My�

question�really�initially�to�Sir�Edward�is:�does�the�introduction�of�this�power�to�the�Mayor�not�

give�a�signal�to�the�developers�that�there�is�an�alternative�process�that�they�can�turn�to�and�give�

succour�to�those�developers�who�are�actually�wanting�their�development�to�go�through�and�are�

finding�that�they�are�basically�not�getting�what�they�want�from�the�local�authority?��Is�it�not�

giving�that�encouragement�to�developers?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��No,�I�do�not�

think�so,�if�I�may,�because�we�take�about�200�-�300�planning�applications�a�year�coming�

through�City�Hall.��Not�all�of�them�get�to�a�stage�two�process,�but�we�do�have�a�substantial�

number�coming�in.��The�highest�number�in�any�one�year�we�have�taken�over�is�three.��The�

numbers�that�we�take�over�are�really�very,�very�small�and�in�each�case�they�have�been�schemes�

which,�in�our�opinion,�were�of�strategic�importance.�

�

There�were�many�other�schemes�there�which�were�turned�down�by�the�boroughs�and�where�they�

made�approaches�to�us�to�say,�“Please�will�you�take�it�over?”�and�we�took�a�very�clear�decision�

that�we�would�not�get�involved�and�that�we�would�leave�the�decision�with�the�boroughs�and�we�

set�out�our�reasons�why�we�felt�that�it�was�a�matter�for�the�boroughs.��We�have�only�take�taken�

over�in�very�rare�occasions.��In�this�last�year�we�have�taken�over�two�schemes�where�it�has�been�

because�of,�I�will�use�the�word�‘non-determination’�but�it�is�not�really�non-determination�in�the�

legal�sense,�but�it�is�in�the�sense�that�nobody�has�made�a�decision�within�the�16-week�period.��

We�do�feel�at�City�Hall�quite�strongly�that�after�16�weeks�it�does�need�to�be�processed.��

However�you�look�at�these�things,�to�bring�a�scheme�forward�in�this�country�it�takes�about�two�

years�to�work�a�scheme�up,�it�takes�about�a�year�to�go�through�planning�process,�of�any�size.��

You�are�talking�about�a�very�long�period�of�time�and�we�do�need�to�crack�on,�get�housing,�get�

commercial�premises,�get�industrial�premises�built,�so�there�is�real�pressure�out�there.��I�think�

that�failure�to�make�a�decision�is�not�an�unreasonable�one.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��I�understand�that,�because�I�mean�the�previous�Mayor�

also�lobbied�for�those�powers�to�move�things�along�and�I�get�that,�but�this�is�around�where�

there�is�a�distinction.��I�think�I�mentioned�it�earlier�before�you�were�in�the�room,�is�that�there�is�a�

distinction�where�there�are�individual�applications�that�have�just�been�held�up�in�the�system,�

that�there�is�basically�a�breakdown�in�relationships�and�sites,�and�I�will�mention�again�the�site�I�

am�visiting�at�3.00pm�this�afternoon,�which�is�Ruskin�Square,�which�you�know�outside�is�

Croydon,�which�is�finally�a�ground�breaking�ceremony�this�afternoon,�which�has�been�in�need�of�

development�and�housing�for�as�long�as�I�have�been�a�councillor,�and�probably�much,�much�

longer.�

�

Page 33



 

London�is�littered�with�the�sort�of�sites�where�it�is�taking�a�long�time�and�in�those�situations�I�

am�assuming�there�has�not�been�an�approach�and�the�Mayor�has�not�seen�fit�to�intervene,�as�

distinct�from,�and�I�think�there�is�actually�two�examples�where�committees�have�actually�decided�

on�applications�in�boroughs�and�the�Mayor,�on�an�approach�from�an�applicant,�has�decided�to�

take�it�on.��What�I�am�trying�to�spit�out�is�the�reasoning,�it�is�the�sites�that�have�been�a�long�

time�dormant�and�there�has�been�no�activity,�and�to�try�to�understand,�where�would�the�Mayor�

decide�to�get�involved�in�other�sites?��Where�is�the�distinction?��Because�where�there�is�a�

blurred�distinction�that�is�where�there�would�be�encouragement�to�developers�to�say,�“Ah,�we�

can�go�the�Mayor’s�office�on�this�one.��It�will�enable�us�to�go�forward�and�perhaps�get�the�sort�

of�deal�that�we�want”.��Could�you�expand�on�that?�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Do�you�want�to�come�in�on�this�point�Marcus?�

�

Marcus�Bate�(Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP):��Yes�please.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Well,�Marcus�is�nodding,�so�Marcus?�

�

Marcus�Bate�(Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP):��It�does�not�necessarily�mean�I�

agree.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��No,�even�better.�

�

Marcus�Bate�(Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP):��Well,�it�was�on�signals�first�of�all�-�

you�mentioned�signals�-�and�I�just�really�want�to�stress�the�difference�between�signals�from�the�

two�or�three,�depending�on�how�you�look�at�Mount�Pleasant.,�examples�where�the�applicant�has�

requested�call-in�and�it�is�non-determination,�despite�what�Sir�Edward�[Lister]�says.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��I�am�sorry�to�cut�across�you,�but�non-determination�

that�in�itself�is�a�re-course�for�developers.�

�

Marcus�Bate�(Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP):��As�mentioned�by�Mr�Copley�earlier,�

there�is�a�right�of�appeal�after�16�weeks�for�non-determination,�which�in�London�genuinely�

arises�because�very�few�of�the�very�larger�schemes�get�determined�within�16�weeks.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��In�that�time.�

�

Marcus�Bate�(Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP):��That�was�going�to�be�my�key�point.��

It�is�not�on�the�nine�which�have�been�called�in�following�a�proposed�refusal,�but�on�the�two�or�

three�where�16�weeks�have�passed.��The�reality�is�that�when�we�act�for�developers�on�the�larger�

schemes�we�do�not�tell�them�they�will�get�a�decision�within�16�weeks.��It�is�unrealistic.��In�a�non-

determination�appeal�scenario�there�is�an�appeal�grant�to�the�Secretary�of�State,�and�I�am�

personally�quite�nervous�that�you�could�find�yourself�two�or�three�months�after�the�16�weeks�in�

a�stage�where�it�has�been�referred�across�under�a�call-in.��I�think�a�very�different�signal,�very�

different�signal�from�a�council�is�going�to�refuse�and�the�Mayor�then�takes�it�over.�

�

Page 34



 

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Right,�I�get�it.��One�other�question�really�for�you�Sir�

Edward,�is�on�responsibilities,�because�the�Mayor�takes�over,�and�I�am�not�talking�about�

individual�cases�at�all,�but�if�he�refuses�and�there�is�an�appeal,�who�is�responsible�for�the�cost?��

Is�that�the�Mayor’s�office,�if�it�goes�to�that�stage?���

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��The�Mayor�

becomes�the�planning�authority�at�that�point,�so�the�Mayor�takes�on�those�responsibilities.�

�

Can�I�just�go�back�to�your�earlier�point�about�what�constitutes�a�stalled�site?�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Yes.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��I�am�going�

to�use�the�example�of�the�one�I�was�at�first�thing�this�morning,�8.00am�this�morning,�which�is�

the�Origin�site�in�Park�Royal.��That�is�a�site�that�has�sat�there�empty�for�five�years.��It�sat�there�

empty�because�it�was�bought�just�at�the�2008�property�crash�so�there�was�no�cash.��When�they�

finally�did�get�some�cash�together�for�it�High�Speed�Two�(HS2)�came�along�and�basically�said�

they�needed�the�site�and�so�fundamentally�red-lined�it�and�it�took�a�while�for�it�to�then�come�

out�of�that�process.��So�there�are�lots�of�things�which�are�not�necessarily�driven�by�us.��In�that�

particular�case�we�have�been�working�very�closely�with�Brent�Council�to�unblock�that�one�and�

there�has�been�an�enormous�amount�of�work�done�in�this�building�to�unpick�that.��So,�we�do�

work�very�closely�with�the�boroughs.�

�

Ruskin�Square,�you�are�right,�I�just�remember�that�as�an�empty�site.��I�do�not�actually�remember�

it�ever�having�a�building�on�it.��That�was�a�planning�application�that�was�made�long�before�the�

change�in�the�rules.��You�could�argue�that�it�was�to�do�with�section�106�viability�and�various�

other�things�but,�nevertheless,�the�property�market�has�now�moved�sufficiently�for�Ruskin�

Square�to�actually�start.��It�is�still�only�starting�the�first�phase�of�that�project,�which�is�some�

housing�and�an�office�block.��There�is�still�about�two-thirds�of�the�site�which�--�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��It�is�only�a�proportion�of�the�site.��I�get�that.��My�point�

is�really�differentiating�where�there�is�a�clear�breakdown�in�relationships�between�say�borough�

and�applicant,�as�opposed�to�stalled�sites�across�London,�where�the�Mayor�would�want�to�say,�

“This�has�sat�there�empty�for�20�years,�let’s�take�it�over�and�be�more�dynamic�and�support�the�

borough”�there�is�a�distinction�really.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��I�think�

perhaps�that�is�where�I�would�like�to�talk�about�Convoys�Wharf�as�an�example,�because�I�think�it�

is�a�good�example�of�one�which�is�in�that�category.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Second�category.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��That�site�has�

been�empty,�again�forever.��I�think,�as�I�say,�17�years.��It�has�stood�there�empty.��There�was�a�

planning�application�which�was�put�together�with�a�master�plan�that�went�through�that�sat�in�

the�planning�system�and�never�came�out�of�it.��You�could�say,�“Why�didn’t�the�applicant�go�to�

Page 35



 

appeal?”��For�whatever�reason�the�applicant�never�went�to�appeal�and�the�years�rolled�by.��The�

applicant�then�decided�to�bring�in�a�new�master�planner�to�try�to�meet�some�of�the�original�

criticisms.��They�brought�in�Terry�Farrells�and�they�put�together�a�completely�new�master�plan�

for�the�area.�

�

Even�having�done�that,�with�a�new�planning�application�in,�a�long�period�of�time�elapsed�before�

any�decisions�were�taken.��It�was,�therefore,�clear�to�us�here�that�there�were�no�decisions�

forthcoming.��There�were�a�whole�series�of�quite�difficult�local�issues,�which�are�not�really�

relevant�to�this,�but�they�are�the�reason�why�it�got�so�heavily�stalled.��It�is�not�about�Affordable�

Housing�or�other�things,�it�was�other�factors�that�were�coming�in�to�play.��Therefore�we�are�

faced�with�a�decision,�do�we�take�it�over�under�the�powers�that�were�given�to�us�in�2012�and�

make�a�decision�one�way�or�the�other,�or�the�applicant�could�have�gone�down�the�route�of�

going�to�the�Planning�Inspectorate�for�England�and�Wales�(PINS)�for�non-determination.��That�

was�open�to�them.��The�applicant�took�a�decision�and�they�felt�it�would�be�quicker�if�it�went�

through�the�GLA�and�that�would�be�a�preferred�route,�but�it�could�have�done�the�PINS�route.��I�

would�actually�argue�that�from�a�London�point�of�view�the�PINS�route�would�have�been�far�

worse�than�the�GLA�route,�because�at�least�the�GLA�route�is�being�decided�by�Londoners�on�a�

London�scheme.��The�PINS�route�would�have�been�a�remote�inspector�coming�in.��I�think�for�the�

Mayor�to�have�taken�that�over�was�the�right�decision�and�it�is�a�good�example�of�a�severely�

stalled�site.��It�is�still�open�for,�of�course,�for�them�to�go�to�PINS�even�after�us,�but�that�is�

another�story.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��By�extension,�the�rest�of�the�panel,�I�am�assuming�

though,�without�opening�a�can�of�worms,�there�is�particular�site-specific�challenges�and�issues�

that�you�have�opinions�upon.��The�principle�of�the�Mayor�having�this�power�on�very�rare�

occasions,�very�lightly�used�is�a�good�principle,�and�while�accepted�individuals�have,�and�I�know�

James�[Murray]�will�have�opinions�that�come�in�later,�certain�opinions�about�how�it�has�treated�

their�own�particular�case.��The�principle�is�a�good�one.��Duncan�[Bowie]�and�Peter�[Eversden]�do�

you�agree�the�principle�is�a�good�one,�it�is�just�the�application�and�the�interpretation�of�that�

Mayoral�power?���

�

Duncan�Bowie�(Senior�Lecturer�in�Planning,�University�of�Westminster):��Yes.��My�own�

view�has�always�been�that�there�is�no�point�in�actually�having�a�plan�unless�there�are�

intervention�powers.��Having�a�positive�power�introduced�under�the�2007�Act�obviously�

strengthened�that�ability.��The�question,�as�we�have�been�discussing,�is�it�was�one�of�

application.��I�think�there�is�also,�bluntly,�to�be�honest,�the�issue�about�one’s�attitude�the�

balance�of�powers�between�different�levels�of�planning�structure�does�ten�do�depend�on�which�

level�you�think�has�the�most�appropriate�policy.��Clearly,�as�the�arrangements�and�components�

of�the�London�Plan�have�changed�as�there�has�been�a�change�of�regime,�Government�policy�on�

this�has�changed�and�individual�borough�policies�have�changed,�clearly�having�been�the�lead�

officer�on�the�housing�content�in�the�original�London�Plan�here,�in�a�sense�I�actually�have,�and�I�

am�on�record�from�the�last�Examination�in�Public�[EiP]�of�objecting�to�some�of�the�changes�that�

have�been�introduced.��Nevertheless,�once�those�changes�are�in�place,�there�is�a�case�for�the�

Mayor�obviously�having�the�power�to�apply�them�in�specific�circumstances.��The�difficulty�that�I�

am�focussing�on�is�the�one�of�the�balance�of�priorities�within�the�use�of�those�powers�and�the�

Page 36



 

fact�that,�in�some�cases,�including�Mount�Pleasant,�I�think�the�Mayor�has�the�balance�between�

different�policy�objectives�wrong.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��That�was�your�analysis�earlier,�yes.�

�

Duncan�Bowie�(Senior�Lecturer�in�Planning,�University�of�Westminster):��Yes.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��My�point�is,�and�then�I�will�leave�it�at�that,�I�can�

certainly�see�the�case�for�if�you�are�going�to�have�a�London�Plan�there�needs�to�be�some�

mechanism�whereby�that�London�Plan�aspiration�can�be�pursued,�in�the�teeth�of�implacable�

delay,�whilst�at�the�same�stage�I�defer�to�no�one�regarding�local�democracy�and�the�ability�to�

local�councils�to�determine�their�application.��I�know�James�[Murray]�will�come�in�later�on�that.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��The�issue�might�be�then,�Steve,�is�whether�the�Mayor,�having�that�

strategic�power,�taking�over�applications,�actually�delivers�better�outcomes�for�the�boroughs�or�

other�than�the�boroughs�might�have�arrived�at.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Yes.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Then�I�think�it�might�be�good�to�bring�James�Murray�in�now�on�

that.�

�

Councillor�James�Murray�(Executive�Member�for�Housing�and�Development,�London�

Borough�of�Islington):��As�Duncan�[Bowie]�says,�partly�where�you�have�a�feeling�for�which�

level�of�government�is�best�suited�depends�on�who�is�controlling�which�level�of�government.��

There�is�always�going�to�be�a�little�bit�of�that�playing�in.��One�of�my�concerns�is,�and�you�may�

have�covered�this�earlier�in�the�session,�but�the�Mayor�has�intervened�in�boroughs�like�Islington�

where�we�are�very�good�at�delivering�housing�numbers,�where�we�have�a�good�track�record�in�

terms�of�development�and�where�in�the�big�sites�we�want�to�get�something�agreed,�we�want�to�

get�a�development�going�on�there,�but�it�has�been�taken�out�of�our�hands.�

�

It�is�interesting�to�note,�in�terms�of�Mount�Pleasant�in�particular,�that�was�actually�with�the�

Mayor’s�office�longer�than�it�was�with�us.��It�initially�came�with�us�between�that�date�and�the�

date�when�we�were�sending�it�to�our�Planning�Committee,�with�a�shorter�time�period�than�it�

took�the�Mayor�to�make�that�decision.��So�the�idea�about�it�being�a�quicker�process�is�not�

necessarily�the�case.�

�

I�also�think�the�pendulum�has�swung�quite�far�in�terms�of�allowing�developers�to�get�away�with�

what�they�want.��I�think�part�of�the�reason�for�that�is�that�they�know�they�can�appeal�to�the�

Mayor�and�they�also�know�that�the�Mayor�is�not�always�consistent�in�even�applying�his�own�

policies,�so�they�can�actually�get�away�with�a�lot�more�in�terms�of�pushing�the�boundaries�of�the�

profit�they�can�make�from�particular�developments.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Just�from�your�relationship�with�this�particular�

application?��Because�that�is�quite�a�broad�statement�you�are�saying.��Does�that�follow�my�

Page 37



 

question�earlier�about�does�this�ability,�this�power,�give�encouragement�to�developers�to�think�

that?��Is�that�what�you�are�saying�could�work?�

�

Councillor�James�Murray�(Executive�Member�for�Housing�and�Development,�London�

Borough�of�Islington):��I�think�the�power�itself�is�an�important�power�to�have�and�it�is�a�good�

power�to�have,�but�I�think�its�application�really�determines�whether�it�is�a�force�for�the�good�or�

not.��If�it�is�applied�inconsistently�and�if�people�feel�that�they�can�just�go�around�councils�and�

appeal�directly�to�the�Mayor,�not�on�the�basis�of�non-determination�or�strategic�priorities,�but�

just�on�the�basis�they�think�they�are�going�to�get�a�better�outcome�because�they�can�push�it�

further,�then�it�undermines�the�integrity�of�the�process.��I�think�actually�having�a�Mayoral�call-in�

is�a�good�thing,�but�it�needs�to�be�applied�consistently�and�fairly.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��I�have�no�doubt�Sir�Edward�[Lister]�would�reply�to�

that.��In�fairness,�in�kind�of�a�defence,�the�numbers�are�very�low�and�we�have�heard�about�the�

potential�numbers�-�300�a�year�-�that�could�go�across�the�Mayor’s�desk,�when�the�numbers�are�

very�low.���

�

Councillor�James�Murray�(Executive�Member�for�Housing�and�Development,�London�

Borough�of�Islington):��Can�I�just�say,�even�if�the�numbers�are�low�it�is�also�about�what�

environment�you�set.��If�councils�know�that�the�Mayor�is�in�a�position�where�he�might�call�

applications�in�and�then�decide�them�very�permissibly�they�would�feel�in�a�weaker�position�

because�they�have�not�got�back�up�at�the�higher�level.��So�I�think�actually�the�number�alone�is�a�

bit�of�a�distraction.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Does�anyone�else�on�the�panel�want�to�come�in�on�that?�

�

Mike�Franks�(Chair,�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association):��Throughout�the�time�that�The�

Mount�Pleasant�Forum�and�Association�and�now�Social�Enterprise�and�a�charity�have�been�

involved�in�this,�we�have�experienced�a�profound�lack�of�understanding�of�the�role�of�the�third�

sector.��Nationally,�the�third�sector�is�pretty�weak�in�these�kinds�of�situations,�based�mostly�on�

lack�of�experience.��Everything�you�see,�starting�with�the�Skeffington
Report�in�1967�and�going�

on�from�there�talked�about�the�relevance�of�whatever�you�want�to�call�it,�the�community�sector,�

the�local�sector�and�the�‘third�sector’�seems�to�be�the�best�blanket�description.��We�are�talking�

about�battles�between�two�big�giants�and�the�inexperienced�and�weaker�components�of�this�get�

crushed�in�the�process.�

�

It�is�high�time�the�GLA,�but�boroughs�as�well,�recognise�not�just�the�body�of�professional�

experience�but�the�body�of�local�knowledge�that�exists�in�these�strategic�sites,�and�the�

relevance�of�a�remote�plan,�as�against�the�intimate�knowledge�that�is�there.��We�were�not�

involved�in�this.��We�had�very�little�contribution�to�make�to�what�I�am�reasonably�certain�would�

be�a�different�scheme�and�that�this�was�an�exercise�in�getting�bottom�line�figures�for�Royal


Mail.��I�profoundly�disagree�with�Sir�Edmond�[Lister]�about�the�description�of�what�local�

authorities�do�on�land�economics.��A�surveyor,�I�was�taught�in�my�planning,�that�land�moved�to�

its�highest�and�best�use,�but�that�is�not�quite�true�if�you�have�intervention�powers.��If�you�have�

intervention�power,�land�planning�moves�towards�a�consensus�decision�about�what�is�best�for�it�

and�that�is�not�automatic�and�also�should�not�relate�comparing�things�in�the�market.�

Page 38



 

�

There�seems�to�be�a�missing�element�of�this,�which�is�the�dialogue�and�positive�contribution,�

and,�in�our�case,�the�serious�possibility�that�we�will�build�something.��We,�The�Mount�Pleasant�

Association,�will�build�work�space�and�housing,�even�if�it�is�a�smaller�amount�in�a�larger�scheme.��

So,�we�are�much�more�a�serious�player�than�somebody�to�be�consulted�or�informed.��We�are�into�

participation�and�I�commend�to�you�‘Sherry�Arnstein's�Ladder�of�Participation',�which�is�again�in�

the�60s�she�wrote�it.�

�

I�think�that�a�different�decision�would�have�come�out�of�this�if�there�had�been�much�more�

discussion�about�the�intimacy�of�how�kids�go�to�school�in�this�area,�how�you�cross�the�road�in�

this�area,�what�is�the�history�of�this�and�that.��I�know�that�a�good�survey�will�have�done�a�lot�of�

that�but�there�is�not�the�intimate�knowledge�and�there�should�be,�and�we�intend�to�be�a�serious�

player.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��You�are�actually�in�this�case�saying�that�the�borough�did�not�take�

sufficient�notice�of�you�too?�

�

Mike�Franks�(Chair,�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association):��Yes,�I�am�afraid�so,�but�I�think�the�

borough’s�resources�are�much�less�than�the�strategic�resources�of�the�GLA�to�complement�that.��

Not�just�knock�heads�together�but�actually�to�listen,�we�could�have�contributed�much�more,�if�

the�GLA�had�been�more�into�management�of�that.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��We�are�moving�on�to�discuss�some�of�these�areas�in�a�moment,�so�

if�I�could�go�to�Steve�now.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Really�this�is�moving�on�towards,�and�it�was�touched�

on,�planning�obligations,�so�once�the�Mayor�has�taken�over�an�application.��As�I�think�we�said�

earlier,�a�lot�of�the�discussion�debate�is�around�what�springs�from�it�regarding�planning�

obligation.��I�think,�Stewart,�you�mentioned�earlier�that�you�are�involved�very�much�with�the�

boroughs�in�discussing�the�CIL�and�the�section�106�planning�obligations�and�the�benefits�to�the�

community.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��They�sign�

the�section�106,�so�they�are�signatories�to�the�obligation.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��They�would�have�to�be.��I�presume�legally�they�would�

have�to�be.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��No.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��They�don’t�have�to�be?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��No.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��No,�so�this�is�by�choice�by�the�Mayor�or�the�GLA?�

�

Page 39



 

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��It�is�our�

approach,�yes,�to�be�collaborative�and�to�engage�the�boroughs�at�all�the�stages�of�the�section�

106�negotiation.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��I�think�this�is�

a�very�important�point.��We�have�worked�very�hard�on�every�one�of�the�schemes�we�have�taken�

over�to�involve�the�boroughs�in�that�final�106�agreement,�and�indeed�the�boroughs�have�in�

every�case,�up�until�now,�signed�that�106�agreement,�so�they�have�been�satisfied�with�it,�or�if�

they�have�not�been�satisfied�with�it�they�have�acknowledged�that�we�have�come�to�the�end�of�

the�road�in�the�discussions.��Perhaps�‘satisfied’�is�the�wrong�word.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Again,�without�going�into�too�many�individual�cases,�is�

there�going�to�be�some�applications�where�the�boroughs�are,�let�us�say,�less�than�pleased�you�

have�taken�it�over�and,�therefore,�the�relationships�between�the�GLA�and�the�borough�are�a�

little�bit�rocky�at�the�beginning,�just�because�you�have�taken�the�application�over?��Still�in�those�

situations�you�get�to�the�stage�where�there�is�an�agreement�with�the�borough�that�they�are�

content�with�the�planning�obligations�agreement.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��They�

‘accept’,�I�think�might�be�the�better�word.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��They�accept�it,�yes.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��It�is�just�

important�to�stress�that�we�do�not�have�to�seek�their�signature�on�the�106�agreement�if�we�have�

taken�it�over.��We�are�perfectly�at�liberty�to�have�signed�the�106.��Of�course�if�we�sign�the�106�

we�then�take�responsibility�for�administering�the�106�at�that�point.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Yes.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��That�is�a�

positive�and�a�negative,�depending�on�how�you�want�to�look�at�it.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��I�am�assuming�clearly�there�is�going�to�be�co-

aspiration�for�the�borough�and�the�GLA�around�living�space,�about�green�space,�recreation�

space,�a�whole�range�of�matters,�but�clearly�I�guess�it�is�around�the�housing�element�that�there�

would�be�slight�disagreements�around�the�delivery.��Ultimately�it�is�within�the�GLA’s�powers,�the�

planning�authority,�to�implement,�but�at�all�times�you�want�to�take�the�borough�with�you�to�get�

the�co-signing.��Again,�there�will�be�boroughs�that�may�want�to�comment�on�it,�but�up�until�

now,�although�it�may�have�been�difficult�discussions,�you�have�always�got�to�a�stage�where�the�

boroughs�have�signed�it�off�because�they�are�where�they�are�and�they�need�to�progress�it,�in�

essence.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��We�have�

two�that�are�pending,�so�Mount�Pleasant�and�Convoys,�and�a�more�recent�one�at�City�of�

Fulham,�which�Councillor�James�Murray’s�team�will�know�very�well.��The�approach�has�been�

Page 40



 

consistent�within�the�Mayor’s�Office�and�the�GLA�that�we�start,�continue,�negotiate�and�

complete�the�section�106�arrangements�and�seek�to�secure�the�boroughs�signature�to�that�

agreement.�

�

The�approach�taken�by�the�borough�might�be�different�in�each�case,�some�accepting�the�

decision�of�the�Mayor�to�take�over�and�negotiate�the�best�for�their�communities,�obviously�they�

are�legally�bound�to�do,�and�some�that�would�take�a�more�adversarial�approach,�which�we�tried�

to�ensure�that�we�avoid�that�in�all�cases�but�we�have�to�make�sure�that�the�Mayor’s�decisions�

are�transparent,�so�we�share�all�of�the�section�106�approaches�with�the�borough�and�the�

developer,�the�applicant,�and�we�try�to�reach�agreement�so�that�at�the�end,�I�think�as�

Duncan�[Bowie]�said�earlier,�there�is�a�balanced�decision�and�there�is�an�interpretation�of�

meeting�the�London�Plan�policy�and�the�borough’s�local�planning�policy,�say�on�Affordable�

Housing,�and�obviously�the�National�Planning�Policy�Framework.��At�the�end�of�the�day�the�

lawyers�cross-check�whether�we�have�the�right�balance�and�the�interpretation�is�right,�then�

hopefully�the�borough�will�sign�the�agreement�as�with�the�Mayor.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��With�this�whole�process�it�is�a�two-part�process.��There�

is�one�issued�about�the�actual�principle�about�who�takes�the�planning�decision,�but�then�of�

course�the�second�part�was�able�to�be�made�even�with�the�most�complicated�and�perhaps�a�

more�adversarial�part�is�about�the�application,�the�setting,�the�106�and�the�planning�obligation�

to�CIL.��That�is�a�very�significant�piece�of�work�in�itself.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��It�is�quite�

intensive,�depending�on�how�each�party�to�the�106�approaches�the�negotiations.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��My�last�question�really�is�about,�as�we�said,�when�you�

get�to�the�end�of�that�process�and�all�parties�find�themselves�to�be�…�they�are�where�they�are�

and�you�want�and�agree�and�always�get�the�boroughs�to�sign�off.��This�has�not�happened�yet,�

and�that�is�within�your�power,�the�GLA�power.��I�do�not�want�to�put�thoughts�in�your�mind�-�are�

there�any�powers�for�the�borough�if�they�get�to�that�stage�where�they�are�saying,�“This�is�not�

acceptable�for�us”?��Are�there�any�powers�of�judicial�review?��There�is�a�power,�and�ultimate�

nuclear�power�for�the�borough�to�say,�“This�is�unacceptable.��We�won’t�have�this”,�has�that�yet�

been�taken�up?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��The�Judicial�

Review�(JR)�route�is�open�at�all�stages�in�the�process.��I�think�it�would�be�wrong�to�say�it�is�just�

open�at�the�end.��It�is�open�all�the�way�along�the�road.��We�obviously�are�well�aware�of�that�and�

so�are�all�the�other�parties.��It�is�our�desire�to�reach�a�conclusion�which�is�acceptable�to�all�

parties,�and�that�is�what�we�seek�to�try�to�achieve,�without�ending�up�in�the�JR�situation.��

Unfortunately,�as�we�all�know�JR�is�a�factor.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��With�all�the�11�cases�up�to�now�you�have�arrived�at�

that�place�where�there�has�been�signoff.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��Two�to�go.�

�

Page 41



 

Marcus�Bate�(Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP):��Of�course�with�two�to�go,�

notwithstanding�that,�sorry.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��Just�

clarifying�the�legal�remedy�point,�from�what�Sir�Edward�was�saying,�there�are�two�separate�

judicial�review�point�in�particular,�so�the�decision�by�the�Mayor�to�take�over�a�planning�

application�is�itself�judicially�reviewable.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Challengeable.�

�

Marcus�Bate�(Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP):��Also�then�the�decision�to�grant�

planning�permission�when�we�have�signed�the�106�that�is�also�challengeable.��They�are�quite�

different�grounds.��That�remedy�is�available�to�the�local�authority�in�both�cases,�but�also�to�an�

interested�party.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��That�was�just�for�my�own�knowledge,�thank�you,�Chair.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��I�wondered�if�James�wanted�to�comment�on�anything.�

�

Councillor�James�Murray�(Executive�Member�for�Housing�and�Development,�London�

Borough�of�Islington):��I�think�the�phrasing�that�Sir�Edward�Lister�used�about�the�boroughs�

accepting�rather�than�agreeing�the�106�is�probably�the�right�balance�of�terminology�to�use,�

because�you�are�essentially�cornered.��Although�I�appreciate�you�might�want�to�engage�with�

boroughs,�ultimately�we�know�where�the�buck�stops�and�so�there�is�a�level�of�acceptance.��

Although�again�there�are�JR�opportunities�they�are�limited�because�of�the�nature�of�JR�and�

obviously�it�runs�the�risk�of�cost,�which�we�have�to�be�mindful�of�as�a�borough.�

�

I�think�also�the�other�point�is�that�although�the�section�106�negotiations�might�be�involved,�to�

an�extent�the�die�is�cast�on�the�Affordable�Housing�element�when�the�planning�application�is�

actually�heard�and�decided�on,�because�that�is�the�point�at�which�the�overall�percentage�of�

Affordable�Housing�are�set�and�the�parameters�of�it.��Particularly�on�the�Mount�Pleasant�one,�

that�was�the�biggest�fight�that�we�were�having�as�a�local�authority�and�that�was�the�point�where�

we�disagreed�most�fundamentally,�because�we�had�our�own�independent�viability�evidence�

which�showed�that�while�more�Affordable�Housing�at�genuinely�affordable�rents�was�easily�

deliverable�on�that�site�and�it�was�very�untransparent�how�it�ended�up�being�justified�by�the�

Mayor’s�team�at�a�much�lower�level.��I�think�although�the�section�106�is�important,�the�fight�

about�the�Affordable�Housing�level�and�within�that�the�rents�that�are�being�set�comes�earlier.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Much�earlier�in�the�process,�yes.��OK,�thank�you,�Chair.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Can�I�just�very�quickly�on�that…�do�you�think�it�is�time�that�all�the�entire�

planning�process�is�transparent,�including�financial�viability?�

�

Councillor�James�Murray�(Executive�Member�for�Housing�and�Development,�London�

Borough�of�Islington):��Absolutely.��I�think�is�really�a�problem�about�viability,�because�the�

thing�about�viability�is�it�becomes�such�a�big�monster�within�development.��A�few�years�ago�

Page 42



 

there�were�very�few�planning�applications�in�Islington�that�had�viability�studies,�now�every�major�

one�has�a�viability�study�and�even�quite�a�lot�of�minor�ones�have�viability�studies�and�yet�we�are�

very�constrained�about�what�we�can�put�out�in�public�in�terms�of�the�information�with�the�

figures�in�it.��We�have�had�fights�with�developers�if�we�try�to�put�out�more�they�threaten�us�with�

legal�action�and�there�is�a�bit�of�a�back�and�forth�about�what�we�can�put�out�and�that�should�

not�be�the�case.��The�upfront�assumption�should�be�much�greater�transparency�including�some�

of�the�information�out�there�and�we�should�have�an�agreed�way�of�approaching�viability,�rather�

than�it�becoming�almost�wizardry,�where�developers�will�hire��expensive�consultants�to�try�to�get�

the�outcome�they�want�and�then�the�council�are�running�to�catch�up�to�try�to�and�unpick�it.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Can�I�just�get�a�response�back�from�Sir�Edward�on�this?��Apart�from�the�

initial�sounds�of�developers�screaming�and�throwing�papers�in�the�air,�what�would�be�the�effect�

of�making�sure�that�all�financial�viability�assessments�were�transparent�and�public?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��I�think�there�

is�a�real�difficulty�with�that.��It�depends�what�you�mean�by�the�word�‘transparency’.��Are�you�

talking�about�the�word�‘transparency’�in�sharing�the�information�properly�with�the�boroughs�and�

with�the�GLA�or�are�you�putting�that�information�out�into�the�public�realm?�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��The�public�domain,�because�there�is�information�I�cannot�see�in�order�to�

hold�you�guys�to�account,�and�I�cannot�see�it.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��No.�I�have�a�

difficulty�with�that.��I�completely�agree�there�should�be�transparency�with�the�borough,�with�

ourselves�and�I�have�no�argument�with�that�at�all.��My�argument�is�putting�it�out�in�the�outside�

world�you�are�now�starting�to�show�the�profit�levels,�you�are�now�starting�to�show�the�land�price�

details,�you�are�starting�to�show�all�of�this�and�that�is�commercially�sensitive�information.��I�

think�the�net�result�of�doing�that�would�be�to�slow�down�development�in�London�and�slow�

down�development�significantly.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Why?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��Because�this�

is�commercial�information�which�companies�will�want�to�keep�to�themselves.��It�is�part�of�their�

negotiation�with�their�own�funders�with�their�own�development�partners.��It�is�really�a�

commercial�matter�and�I�do�not�think�it�should�be�out�there.��Should�the�information�be�shared�

properly�for�a�proper�decision�with�us�as�the�planning�authorities?��Yes,�of�course,�no�question�

about�that,�but�not�into�the�outside�world.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��There�are�

recent�rulings�regarding�the�Freedom�of�Information�Act.��At�the�Tribunal�on�a�particular�

London�development,�deciding�what�should�be�released�and�what�should�be�retained�as�

described�as�commercially�sensitive�information,�so�there�are�two�cases�in�London,�one�that�has�

been�determined�and�one�that�is�pending,�which�give�clearer�guidance�on�what�should�be�a�

transparent�or�viability�assessment�and�what�should�not�be�released.�

�

Page 43



 

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Can�I�just�ask,�if�the�District�Valuation�Offices�are�asked�to�look�at�

the�viability�of�a�particular�scheme�that�is�not�public?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��No.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��That�is�just�for�the�developer?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��Nothing�is�

public.��All�the�viability�information�is�confidential,�except�of�course�there�has�been�these�two�

Freedom�of�Information�(FoI)�cases.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��We�cannot�hold�you�to�account�and�the�councillors�on�

Islington�or�any�London�borough�cannot�hold�their�planning�departments�to�account�on�any�of�

the�decisions,�because�the�elected�officials�cannot�see�the�information.�

�

Councillor�James�Murray�(Executive�Member�for�Housing�and�Development,�London�

Borough�of�Islington):��No,�councillors�can�see�it.��I�think�it�varies�between�different�councils.��

I�think�some�councils�share�information�more�widely�than�others.��I�think�some�councils�are�

taking�a�view�to�not�share�even�information�with�members�but�I�think�other�councils�do.��It�

varies�from�council�to�council.�

�

I�think�though�I�would�I�just�like�to�pick�up�on�the�way�that�Sir�Edward�Lister�was�speaking�

about�certain�information�being�confidential,�earlier.��He�sort�of�gave�the�impression�that�it�was�

only�a�few�key�numbers�in�the�report�that�might�have�to�be�confidential.��The�reality�is�that�

developers,�when�they�put�forward�their�case�for�redaction�and�so�on�they�score�out�chunks�and�

chunks�of�it,�even�like�very�seemly�innocuous�figures,�to�the�point�where�it�is�almost�

meaningless�to�put�it�in�the�public�domain.��As�a�council�we�push�back�very�hard�on�that�and�

give�back�our�alternative�and�say,�“No,�these�are�the�only�ones�we�think�you�are�allowed�to�take�

out”�and�as�I�said,�there�is�a�back�and�forth.��I�think�there�is�a�big�range�between�different�

councils�about�how�public�they�are,�even�within�their�own�members,�and�then�how�public�they�

are�in�terms�of�putting�it�further�out�there.��At�both�levels�developers�obviously�are�pushing�for�

greater�confidentiality.��I�think�it�is�our�role�to�push�back�against�them.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM:��Can�I�just�ask,�I�was�interested,�Sir�Edward,�earlier�when�you�said�it�would�

slow�down�development�if�there�was�transparency.��Why�would�it�slow�down�development?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��Because�I�

think�that�commercial�information�is�the�kind�of�information�which�companies�need.��It�would�

affect�their�stock�exchange�ratings�in�some�cases.��It�will�affect�their�relationship�with�

shareholders.��It�is�full�of�stuff�here�which�you�cannot�possibly�put�out�there,�which�would�

create�all�sorts�of�difficulties.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Possibly,�but�it�makes�more�difficulties�for�us�surely.�

�

Page 44



 

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��No,�I�do�not�

think�it�makes�any�difference.��Excuse�me�saying�so.��What�I�will�agree�with,�with�

James�[Murray]�is�there�are�very�few�people�who�actually�understand�viability�out�there,�and�I�

suspect�if�you�actually�had�some�of�these�viability�documents,�without�being�rude�to�anybody�in�

this�room,�you�would�struggle�with�them,�because�they�are�very,�very�difficult�documents�to�

read.��I�do�not�actually�think�it�helps�anybody.��I�think�it�is�why�you�employ�specialists�to�analyse�

the�information.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��I�barely�understand�the�brief�I�have�been�given�for�this�meeting.��It�is�a�

philosophical�debate�about�transparency,�but�I�do�not�see�why.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��I�want�us�to�now�focus�on�transparency�and�bring�Navin�[Shah]�in,�

but�a�number�of�you�want�to�come�in�and�it�would�be�good�if�you�did�and�then�

Peter�[Eversden],�Marcus�[Bate].�

�

Marcus�Bate�(Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP):��Do�you�want�to�go�first,�Peter?�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��Just�briefly�on�

this�point,�I�said�earlier�I�think�the�GLA�have�a�lot�of�skills�in�negotiating�on�viability�and�some�

boroughs�have�very�little.��I�would�like�to�see�the�experience�which�is�been�collected�together�all�

the�time�constantly�used�to�enhance�the�Three�Dragons’�toolkit�type�of�advice�and�methodology�

and�also�that�there�should�be�more�training�for�the�borough�staff,�because�we�want�to�see�

better�negotiations�on�the�ones�that�are�not�called�in�and�even�the�ones�which�are�referred.��The�

boroughs�could�have�got�further�with�the�kind�of�skills�that�can�be�applied�from�the�GLA�if�they�

develop�their�own�capability.��I�think�the�GLA�could�assist�in�that�with�training�and�

documentation�and�enhancing�the�kit.�

�

Duncan�Bowie�(Senior�Lecturer�in�Planning,�University�of�Westminster):��This�is�the�

point�which�I�own�up,�because�I�probably�was�the�officer�responsible�for�inventing�the�viability�

system�running�in�London�when�I�was�here�as�lead�offer�on�the�Three�Dragons�model�and�

having�read�the�original�guidance�and�the�guidance�into�the�original�London�Plan�on�this.�

�

In�those�days�it�was�as�much�about�assessing�the�justification�for�public�sector�investment.��The�

original�guidance�was�agreed�with�the�then�Housing�Corporation,�as�it�was,�about�assessing�the�

viability�to�develop.��It�was�always�a�two-part�process.��Now,�effectively,�the�public�funding�that�

is�used�for�social�rent�has�pretty�well�disappeared.��The�viability�appraisal�is�a�method�used�by�

developers�to�justify�non-compliance,�or�degrees�of�non-compliance�with�policy,�whether�it�is�a�

London�Plan�or�local�authority�level,�rather�than�actually�focussing�on�what�is�necessary�in�terms�

of�public�funding�to�add�to�what�is�demonstrable�from�the�profit�margins�of�the�developer.�

�

On�the�confidentiality�issue�it�has�always�been�problematic�when�I�originally�negotiated�the�

package�with�the�Home�Builders�Federation�on�the�original�advisory�group,�and�this�is�2003/04�

now.��It�was�on�the�basis�that�the�material�would�be�confidential�between�the�applicant�and�the�

planning�authority,�with�the�Local�planning�authority,�the�Mayor�and�in�those�days�the�Housing�

Corporation�as�funder,�where�there�was�a�funding�application.��It�was�only�on�that�basis�that�

developers�actually�participated.��Some�people�may�remember�that�lots�of�the�major�developers�

Page 45



 

objected�to�it�and�we�used�to�sign,�and�it�may�still�be�the�case,�Freedom�of�Information�

exemption�certificates�to�ensure�that�the�information�was�not�released.�

�

The�process�always�was�that�the�analysis�was�provided�to�the�decision�makers,�whether�it�was�

the�Mayor�at�the�Mayoral�planning�meetings�or�within�the�local�authority.��I�think�local�authority�

officers�or�lawyers�who�had�taken�the�view�that�the�decision-makers,�the�members,�should�not�

see�the�financial�appraisal�or�analyses�are�wrong.��That�information�has�to�be�provided�by�two�of�

the�decision-makers�in�a�form�that�is�actually�understood.��That�is�why�we�actually�introduced�a�

Three�Dragons�model,�which�not�everybody�likes�but�it�was�a�consistent�basis�which�everybody�

understood�how�it�worked,�and�it�is�true�that�there�are�consultants�all�over�London�who�spend�

their�time�manipulating�the�Three�Dragons�and�other�models�in�order�to�confuse�the�local�

authority.��That,�after�all,�is�what�they�are�paid�to�do�and�there�is�a�problem�about�the�serious�

lack�of�skills�within�local�authorities.�

�

Here�in�City�Hall�we�used�to�train�all�the�local�authority�staff,�but�it�is�no�longer�done.��City�Hall�

used�to�do�all�the�appraisals�internally�and�validate�them,�rather�than�actually�use�external�

consultants�to�do�it.��So�that�has�actually�changed�and�I�think�that�is�a�weakness.��Most�local�

authorities�do�not�have�the�capacity�in�house.��I�still�train�all�my�students�who�are�all�local�

authority�planners,�and�generally�in�London,�to�do�financial�viability�appraisals,�and�it�is�a�skill�

that�is�actually�widely�lacking.��So,�I�think�it�is�actually�very�important�that�the�City�Hall�get�back�

into�the�system�of�actually�doing�internal�validation�checks�more�regularly�than�they�at�the�

moment.��Secondly,�that�they�actually�do�provide�support�and�training�to�local�authorities�to�do�

it.�

�

There�are�various�elements�of�the�assessment�that�actually�have�been�weakened.��The�

affordability�assessment�is�now�not�part�of�the�model,�which�I�think�is�a�serious�negative�

change,�because�that�was�put�in�so�that�local�authorities�could�actually�check�the�affordability�

of�units�to�occupants.��That�is�no�longer�part�of�the�Three�Dragons�model,�and�that�was�not�

updated�in�the�revision�earlier�this�year.�

�

I�think�there�needs�to�be�improvements�but�I�am�still�generally�in�favour�of�financial�viability�

appraisals,�so�long�as�they�are�transparent�within�the�decision-making�bodies.��I�tend�to�agree�

with�the�Information�Commissioner�that�more�material�should�actually�be�made�available�to�the�

public�because�there�is�a�general�feeling�that�community�groups�are�excluded�from�the�process.��

As�Sir�Edward�[Lister]�says,�a�lot�of�the�material�in�viability�appraisals�is�problematic�in�terms�of�

releasing�it�to�the�public�arena,�although�there�have�been�cases�in�which�developers�have�put�

the�full�viability�assessment�into�planning�inspections.��In�my�view�planning�inspectors�have�

often�made�the�wrong�decisions�on�viability�cases�because�they�have�not�actually�understood�

viability�either.��It�is�actually�quite�complex.��Nevertheless,�the�more�City�Hall�can�do�to�work�

with�authorities�on�consistent�approaches�to�viability�appraisal,�and�especially�consistent�

approaches�to�the�treatment�of�land�acquisition�which�is�actually,�as�I�mentioned�earlier,�really�

the�fundamental�problem�in�all�viability�appraisals,�which�is�why�many�of�us�have�been�trying�to�

get�Government�to�clarify�the�guidance,�which�is�why�I�actually�strongly�support�the�Lyons�

Commission�report�recommendation.��I�think�one�of�the�reasons�it�is�there�is�because�I�argued�

very�strongly�that�it�went�in.�

�

Page 46



 

What�I�am�basically�saying�is�I�am�agreeing�with�Sir�Edward�[Lister]�that�actually�there�are�

problems�in�full�release�of�the�information�but�I�am�also�stressing�that�viability�appraisals�should�

be�seen�not�just�in�terms�of�the�viability�for�the�developer�but�whether�there�is�actually�a�case�

for�public�subsidy�and�also,�bluntly,�whether�the�units�are�actually�genuinely�affordable,�because�

a�lot�of�the�schemes�put�forward�by�developers�claiming�to�be�affordable�do�not�actually�meet�

the�current�affordability�criteria�in�the�London�Plan,�never�mind�the�original�criteria�in�the�

original�Housing�Supplementary�Planning�Guidance,�which�were�much�tougher,�I�have�to�say,�

and�actually�included�a�definition�of�affordability�for�social�rent�based�on�30%�net�income,�

which�we�are�years�away�from�now.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you.��I�just�want�to�bring�in�a�lawyer�on�this�point,�on�the�

viability�point,�and�then�we�will�ask�Sir�Edward�[Lister]�to�respond.�

�

Marcus�Bate�(Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP):��One�observation�from�experience�

with�our�developer�clients�and�then�one�more�general�law�to�do�with�freedom�of�information.��

The�simple�experience�observation,�and�this�builds�on�what�Sir�Edward�[Lister]�was�saying�as�an�

adverse�of�full�disclosure,�is�that�the�developer�clients�who�my�firm�act�for�and�with�are�more�

cautious�about�what�they�share�with�authorities.��Quite�simply�once�stung�they�will�then�think,�

“Well�if�I�give�it�to�Islington�and�it�is�going�to�be�disclosed�I’ll�simply�give�Islington�less,�as�we�

won’t�the�negotiation�about�redaction”.��An�interesting�cause��as�opposed�to�the�Information�

Commission,�who�have�been�very�clear�in�supporting�this�idea�that�you�need�to�have�full�and�

frank�disclosure�between�the�applicant�and�the�local�authority,�potentially�with�the�GLA.��That�is�

merely�an�observation.��I�do�not�comment�beyond�that.�

�

The�second�point�is�this�public�investment�angle�which�Duncan�[Bowie]�was�talking�about.��The�

reality�is�that�the�Freedom�of�Information�regime�already�recognises�this.��Mr�Murray�mentioned�

two�recent�cases,�both�of�which�to�an�extent�require�public�land�and�investment�to�take�their�

delivery�and�the�freedom�of�information�decisions�have�made�it�clear�that�the�level�of�disclosure�

for�that�type�of�scheme�is�much�greater�than�for�one�where�it�is�simply�private�land,�private�

investment,�because�the�public�powers�and�the�public�involvement�is�that�lesser.��I�do�not�

actually�think,�despite�what�has�been�said,�that�actually�much�needs�to�change�in�that�respect.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��OK.��Eddie,�do�you�want�to�come�in�or�not?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��I�do�not�

think�there�is�anything�more�I�can�really�add�to�what�I�have�said�on�it.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��No,�OK.��I�mean�the�training�and�so�on?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��Oh�I�see.��

Well,�I�am�afraid,�Chairman,�we�are�in�the�same�position�as�the�local�authorities.��There�is�no�

cash�and�the�reality�is�that�the�number�of�planning�applications�we�are�now�processing�is�far�

higher�than�we�have�ever�had�before.��We�are�doing�more�opportunity�area�frameworks�that�we�

have�ever�done�before.��We�are�doing�more�master�planning.��We�just�do�not�have�the�resources�

to�be�doing�something�like�this.��I�would�happily�have�a�role�here�for�that�but�the�money�would�

have�to�come�with�it�and,�to�be�blunt,�I�do�not�think�the�boroughs�have�the�money�either.�

Page 47



 

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��I�want�to�

make�sure�this�is�all�balanced,�but�we�are�trying�to�get�some�of�the�experts�to�sponsor�ourselves,�

initially,�on�the�viability�training�expertise,�so�we�have�had�some�of�the�consultants�come�in�and�

offer�free�training,�initially�with�ourselves�but�I�think�we�will�try�to�see�where�we�can�get�further�

sponsorship�to�roll�that�out.��I�think�the�caveat�there�is�that�often�the�consultants�are�

representing�in�the�commercial�sector.�

�

Duncan�Bowie�(Senior�Lecturer�in�Planning,�University�of�Westminster):��I�will�happily�

run�another�course�for�you,�as�I�used�to�do.�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��It�is�being�done,�

because�Urban�Design�London�have�conferences�on�viability�for�the�borough�staff�and�the�

officers�from�Westminster�have�given�very,�very�good�advice�to�them.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��OK,�thank�you.��That�was�drilling�down�on�a�part�of�the�

transparency�issue.��I�just�want�to�hand�over�to�Navin�[Shah]�now.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��Nicky,�

could�I�just�say�that�as�a�for�instance�Convoys�Wharf�I�think�had�four�viability�assessments�and�

the�Councillor�[Murray]�is�absolutely�right.��I�think�the�issues�around�viability�seem�to�get�ever�

more�complicated�in�some�ways�but�in�other�ways�often�are�related�to�things�like�existing�use�

value�and�what�it�may�or�may�not�be.��My�experience�of�these�things�with�viability�experts�is�

that�some�of�the�most�vociferous�disagreements�occur�in�debates�between�viability�experts�of�

what�is�and�is�not�viable,�which�I�suppose�goes�back�to�stubbornness,�because�whilst�there�are�

ambiguities�about�things�like�existing�use�value,�even�with�training�you�can�get�four�different�

experts�in�a�room�and�they�will�give�you�four�different�answers.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��OK.��I�would�love�to�go�on�about�viability�because�the�National�

Planning�Policy�Framework�has�changed�the�definition�of�it�and�I�think�that�is�really�forcing�a�lot�

of�what�is�behind�this�debate,�but�I�think�for�the�moment�we�will�just�go�with�Navin’s�question.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��It�is�leading�on�to�how�we�can�make�the�process�more�transparent,�a�greater�

level�of�accountability�and�so�on.��Peter,�you�have�been�advocating�some�kind�of�external�

scrutiny�for�the�Mayor’s�decision�to�call�in�the�planning�applications.��Would�you�like�to�expand�

on�that?�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��Yes,�I�suppose�

that�is�because�we�have�seen�the�situation�get�a�little�muddled�between�what�is�called�in�and�

what�ought�to�be�called�in,�from�our�point�of�view,�and�how�things�are�dealt�with,�which�are�

referred.��Because�there�have�been�one�or�two�specific�examples�that�have�made�us�feel�that�

those�things�are�not�really�clarified�and�we�need�them�to�be.��An�example�is�the�Brentford�

Football�Stadium,�we�felt�that�should�have�been�called�in�and�worked�on�very�rigorously.��The�

developer�could�not�afford�to�build�a�stadium�so�their�enabling�development�was�to�build�

around�it�housing�at�two�and�a�half�times�the�density�that�the�London�Plan�should�permit�as�

sustainable�and�they�could�not�afford�to�provide�any�contributions�for�infrastructure�or�

Page 48



 

affordable�housing�or�anything.��We�thought�that�was�a�very�serious�situation�and�when�it�was�

referred�to�the�Mayor�there�was�a�lot�of�content�in�the�stage�one�report.��There�were�some�20�or�

so�TfL�objections,�which�were�quite�serious.��The�North�and�South�Circular�would�come�to�a�

standstill�on�certain�occasions�that�the�local�underground�station�only�had�one�stairway�which�

was�both�up�and�down�with�no�central�rail�and�you�would�have�a�situation�with�thousands�of�

football�fans�using�that�station.�

�

A�lot�of�these�things�really�needed�looking�at�but�the�Mayor�decided�not�to�intervene�and�

allowed�the�council�to�proceed.��What�the�council�had�already�done�was�that�the�leader�had�said�

publically,�“This�must�be�passed”.��He�had�changed�the�members�of�the�Sustainable�

Development�Committee�for�that�particular�application�and�then�changed�them�again�

afterwards.��We�thought�that�all�of�this�is�getting�to�the�point�of�pressure�that�ought�to�be�

investigated�and�it�was�allowed�to�go�through.�

�

Now,�these�things�have�consequences,�this�is�why�we�want�things�properly�defined.��The�

consequence�is�that�London�Borough�of�Hounslow�has�now�said,�“If�the�Mayor�allowed�that�

excessive�density�then�we�can�replicate�it”.��They�have�now�devised�a�thing�called�The�Q�

Quarter,�which�says�that�we�can�have�that�kind�of�density�right�down�to�the�river,�in�the�buffer�

zone�of�the�Royal�Botanical�Gardens,�Kew�–�who’s�World�Heritage�Site�Management�Plan�would�

not�allow�it,�but�the�borough�says,�“We�can�do�it�because�the�Mayor�said�we�can”.��All�of�that�

will�be�perhaps�clarified�in�the�examination�of�the�draft�local�plan,�which�now�has�that�in�it.�

�

I�find�that�something�which�demonstrates�that�it�seems�that�something�went�wrong.��It�is�not�

only�a�question�of�what�do�we�think�about�call-ins,�what�do�we�think�about�non-call-in,�and�

getting�the�clarification�redefined�of�what�it�is�that�will�be�taken�into�consideration�and�then�

what�is�being�taken�into�account�can�be�scrutinised�if�we�have�the�borough,�the�communities�

and�the�Assembly�involvement�in�what�is�the�Mayor�actually�going�to�do�now,�because�there�

seems�to�be�a�need�to�call-in�or�there�seems�to�be�a�need�to�go�further�than�the�Mayor�was�

prepared�to�do�in�the�stage�one�and�stage�two�reports,�before�he�said,�“OK,�decide�it�yourself”.��

Because�in�that�case�we�have�an�approval�but�we�are�left�with�all�the�TfL�objectives�extant,�so�

what�is�going�to�happen?��We�go�ahead�with�the�development�and�then�we�get�harm�to�the�

local�environment.��This�is�why�I�think�I�want�definition�and�then�I�want�scrutiny�of�how�is�the�

Mayor�about�to�decide�what�to�do.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��Who�undertakes�the�scrutiny?��What�will�be�the�actual�mechanism?�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��Well,�I�do�not�

suppose�the�Assembly�can�because�they�always�vote�on�party�political�lines.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��Yes.�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��It�is�something�

which�ought�to�be�looked�at�carefully.��When�a�major�thing�is�referred�to�the�Mayor,�the�Mayor�

is�going�to�go�through�a�stage�one/stage�two�process,�but�if�the�borough�and�the�community�

feel�that�that�is�not�going�right�then�there�ought�to�be�some�way�of�influencing�what�the�next�

stage�will�be.�

Page 49



 

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Sorry�to�intervene,�but�you�have�been�discussing�applicants�going�

to�the�Mayor�in�a�couple�of�cases.��Would�you�say�that�the�community�and�the�boroughs�should�

go�to�the�Mayor�and�say,�“We�want�this.��We�want�you�to�take�this�over”.�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��Yes.��I�think�that�

would�be�very�valid,�if�one�sees�things�that�appear�not�to�be�the�right�things�to�be�going�

through�and�the�right�things�being�done.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��I�think�you�are�really�asking�the�Mayor’s�office�to�be�a�

quasi�planning�inspectorate�on�behalf�of�the�community�to�overturn�or�review�decisions�by�local�

authorities.�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��I�feel�that�the�

stage�one/stage�two�processes�of�referred�applications�should�require�the�Mayor�to�do�that.��If�

the�Mayor,�in�those�reports,�is�saying�to�the�borough,�“There’s�a�lot�of�things�to�sort�out”�the�

borough�then�does�not�sort�them�out�but�the�Mayor�says,�‘but�I�will�let�you�go�ahead�anyway”�

then�the�Mayor�is�allowing�the�decision�to�be�made�on�something�with�all�these�issues�extant,�

which�should�not�be.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��Marcus,�would�this�require�a�change�in�legislation,�or�what�is�your�legal�point�

of�view�in�this?��How�can�this�be�managed?��I�am�very,�very�sympathetic�with�this.��This�is�a�real�

issue.��We�do�need�to�look�at�a�clear�mechanism�which�will�allow�that�under�the�layer�of�

intervention,�but�can�it�be�done�as�it�is�effectively�without�breaching�any�laws?�

�

Marcus�Bate�(Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP):��You�would�need�to�change�the�

Mayor�of�London�Order,�as�it�currently�stands,�because�it�only�allows�the�call-in�to�be�taken�if�

there�is�a�resolution�to�refuse.��The�Mayor�can�then�takeover,�or�if�the�applicant�requests�there�

is�currently�no�right�for�the�third�party�to�activate�--�

�

Councillor�James�Murray�(Executive�Member�for�Housing�and�Development,�London�

Borough�of�Islington):��I�have�to�say�I�do�not�agree�with�the�idea�of�activating�for�the�reason�

that�Mr�O’Connell�gave.��The�Mayor�takes�out�ratifications�in�the�capacity�as�the�local�planning�

authority,�not�as�the�appeal�body�and�I�worry�that�the�two�are�slightly�different�processes,�so�

you�would�have�to�change�something�to�create�the�new�power�to�activate�the�request�for�call-in�

-�that�is�the�first�point.��I�would�say�I�do�agree�with�Mr�Eversden�that�before�we�get�to�stage�two�

it�would�be�great�to�have,�say,�a�stage�1.5�or�equivalent�which�says,�“The�Mayor�is�minded�to�

call�this�in�if�something�does�not�happen�within�a�specified�timescale”.��At�the�moment,�stage�

one�and�stage�two�are�so�far�apart.��Stage�one�is�a�very�helpful�advisory�stage�and�stage�two�is�

just�directive�at�the�end,�but�it�does�not�really�give�any�clarity,�to�anybody�involved,�precisely�

when�the�trigger�will�be�effectively�called.�

�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��There�

have�been�updates�on�cases�where�issues�like�that�have�been�raised.��I�think�they�might�have�

done�one�on�Brentford�where�specific�things�had�been�raised�and�there�is�that�gap�between�

Page 50



 

stage�one�and�two,�and�that�was�the�gap�that�was�required�by�DCLG.��They�said�you�had�to�have�

some�kind�of�deadline,�“It’s�going�to�be�six�weeks�and�that’s�it”.��At�the�time�we�said,�“You�

don’t�get�into�the�meat�of�these�things�for�eight,�ten,�12�weeks”�but�they�said,�“Well,�there’s�

the�deadline�and�that’s�what�you�work�to”.��We�do�do�update�reports,�where�that�is�going�to�be�

helpful�for�the�Mayor.�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��I�am�not�saying�

that�the�Mayor�should�call�more�in.��I�suppose�I�am�really�saying�that�I�want�the�Mayor�to�be�a�

little�tougher�in�the�stage�one/stage�two�of�the�things�that�are�referred,�because�many�of�us�

were�shocked�at�the�200�tall�buildings�which�the�New�London�Architecture�[NLA]�did�the�

exhibition�of,�and�then�there�was�the�Skyline�Campaign,�because�some�of�us�had�not�realised�

that�those�were�happening.��Looking�at�some�of�them�which�were�not�conformant�with�the�

policies�of�the�London�Plan�meant�that�some�of�these�things,�although�not�called�in�had�been�

processed�through�stage�one�and�stage�two�and�came�out�of�it,�in�some�people’s�view,�with�the�

wrong�type�of�approval,�because�what�they�would�do�would�be�contrary�to�some�of�the�policies�

in�chapter�7�of�the�London�Plan�and�chapter�3�on�density�and,�therefore,�have�a�harmful�effect�

on�the�local�area,�context�and�character�not�taken�into�account,�for�which�we�have�a�very�good�

Supplementary�Planning�Guidance�(SPG)�now,�and�infrastructure�overloaded.�

�

I�am�looking�for�a�more�rigorous�stage�one�and�stage�two�on�some�of�those�things�and�if�it�looks�

as�though�they�are�not�solving�some�of�the�issues�and�they�are�not�achieving�closer�conformity�

with�the�policies�of�the�London�Plan�then�there�should�be�scrutiny�of�why�not.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��We�have�spoken�about�call-in,�and�we�are�now�talking�about�the�

Mayor’s�ability�to�direct�refusal.��I�have�spent�eight�years�sitting�in�on�these�planning�

applications�and�stage�one�is�where�you�really�have�to�lay�down�all�the�issues�where�you�are�

minded�to�refuse�if�these�are�not�dealt�with.��Stage�two�is�where�you�assess�whether�they�have�

been�dealt�with�and�you�direct�refusal�or�you�do�not.��A�lot�has�to�go�on�in�between�in�terms�of�

making�sure�that�stage�two�is�reflected�from�stage�one.��I�do�not�know�how�much�of�that�work�is�

done.��Of�course�if�you�do�not�do�it�then�of�course�you�have�a�situation�where�the�stage�two�

and�the�approval�is�not�really�a�reflection�of�the�policies.���

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��If�I�may,�

Chair,�I�think�I�need�to�rush�to�the�defence�of�the�system�here,�in�the�sense�that�most�schemes,�

as�you�know,�in�fact�I�think�every�scheme�fails�to�comply�fully�with�the�London�Plan.��I�do�not�

think�I�have�ever�seen�one�that�has�fully�complied.��There�is�always�a�list�of�items.��Is�six�weeks�

the�right�timeline?��I�personally�do�not�think�you�necessarily�get�the�better�quality�stage�one�

report�by�having�longer�than�six�weeks.��I�think�six�weeks�is�a�good�discipline�on�everybody�to�

focus�the�mind.��Between�stage�one�and�stage�two�there�is�an�enormous�amount�of�work�goes�

on�trying�to�sort�this�out,�as�you�say.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Yes.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��Yes,�there�

are�supplementary�reports�if�there�are�big�issues�of�interest,�but�generally�speaking�the�issues�

are�sorted�out�by�stage�two.��At�stage�two�though,�there�is�often�a�judgment�call�taken�by�the�

Page 51



 

Mayor:�does�he�feel�that�the�issues�which�are�outstanding�are�ones�that�are�so�significant�that�

he�should�turn�it�down�or�take�some�other�action,�or�does�he�think�on�balance�it�is�OK.��That�is�

the�decision�the�Mayor�takes�on�the�advice�he�is�given.��In�the�case�of�Brentford�Football�Club,�

yes,�you�could�take�a�view�that�what�was�there�was�non-conformity�with�the�London�Plan,�

indeed�it�was�in�density�terms,�but�the�fact�was�the�Mayor�took�the�view�that�the�community�

gain�from�that�football�stadium�was�so�significant�that�he�was�prepared�to�allow�that�planning�

application�to�go�through�without�any�Affordable�Housing�being�required.��That�was�a�

judgement�call�on�the�issue�of�the�day.��It�was�also,�by�the�way,�the�judgement�call�of�Hounslow�

Council.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��Chair,�I�want�to�go�to�Mike�[Franks].��I�am�talking�about�the�whole�issue�of�

transparency.��Do�you�think�the�current�call-in�process�actively�involves�members�of�the�public?��

Do�they�have�enough�say,�or�any�at�all?�

�

Mike�Franks�(Chair,�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association):��Yes.��The�rules�of�engagement�can�

be�pretty�straightforward;�confidentiality�and�all�the�other�things.��Local�knowledge�can�

condemn�a�scheme�to�becoming�something�it�does�not�want�to�be�in�due�course.��There�is�a�

body�of�knowledge�about�the�nature�of�the�river�fleet�etc,�which�is�local�and�almost�like�folk�

stories,�some�of�which�are�lies�of�course,�or�happy�invention.��The�ground�conditions�in�Mount�

Pleasant�could�cost�the�developer�a�fortune.��They�are�not�dim.��They�are�aware�of�it.��They�have�

had�studies�of�it.��Local�knowledge�is�different.���

�

If�you�do�not�work�with�some�of�the�immoveable�elements�of�a�place�you�are�destined�for�the�

scheme�to�try�to�push�back�to�it.��It�is�a�characteristic.��It�will�fail�if�you�do�not�understand�it�in�

its�intimate�terms�as�well�as�all�the�big�issues,�as�well�as�all�the�creative�design.��That�is�not�just�a�

consultation�process.��It�is�also�suggesting�positive�ways�in�which�something�can�be�addressed.���

�

The�third�sector�is�extraordinary�immature�at�the�moment.��It�needs�to�be�much�more�mature�in�

the�way�it�which�it�deals�with�things,�in�other�words�not�just�a�complaining�community�action�

process�in�which�there�is�a�knee�jerk�about,�“Do�not�like�it�because�it�is�big.��Do�not�like�it�

because�it�is�powerful.��I�do�not�like�corporations”.��Any�of�that�is�immature.��We�already�have�

this�problem,�and�we�are�going�to�have�more�of�it.��Because�we�have�set�ourselves�up�as�solid�

body,�and�because�we�are�working�towards�a�plan�and�a�development�possibility,�we�will�get�the�

same�calumny�from�some�people.��We�have�already�had�a�bit�of�it.��There�is�an�educative�

process.��Unless�there�is�maturity�in�the�relationship�between�the�local�sector�and�the�rest�of�the�

players�-�strategic�players,�professional,�anything�else�you�care�to�name,�public,�private,�third�

sector�-�it�is�time�for�a�three-way�partnership.��The�stakeholders�can�put�in�a�lot�more�than�they�

are�encouraged�to�do�at�the�moment,�or�in�many�cases�not�able�to�do�because�of�immaturity.��I�

think�we�are�one�of�the�cutting�edge�processes�right�now,�and�I�hope�it�will�continue.��We�need�

to�give�respect,�and�be�respected.��At�the�moment�I�do�not�think�that�is�happening.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��To�wind�up�this�debate�on�transparency�matters,�you�have�got�a�situation�

where�for�normal�planning�applications�you�can�access�your�planning�portal�with�the�call-in�

applications.��There�is�no�GLA�portal�whereby�you�can�not�only�self,�interactively,�access�the�

portal,�but�also�put�forward�your�views�online.��You�cannot�check�the�land�for�call-in,�comments�

that�you�can�make,�as�well�as�dates�for�public�hearing�etc.��There�are�some�fundamental�flaws�

Page 52



 

and�so�on.��The�question�is�how�can�we�bring�in�greater�transparency�than�currently�exists�to�

make�the�call-in�process�more�effective?�

�

Mike�Franks�(Chair,�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association):��Can�I�make�a�point�about�the�way�

communities�see�planning?��It�is�almost�an�alien�process�to�them.��Understandably�they�have�

immediacies�about�the�condition�they�are�in.��The�idea�that�they�can�project�forward�a�

possibility�and�see�it�as�real�and�move�towards�it,�is�generally�not�in�their�experience.�

�

There�is�a�flaw�in�the�planning�process,�town�and�country�planning,�because�locally�the�world�is�

shifting.��The�two-year�timescale�that�The�Mount�Pleasant�process,�after�the�supplementary�

planning�document�until�the�decision�answer�it�and�had�to�tell�us,�we�can�only�deal�with�the�

legal�documents�in�front�of�us.��For�us�the�world�had�changed.��Many�elements�had�changed.��

They�effectively�made�parts�of�the�scheme�redundant,�or�doomed�to�fail.��There�were�additional�

development�sites�coming�up�around�that�which�were�not�part�and�parcel�of�the�debate.��For�

local�communities�planning�starts�today�and�continues�every�step�of�the�way�towards�some�

golden�future�which�does�not�generally�happen.��It�includes�public�health,�transport,�far�wider�

issues�than�the�narrowness�of�town�and�country�planning.��They�could�learn�to�make�a�solid�

contribution�about�that,�and�it�is�a�valuable�resource�if�properly�handled.���

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��I�would�like�to�

follow�on�from�that�because�I�agree�there�is�a�lot�of�naivety�and�there�is�the�inevitable,�“I�do�not�

like�it”�response.��We�are�trying�to�make�communities�more�and�more�capable�and�aware�of�the�

planning�system�so�that�they�can�work�with�the�local�authorities�in�advance�of�applications�

coming�in,�to�have�more�of�the�area�action�plans,�and�development�plan�documents,�that�

describe�what�is�expected,�even�to�the�point�where�you�have�a�planning�order�that�has�to�be�

fulfilled�by�a�developer�in�order�to�get�approval.��I�suppose�the�Localism�Act�encouraged�that.��

We�are�trying�to�develop�our�communities�to�do�more�of�it.���

�

I�have�an�example�that�one�of�our�members,�the�Brentford�Community�Council,�were�very�

concerned�that�the�town�centre�was�being�approached�by�developers�in�a�piecemeal�manner�for�

the�right�views�over�the�right�bit�of�water�and�so�on,�and�not�holistically�considered.��They�said,�

“We�have�got�to�have�a�town�centre�action�plan”.��The�Council�had�limited�resources�so�the�local�

community�group�wrote�it�and�said,�“We�have�got�retired�town�planners,�we�have�got�the�

capability”.��They�presented�it�to�the�Council�and�it�was�able�to�be�put�out�immediately�for�

public�consultation,�and�adopted�quickly�before�too�many�things�went�wrong.��I�think�more�

communities�could�do�that.��As�Mike�says,�their�aspiration�is,�“I�know�something�is�going�to�

happen.��I�would�just�like�to�help�determine�what�it�is�going�to�be”.��There�are�some�boroughs�

that�do�not�like�that�dialogue,�because�they�say,�“Our�local�plan�is�ours.��We�do�not�even�want�

you�to�write�a�neighbourhood�plan�to�bolt�on�the�bottom�of�it,�let�alone�have�you�tell�us�what�

should�be�in�our�plan”.��Others�say,�“For�heaven’s�sake,�help�us�write�it.��We�need�that”.��It�

varies�tremendously�across�London.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��Did�you�want�to�come�in�on�the�question�about�access�to�a�portal,�and�do�

you�have�any�intention�of�improving�it�to�make�it�more�interactive�and�accessible?�

�

Page 53



 

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��All�the�

Mayor’s�planning�decisions�are�on�the�website�and�all�published.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��They�are�very�difficult�to�find,�you�know.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��I�can�say�

corporately,�rather�than�planning�wise,�we�are�fundamentally�reviewing�the�GLA�website�which�

should�be�going�live�next�spring.��Planning�is�right�at�the�heart�of�that�so�planning�information�

is�going�to�be�much�more�accessible.��That�is�the�sort�of�technical�investment�challenge,�but�I�

totally�take�the�point.��I�do�not�think�there�is�any�planning�information�that�is�not�published�--�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��You�cannot�respond�currently�online,�which�normally�on�a�planning�portal�

you�can.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�Planning):��May�I�just�clarify�

one�point,�please,�if�I�may�for�a�moment?��In�most�cases�the�consultation�would�be�with�the�

borough,�not�with�us.��It�should�be�going�back�to�borough,�and�they�in�turn�refer�it�back�to�us.��

That�only�changes�where�we�take�over�a�planning�application,�and�then�there�is�a�different�set�

of�circumstances.��As�I�say,�that�is�three�applications�out�of,�you�know,�a�large�number.��Most�of�

it�is�back�to�the�borough,�and�it�is�really�a�borough�issue.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��Is�there�anything�else�that�can�be�considered�whereby�we�can�actually�make�

the�current�mechanism�more�transparent?�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��Communities,�on�

reading�a�stage�one�report,�certainly�would�like�the�opportunity�to�say,�“It�has�not�covered�

issues�which�we�though�the�Mayor�would�have�required�the�borough�to�have�sought�more�

information,�or�would�have�required�the�borough�to�change�something”.��That,�perhaps,�means�

that�what�the�Mayor�is�expecting�of�the�Mayor�does�not�meet�all�the�aspirations�of�the�

stakeholders�involved.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Stage�one�reports�are�published�--�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��Yes.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��--�so�there�would�be�an�opportunity,�actually,�for�what�

Peter�Eversden�is�suggesting�to�happen.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��People�

do�write,�email�us,�call�us,�we�have�meetings�with�local�residents.��It�is�not�the�case�there�is�no�--�

we�have�sat�here�and�we�do�the�stage�one�and�we�never�hear�anything�back.��People�lobby�the�

Mayor�--�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��We�get�a�lot�

of�letters.�

�

Page 54



 

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��By�that�time�it�is�

published.��Stage�one�is�published.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��Yes,�stage�one�is�published.��I�am�sure�you�do�get�letters�and�lobbying�etc,�

but�I�am�not�sure�the�process�is�entirely�known�as�to�how�exactly�it�operates.��The�challenge�is�

how�you�educate�your�community,�that�is�actually�the�process�--�

�

Mike�Franks�(Chair,�The�Mount�Pleasant�Association):��Sorry.��Could�we�introduce�the�

word�‘stewardship’�in�local�communities?��In�many�ways�that�is�what�they�do�because�they�are�

part�of�their�area.��They�are�not�the�people�from�outside�putting�something�into�an�area.��

Stewardship�needs�to�be�brought�in,�in�parallel�with�regulation,�because�standards�have�to�

achieved,�and�there�are�regulatory�bodies.��Lots�of�planners�see�themselves�almost�as�regulators�

of�the�plan�but�stewardship�is�a�different�concept.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��My�next�question,�I�think�we�have�skirted�around�it,�and�that�is,�is�there�a�

need�for�new�criteria�to�clarify�when�the�Mayor�can�use�his�call-in�powers?���

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Andrew?�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Sir�Edward,�we�are�going�to�be�in�a�situation�where�there�are�three�plans�

possibly�to�consider�for�an�application.��We�will�have�the�London�Plan,�the�borough�plan,�the�

neighbourhood�plan.��Which�one�takes�precedence?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��London�

Plan.��I�would�say�that�though,�would�I�not?�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��It�does�set�the�frame�of�the�plan.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Can�I�ask�the�officers?��Three�plans,�which�takes�precedence�on�an�

application?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��There�is�a�

conformity�process,�which�is�a�legal�process�so�--�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Yes.��They�are�all�adopted.��Hold�on.��We�are�going�to�be�in�a�situation�

where�there�are�three�adopted�plans?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��London�Plan,�borough�plan,�neighbourhood�plan�adopted�--�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��They�are�not�

adopted�until�they�are�assessed.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Adopted,�assessed�--�

�

Page 55



 

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��Yes.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��--�conformed,�in�place.��Plans�are�there.��Which�takes�precedence?�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��Of�course,�

the�strategic�plan�takes�primacy�because�it�sets�the�framework�for�the�local�plan,�which�sets�the�

legal�framework�for�the�neighbourhood�plan.��There�is�a�timing�issue.��If�the�London�Plan�was�

not�updated�regularly�a�local�plan�could�--��

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��That�is�the�answer?��That�the�London�Plan�takes�primacy,�despite�the�fact�

that�the�neighbourhood�plan�must�be�in�conformity�to�the�London�Plan.�

�

Stewart�Murray�(Assistant�Director,�Planning,�Greater�London�Authority):��That�is�set�

out�in�the�Government�regulations.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��That�is�an�interesting�comment,�and�one�I�fundamentally�disagree�with.��

Fundamentally�disagree�with.��I�am�astonished�that�you�are�so�clear�about�that.��I�wish�we�had�

another�two�hours�to�go�through�this�item.��We�do�not.��How�can�we�reconcile,�if�we�can,�the�

desires�of�a�strategic�planning�authority�that�is�determined�to�deliver�new�homes�during�a�

housing�crisis,�when�local�interest�might�be�more�directed�towards�place-shaping?��The��effect�

that�housing�is�the�only�game�in�town.�

�

Colin�Wilson�(Senior�Manager,�Planning�Decisions,�Greater�London�Authority):��That�is�

the�sort�of�subtext�that�has�run�through�this�meeting.��That�is�absolutely�not�the�case.��It�is�not�

the�case�that�this�is�just�a�numbers�game.��It�never�has�been.��In�fact�the�first�scheme�we�

refused,�when�Nicky�[Gavron]�was�Deputy�Mayor,�was�on�design�rounds.��I�think�we�lost�that�

appeal,�but�that�is�one�of�the�first�actions�the�GLA�took�was�on�a�scheme�about�design.��All�of�

the�things�we�have�discussed�in�here�--�we�have�often�quite�heated�debate�with�developers�and�

with�communities�and�boroughs,�about�design�issues�and�place-making.��A�lot�of�the�things�that�

we�discuss�with�[Sir]�Ed�[Lister]�are�about�place-making�on�a�weekly�basis,�on�all�sorts�of�scales�

of�schemes.��It�is�not�something�which�is�secondary.��It�is�not�wallpaper.��It�is�not�something�that�

we�do�not�resource.��We�have�got�designers�and�architects�working�in�the�team.��It�is�something�

we�take�very�seriously,�and�it�is�something�we�promote�very�rigorously.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��The�problem�I�have�got,�let�us�take�for�instance�-�and�I�know�it�is�very�

difficult�to�answer�hypothetical�questions�-�if�you�have�a�situation�where�a�local�community�has�

said�they�desperately�want�more�play�space�for�children.��They�identify�a�particular�area�where�

there�should�be�more�play�space,�and�that�is�in�their�local�plan.��Then�a�developer�comes�along�

and�happens,�through�whatever�good�fortune,�to�own�that�site�and�says�they�want�homes�on�

that�site.��You�are�saying�to�me�that�the�precedence�of�the�plan�is�such�that�the�homes�will�go�in�

there�and�the�play�space�will�not.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��No,�I�am�

sorry�I�think�I�must�disagree�on�this�point.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Good,�that�is�what�debate�is�for.�

Page 56



 

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��I�think�the�

position�is�that�it�is�a�balance�of�all�of�these�things,�as�Colin�said.��It�has�never�just�been�about�

housing.��The�boroughs�will�look�at�it�seriously,�because�they�are�all�in�need�of�housing.��We�also�

pick�up�the�play�space.��If�you�look�at�the�stage�one�reports,�play�space�-�it�is�a�good�example�

really�-�it�all�appears�all�the�time�in�our�stage�one�reports.��By�and�large�it�is�resolved�by�stage�

two.��The�play�space�may�not�be�where�you�first�thought�it�was�going�to�be,�and�it�might�be�in�a�

different�location.��In�some�cases�it�could�be�on�the�first-floor�or�the�second-floor�of�a�building�

because�we�have�used�the�flat�roof�for�it,�but�we�have�created�the�play�space.��We�do�pick�these�

issues�up�as�we�go�along.��We�regularly�pick�up�the�issue�of�mixed�use�on�employment�and�on�

retail.��All�of�those�things�we,�regularly�as�clockwork,�pick�up�and,�I�think,�resolve�to�everybody’s�

satisfaction.��I�was�expecting�the�example�you�were�going�to�make�would�be�something�like�tall�

buildings.��I�thought�that�was�where�Peter�[Eversden]�was�heading�as�well.��That�is�a�difference�

of�view.��It�is�not�particularly�a�planning�issue.��It�is�a�difference�of�view�as�to�whether�you�

should�have�tall�buildings�or�short�buildings�or�whatever.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��I�get�the�point.��This�is�not�about�the�content�of�the�plan,�it�is�the�power�of�

the�plan.��It�is�where�it�is�in�precedence.��What�I�am�worried�about�is�you�basically�said�all�that�

effort�that�people�have�put�into�developing�their�neighbourhood�plans�they�could�have�stayed�

at�home�and�watched�EastEnders�really.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��No,�that�is�

wrong.��I�am�sorry,�I�really�must�---�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Let�us�hear�from�Peter�Eversden,�shall�we?�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��That�is�what�it�sounds�like.��Unless�it�has�precedence,�the�neighbourhood�

plan�is�of�no�value.���

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Let�us�hear�from�the�--�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Chief�of�Staff�and�Deputy�Mayor,�Policy�and�Planning):��It�has�to�

conform�to�the�London�Plan,�but�it�is�not�--�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Sorry.��I�beg�--�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Shall�we�hear�from�Peter�Eversden?�

�

Peter�Eversden�(Chair,�London�Forum�of�Amenity�and�Civic�Societies):��I�think�you�are�

right,�Andrew,�that�there�is�and�there�will�be�a�lot�of�opposition�on�context�and�character�

because�it�depends�what�you�are�offered.��We�know�that�parts�of�Earls�Court�and�Kensington�at�

six�to�eight-storeys,�or�up�to�ten-storeys,�of�terraces�and�squares,�Edwardian�and�Victorian,�are�

the�highest�density�in�Europe.��A�lot�of�people�think�they�are�very�liveable�in,�and�they�are�very�

pleasant,�and�they�create�sustainable�communities�that�the�GLA�guidance�on�that�is�all�about.���

�

Page 57



 

We�are�not�getting�those�because�architects�do�not�want�to�replicate�something�that�someone�

else�designed�hundreds�of�years�ago.��They�want�their�own�iconic�landmark�type�building.��

Often�that�results�in�a�tall�building,�rather�than�a�development�of�something�which�would�have�

the�same�density�but�a�better�massing�layout�and�everything.��We�are�going�to�get�this,�I�think.���

�

We�have�the�capability�in�opportunity�areas�to�determine�that�because�of�the�size�of�area�that�is�

going�to�be�developed�we�could�have�more�of�that�kind�of�architecture.��There�are�people�who�

are�capable�of�doing�it.��Even�Peabody�design�some�things�like�that.��They�said�at�the�New�

London�Architecture�(NLA)�conference�they�think�that�brick�is�one�of�the�new�materials�that�

everyone�should�start�to�think�about.���

�

It�is�a�question�of�what�we�are�going�to�get.��You�will�get�community�opposition�if�what�is�

delivered�does�not�appear�to�meet�the�creating�sustainable�communities’�guidance,�and�the�

character�and�context�guidance.��Very�few�boroughs�have�done�context�and�character�studies�

since�the�GLA�published�theirs,�which�should�have�meant�that�they�followed�very�quickly.��We�

have�not�got�the�local�plan�content�that�would�say,�“That�does�not�fit�here”.��Also,�we�are�trying�

to�infill�some�of�the�old�estates�we�had�with�tall�buildings,�because�what�was�left�in�between�

them�was�totally�just�a�waste�of�space.��What�is�left�between�some�of�the�modern�tall�buildings�

is�a�waste�of�space�as�well�because�it�could�be�better�configured.���

�

Yes,�you�will�get�our�opposition�unless�something�is�well�designed.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��Marcus,�do�you�want�to�come�in?�

�

Marcus�Bate�(Senior�Associate,�Pinsent�Masons�LLP):��This�is�to�help�Andrew�with�the�

question�about�precedence.��Mr�Murray�briefly�says�it�is�a�matter�of�regulations,�not�policy.��I�

really�must�stress�that.��It�is�out�of�the�hands�of�the�Mayor�to�determine�precedence.��The�

precedence�test�works�differently�in�three�different�situations,�to�make�it�harder.��I�will�be�really�

clear,�on�adoption�of,�say,�your�neighbourhood�plan�in�your�theoretical�world,�the�London�Plan�

takes�precedence�for�the�reasons�of�the�conformity�test�that�Mr�Murray�mentioned.��When�it�

comes�to�determining�a�planning�application,�then�the�most�recently�adopted�plan�takes�

precedence,�thus�Mr�Murray’s�comments�that�the�London�Plan,�being�regularly�updated,�

ensures�that�it�takes�priority�or�supremacy.��The�one�that�is�interesting�to�the�disconnect�of�the�

three�is�the�decision�by�the�Mayor�to�call-in�an�application.��The�only�plan,�technically,�that�he�

needs�to�have�reference�to�is�the�spatial�development�strategy.��There�the�precedence�is�always�

the�London�Plan�regardless�of�dates,�so�the�advent�of�a�new�neighbourhood�plan�makes�no�

difference�to�the�call-in�decision.���

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��That�is�very�helpful.��Andrew,�with�your�permission,�we�can�end�on�

that�point?�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Yes.�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�(Chair):��I�would�just�like�to�say�we�have�drawn�a�lot�from�this�and�I�think�

many�things�have�come�out�of�it.��I�would�just�say�that�one�of�the�things�we�have�not�really�

explored�is�that�the�bar�for�any�kind�of�appeal,�the�judicial�review,�is�set�very�high�and�is�very�

expensive.��The�recourse�for�action�is�a�difficult�one.��The�other�one�that�I�would�just�like�to�

Page 58



 

draw�on,�and�it�really�is�underlined�by�what�you�just�said�Marcus�[Bate],�at�the�end�of�the�day,�

in�the�call-in�process,�it�is�that�flexibility�that�is�given�to�the�Mayor�to�pick�and�choose,�really,�

from�among�his,�or�her�priorities.��In�a�sense�it�is�down�to�the�Mayor,�at�the�end�of�the�day.�

�

There�is�a�lot�more�that�we�could�draw�out�of�this.��We�will�be�pulling�stuff�together.��The�final�

thing�I�want�to�ask�you�to�do�is�to�note�the�report.��Can�I�thank�all�our�guests�for�what�was,�I�

think,�probably�the�most�technical�meeting�I�think�I�have�ever�chaired.��Thank�you�all�very�much�

for�your�participation.�

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                      

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:
Summary
List
of
Actions

�

Report
to:
 Planning
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat�



Date:
22
January
2015




This
report
will
be
considered
in
public�







1.
 Summary



�

1.1 This�report�sets�out�for�noting�actions�arising�from�previous�meetings�of�the�Committee.�

�

�

2.
 Recommendation




2.1 The
Committee
is
recommended
to
note
the
outstanding
action
arising
from
a
previous


meeting
of
the
Committee,
as
listed
below.








Meeting
of
18
November
2014



Minute

item


Subject
and
action
required
 Status
 Action
by




Deadline,

if

applicable



4.� The
Mayor’s
Strategic
Planning
Decisions




GLA�planning�officers�agreed�to�supply�the�
Committee�with�some�statistics�around�the�number�
of�London�planning�applications�which�are,�and�
which�are�not,�determined�within�the�boroughs’�16�
week�target.��
�

�

�

�

Awaiting�

response.�

�

�

�

GLA�

planning�

officers�

�

�

�

n/a�

�

�

�




























Agenda Item 4

Page 61



 









List
of
appendices
to
this
report:




None�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�
All�agenda�papers�and�minutes�for�meetings�of�the�Planning�Committee.�

�

Contact�Officer:� John�Johnson,�Committee�Officer��

Telephone:� 020�7983�4926�
E-mail:� john.johnson@london.gov.uk��
�

Page 62



 

                                                                  

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458


 

Subject:�Localism
in
London
Report
to:
 Planning
Committee



Report
of:

Executive
Director


This
report
will
be
considered
in
public
��




1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�seeks�formal�agreement�for�the�Committee’s�report

the�implementation�of�the�Localism�agenda�in�London.




2.
 Recommendation�


2.1
 That
the
Committee
agrees
its
report


Appendix
1
to
the
report.

�




3.
 Background





3.1� In�May�2010,�the�Government�announced�“the�time�has�come�to�disperse�power�more�widely�in�

Britain�today.”1��The�subsequent�Localism�Act�2011�introduced�a�series�of�measures�that�were�

designed�to�shift�power�away�from�central�government�towards�local�people.�Localism�is�an�attempt�

to�devolve�power�by:� �

• Giving�new�freedoms�and�flexibilities�for�local�government

• Establishing�new�rights�and�powers�for�communities�and�individuals

• Reforming�the�planning�system�to�make�it�more�democratic�and�more�effective

• Ensuring�that�decisions�about�housing�are�taken�locally

�

3.2� Reforms�stemming�from�the�Localism�Act�include�new�

individuals�to�shape�their�neighbourhoods�and�changes�to�the�planning�system�designed�to�make�it�

more�democratic.   
�
3.3�� Since�2012�the�Planning�Committee�has�been�monitoring�the�progress�of�two�aspects�of�localism�

neighbourhood�planning�and�the�community�right�to�bid�
London.��The�Committee’s�first�review�of�community�involvement�in�planning�culminated�with�the�
publication�of�a�report�on�the�role�of�neighbourhood�plans�in�Februa
followed�this�up�in�October�2013�with�a�review�of�the�progress�in�London�towards�establishing�

                                                 
1�Coalition�Agreement,�May�2010�
2�http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/NBH%20Planning_v3%20AB.pdf���

                                                                     

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


Localism
in
London�
Committee



Executive
Director
of
Secretariat
 Date:
22
January
2015



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public


seeks�formal�agreement�for�the�Committee’s�report�that�updates�the�position�in�terms�of�
the�implementation�of�the�Localism�agenda�in�London.�

the
Committee
agrees
its
report
Localism
in
London:
What’s
the




In�May�2010,�the�Government�announced�“the�time�has�come�to�disperse�power�more�widely�in�

The�subsequent�Localism�Act�2011�introduced�a�series�of�measures�that�were�

designed�to�shift�power�away�from�central�government�towards�local�people.�Localism�is�an�attempt�

Giving�new�freedoms�and�flexibilities�for�local�government�

Establishing�new�rights�and�powers�for�communities�and�individuals�

Reforming�the�planning�system�to�make�it�more�democratic�and�more�effective

Ensuring�that�decisions�about�housing�are�taken�locally�

Reforms�stemming�from�the�Localism�Act�include�new�rights�and�powers�for�communities�and�

individuals�to�shape�their�neighbourhoods�and�changes�to�the�planning�system�designed�to�make�it�

Committee�has�been�monitoring�the�progress�of�two�aspects�of�localism�
neighbourhood�planning�and�the�community�right�to�bid�–�to�see�how�they�have�been�adopted�in�

first�review�of�community�involvement�in�planning�culminated�with�the�
publication�of�a�report�on�the�role�of�neighbourhood�plans�in�February�2012
followed�this�up�in�October�2013�with�a�review�of�the�progress�in�London�towards�establishing�

http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/NBH%20Planning_v3%20AB.pdf��� 

 

22
January
2015�

dates�the�position�in�terms�of�

Localism
in
London:
What’s
the
Story?
as
set
out
at


In�May�2010,�the�Government�announced�“the�time�has�come�to�disperse�power�more�widely�in�

The�subsequent�Localism�Act�2011�introduced�a�series�of�measures�that�were�

designed�to�shift�power�away�from�central�government�towards�local�people.�Localism�is�an�attempt�

Reforming�the�planning�system�to�make�it�more�democratic�and�more�effective�

rights�and�powers�for�communities�and�

individuals�to�shape�their�neighbourhoods�and�changes�to�the�planning�system�designed�to�make�it�

Committee�has�been�monitoring�the�progress�of�two�aspects�of�localism�–�
to�see�how�they�have�been�adopted�in�

first�review�of�community�involvement�in�planning�culminated�with�the�
ry�2012.2��The�Committee�

followed�this�up�in�October�2013�with�a�review�of�the�progress�in�London�towards�establishing�

Agenda Item 5

Page 63



        

neighbourhood�planning3�and�how�provisions�in�the�Localism�Act�that�allow�the�listing�of�community�
assets�are�being�used.4��




4.
 Issues
for
Consideration�


4.1� On�20�November�2014�the�Committee�published�a�short�draft�report�monitoring�the�progress�made�

in�the�12�months�since�the�Committee’s�last�meeting�on�the�issue.��It�contains�a�number�of�questions�

for�the�wider�stakeholder�community�designed�to�assess�how�Localism�can�be�progressed�in�London.��

The�Committee�is�recommended�to�formally�agree�the�report�Localism�in�London:��What’s�the�story?�

as�set�out�at�Appendix�1.���

�

4.2� Key�findings�of�the�report�include:�

• Progress�in�London�seems�to�be�disappointingly�slow.��Fewer�than�80�of�London’s�1,200�
neighbourhoods�have�expressed�any�interest�in�the�process.���

• Only�one�neighbourhood�plan�has�been�adopted�and�is�now�influencing�the�development�of�
a�local�area.���

• The�evidence�suggests�that�the�legislation�was�designed�for�smaller,�more�homogenous�areas�
than�London.���

• London’s�complex�network�of�mixed�communities�with�diverse�interests�seems�to�make�even�
defining�neighbourhood�areas�a�difficult�and�time�consuming�process��

• Neighbourhood�forums�need�clear�legitimacy,�access�to�the�right�resources�(financial�and�
human)�and�need�adequate�support�and�advice.���

• Where�these�obstacles�are�not�so�significant,�in�areas�such�as�Westminster�and�Camden,�
neighbourhood�planning�is�much�further�advanced.�

• In�terms�of�the�community�right�to�bid�–�the�right�for�communities�to�take�over�buildings�and�
facilities�of�local�community�value�–�the�picture�is�a�little�more�encouraging.���

• There�are�now�more�than�100�listed�assets�of�community�value,�and�the�numbers�are�growing�
quickly.��

• Approaches�to�listing�these�assets�by�boroughs�to�be�inconsistent�and�the�necessary�skills�
required�by�local�communities�difficult�to�bring�together.���

• The�analysis�indicates�that�there�is�some�way�to�go�before�the�Government�can�back�up�its�
claim�that�“neighbourhood�planning�is�proving�to�be�one�of�the�Government’s�most�popular�

reforms”.�



4.3� The�report�includes�a�number�of�questions�directed�to�stakeholders�designed�to�understand�how�

these�aspects�of�the�Localism�agenda�can�be�taken�forward�in�London.���
�

4.4� Responses�to�these�questions�will�be�reported�back�to�the�Committee�at�a�future�meeting.�

�

5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1 The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�

                                                 
3
 http://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s29408/13-10-10-Neighbourhood-Planning.pdf 
4
 http://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s29409/13-10-10%20Community%20Assets%20Report.pdf 

Page 64



        



6.
 Financial
Implications

�
6.1 There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�to�the�GLA�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�
List
of
appendices
to
this
report:


�
Appendix�1�–�Localism�update�report�–�Localism�in�London:��What’s�the�Story?�
�
�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�

Contact�Officer:� Paul�Watling,�Scrutiny�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4393�

Email:� scrutiny@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee 

Localism in London 

What's the story? 

November 2014 

Page 67



  

 

Planning Committee Members 

  

Nicky Gavron (Chair) Labour 

Steve O’Connell (Deputy Chair) Conservative 

Tom Copley Labour 

Kit Malthouse Conservative 

Navin Shah Labour 

 

Summary 

Reforms stemming from the Localism Act include new rights and powers 

for communities and individuals to shape their neighbourhoods and 

changes to the planning system designed to make it more democratic.   

Since 2012 the Planning Committee has been monitoring the progress of 

two aspects of localism – neighbourhood planning and the community 

right to bid – to see how they have been adopted in London.   

The Committee has now produced this report that monitors the progress 

made in the 12 months since the last meeting on the issue (October 2013), 

and contains a number of questions for the wider stakeholder community 

designed to assess how Localism can be progressed in London.   

 

Contact: 

Paul Watling 

Scrutiny Manager 

email: paul.watling@london.gov.uk 

Tel: 0207 983 4393 

 

 

Page 68



  

 

Contents 

Executive summary 5 

Introduction 7 

Neighbourhood planning 8 

Neighbourhood planning in London - where are we now? 12 

The Community Right to Bid - Assets of Community Value 23 

The way forward – what next? 29 

Endnotes 31 

Orders and translations 34 

 

 

 

  

Page 69



  

 

 

 

Page 70



  

 

Executive summary 

This report monitors the progress made on various aspects of the 

Localism agenda in London over the last 12 months and contains a 

number of questions for the wider stakeholder community designed to 

assess how Localism can be progressed in the capital.   

Localism is a key part of the Government’s intention to devolve power to 

local communities to enable them to shape their neighbourhoods.  Since 

2012 the Planning Committee has been monitoring the progress of two 

aspects of localism – neighbourhood planning and the community right to 

bid – to see how they have been adopted in London. 

Currently, progress in London has been slow.  Around 80 of London’s 

1,200 neighbourhoods, that cover 624 electoral wards, have expressed 

any interest in the process.  One neighbourhood plan has so far been 

adopted and is now influencing the development of a local area.  It is 

difficult to imagine more than a handful of plans will be in place by the 

time of the next election – some three years after the legislation came 

into effect. 

The reasons for this are difficult to pinpoint, but there is evidence to 

suggest that the legislation was designed for smaller, more homogenous 

areas than London.  London’s complex network of mixed communities 

with diverse interests seems to make even defining neighbourhood areas 

a difficult and time consuming process – and this is just the first stage of 

the process. 

In 2012, the Planning Committee highlighted the issues that need to be 

addressed if neighbourhood planning is to be a success in London.  

Neighbourhood forums need clear legitimacy, access to the right 

resources (financial and human) and need adequate support and advice 

to successfully navigate the many steps required to develop a 

neighbourhood plan.  Our analysis of the current situation indicates that 

these factors are still holding back the progress of neighbourhood 

planning.  Where these challenges have been met, in areas such as 

Westminster and Camden, neighbourhood planning is much further 

advanced. 

In terms of the community right to bid – the right for communities to take 

over buildings and facilities of local community value – the picture is a 

little more encouraging.  The process is simpler than developing a 

Page 71



  

 

neighbourhood plan and perhaps more tangible to local people.  There 

are now more than 100 listed assets, and the numbers are growing 

quickly.  

However, we have found the approach to listing these assets by boroughs 

to be inconsistent and the necessary skills required by local communities 

difficult to bring together.  There have been successes – valued local 

amenities such as pubs and community halls are now safely owned and 

run by communities.  But there have been some unexpected applications 

of the legislation – a group of skateboarders has managed to counter a 

multi-million redevelopment plan by successfully applying for and 

receiving a listing.  The case even attracted Mayoral interest and support 

for the skateboarders. 

 

 

 

 

Page 72



  

 

Introduction 

In May 2010, the Government announced “the time has come to disperse 

power more widely in Britain today.”
1 

  

The subsequent Localism Act 2011 introduced a series of measures that 

were designed to shift power away from central government towards 

local people. Localism is an attempt to devolve power by:  

• Giving new freedoms and flexibilities for local government 

• Establishing new rights and powers for communities and individuals 

• Reforming the planning system to make it more democratic and more 

effective 

• Ensuring that decisions about housing are taken locally 

Reforms stemming from the Localism Act include new rights and powers 

for communities and individuals to shape their neighbourhoods and 

changes to the planning system designed to make it more democratic.   

Planning shapes the places where people live and work and it is right that 

local people should be involved in the process of deciding local priorities.  

Since July 2011, the London Assembly’s Planning Committee has been 

monitoring the implementation of these reforms to assess how 

community involvement in planning is changing.
2
   

This report provides the first overview and assessment of how far 

London’s communities have managed to secure “a greater sense of 

ownership over decisions that make a big difference to the quality of their 

lives”.
3
  It looks at how two aspects of the Localism agenda, the 

establishment of neighbourhood planning and the right for communities 

to nominate and protect assets of community value, are playing out in 

London. 

The Committee is keen to understand how Localism can be progressed in 

London.  The final section of this report contains a number of questions 

for the wider stakeholder community and the Committee would welcome 

positive suggestions for how this part of Localism can be taken forward. 

 

Page 73



  

 

Neighbourhood planning 

The Localism Act 2011 introduced statutory neighbourhood planning to 

give communities direct power to develop a shared vision for their 

neighbourhood and shape the development and growth of their local 

area through their own Neighbourhood Plan.  

“They are able to choose where they want new homes, shops and offices 

to be built, have their say on what those new buildings should look like 

and what infrastructure should be provided, and grant planning 

permission for the new buildings they want to see go ahead.”
4
 

An adopted neighbourhood plan forms part of the borough development 

plan and sits alongside the Local Plan prepared by the local planning 

authority.  Decisions on planning applications will be made using both the 

Local Plan and the neighbourhood plan, and any other material 

considerations.   

What a Neighbourhood Plan can and cannot do 
A Neighbourhood Plan can: 

• Decide where and what type of development should happen in the 

neighbourhood. 

• Promote more development than is set out in the borough plan. 

• Include policies, e.g. design standards, which take precedence over 

policies in the borough plan. 

A Neighbourhood Plan cannot: 

• Conflict with the strategic policies in the borough plan. 

• Be used to prevent development that is included in the borough 

plan. 

• Be prepared by a body other than a parish or town council or a 

neighbourhood forum. 

Source: http://www.planninghelp.org.uk/improve-where-you-live/shape-your-local-

area/neighbourhood-plans/some-general-principles-for-neighbourhood-plans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 74



  

 

 

Typical things that a Neighbourhood Plan might include: 

• The development of housing and bringing vacant or derelict housing 

back into use. 

• Provision for businesses to set up or expand their premises. 

• Transport and access (including roads, cycling and walking). 

• The development of schools, places of worship, health facilities, and 

leisure facilities. 

• The restriction of certain types of development and change of use. 

• The design of buildings. 

• Protection and creation of open space, play areas, parks, gardens. 

• Protection of important buildings and historic assets. 

• Promotion of renewable energy projects, such as solar energy and 

wind turbines. 

 

Will it work in London?  

In March 2014 the Parliamentary Under-Secretary of State for 

Communities and Local Government said that “neighbourhood planning is 

proving to be one of the Government’s most popular reforms.  Nearly 

1,000 communities across England are working on neighbourhood plans, 

and all eight of the plans to go to referendum thus far have commanded 

popular support.”   

London, however, faces particular difficulties in developing 

neighbourhood plans.  Previous work by the Committee
5
 identified a 

“London” dimension that makes the underlying assumptions behind the 

push for neighbourhood planning far more challenging in the capital than 

elsewhere.  Indeed, we have heard views that the legislation is primarily 

aimed at rural communities
6
 and will not work in complex urban 

geographies.  

Small towns and villages have obvious boundaries, often parish councils, 

by which communities define themselves.  London, in contrast, is a 

uniquely tangled urban area.  Self-defined communities often cross local 

authority boundaries, and may be fragmented or mobile.   

Residents may live and work in different parts of the city.  In many parts 

of London – particularly central and inner London – transient and highly 

diverse communities live in and among areas of national and 

international significance.  Communities in London exhibit wide variations 

in income levels, housing tenures, age ranges and occupations and there 

can be high population turnover. 

Page 75



  

 

All of these factors can make it hard to develop a shared vision for a 

‘neighbourhood’ in London.   

Who can form a neighbourhood forum? 
In London neighbourhood plans will most likely be produced by 

neighbourhood forums.  These can be existing community or business 

groups, or local residents, workers or businesses may set up a new 

group.  The Localism Act 2011 and Neighbourhood Planning 

Regulations 2012 specify the groups must: 

• Have at least 21 members.  

• Be established to promote the well-being of the neighbourhood 

area.   

• Be open to new members.  

• Have a written constitution.  

• Have taken reasonable steps to secure membership from residents, 

business and local elected members across the neighbourhood area.  

To be formally designated as a Neighbourhood Forum the group must 

apply to the Local Authority for the proposed boundary of the 

Neighbourhood Plan area to be formally consulted on and then 

designated. Once a designation is made, no other organisation may be 

designated for that area. 

Source: The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (Part 3) 

 

In early work the Committee therefore sought to identify high-level issues 

that need to be addressed by individuals coming together to successfully 

clear all the hurdles to make a neighbourhood plan.  These are: 

• Clear legitimacy:  Groups need to ensure their plans are truly 

representative of local people, and local authorities must have a 

legitimate process in place to consider it so people have faith in the 

system. 

• Realistic about resources:  Groups need to realistically assess their 

strengths and weaknesses in areas like knowledge of the planning 

process, communication skills and leadership. 

• Support for stakeholder management:  The Mayor, borough planners 

and ward councillors all have a role to play in providing support and 

advice to local groups.  Relationships with other neighbourhood 

planning bodies across London – and even beyond – are essential to 

share successes and ways around any difficulties. 

Page 76



  

 

The analysis provided below suggests that local groups are struggling to 

address these issues and this is therefore restricting the progress London 

is making with neighbourhood plans. 

Page 77



  

 

Neighbourhood planning in London 

- where are we now? 

Neighbourhood planning came into effect in April 2012.  Producing a 

neighbourhood plan requires a neighbourhood forum to successfully 

negotiate a seven stage process: 

1 Designating a neighbourhood area (and if appropriate a 

neighbourhood forum) 

2 Preparing a neighbourhood plan  

3 Pre-submission consultation on a neighbourhood plan 

4 Submission of a neighbourhood plan  

5 Independent examination of a neighbourhood plan 

6 Referendum on whether a neighbourhood plan should come into 

legal force 

7 Making of the neighbourhood plan - bringing it into legal force 

By February 2013, some 60 areas of London had expressed interest in 

developing plans for their communities.
7
  Six areas were successfully 

recognised by their local authorities as valid neighbourhood forums. 

As of September 2014, 78 areas had registered interest in the process and 

more than half (48) have received designation as recognised 

neighbourhood forums.  Recognition, however, is only the first of the 

seven steps. 

Progress on subsequent stages has been slow.  Only two neighbourhoods 

in the whole of London have made significant progress.  One, Norland in 

Kensington and Chelsea, has an adopted plan (see summary box below).  

Another, Fortune Green and West Hampstead in the London Borough of 

Camden (recognised in May 2013), has currently reached the third stage 

of the process.  It has submitted the final version of its neighbourhood 

plan to Camden Council for a six week consultation period that closed on 

31 October 2014. 

Page 78



  

 

The Norland neighbourhood plan 

In the whole of London only one neighbourhood, Norland in the Royal 

Borough of Kensington and Chelsea, has successfully completed all 

seven stages.   In the referendum, held on 5 December 2013, 74 per 

cent voted in favour of the plan (on a 26 per cent turnout).  Norland 

now has a neighbourhood plan that was adopted in March 2014 that 

the council must take into account when deciding applications for 

development.   

 

“As any highly desirable inner London conservation area, Norland has 

been subject to many new development pressures.  This 

neighbourhood plan seeks to promote positive growth and 

development in the area.” 

 

Source: Neighbourhood Plan http://www.rbkc.gov.uk/pdf/NNP-Ch1,2-lowres.pdf 

 

 

 

Of the 78 areas that have expressed interest, the experience of the 

Highgate neighbourhood forum is a typical example of the process being 

worked through in other areas of London.  In this instance the need for 

cross-boundary recognition was an added complication. 

 

Page 79



  

 

The Highgate Neighbourhood Plan 
In January 2012, amenity groups, residents' organisations and 

individuals in Highgate, supported by councillors from Camden and 

Haringey, decided to set up a forum with the aim of developing a 

neighbourhood plan.  The neighbourhood straddles two boroughs and 

three wards and represented the first cross boundary Forum.  The 

forum was designated in December 2012. 

As well as extensive community engagement the forum set up five 

working sub-groups to look at different aspects of the neighbourhood 

plan.  These were: 

• Economic Activity. 

• Open Spaces and the Public Realm. 

• Social and Community (including Culture). 

• Traffic and Transport. 

• Development and Heritage. 

Sustainability was to run through each of the groups.  Over 50 people 

worked in the subject groups to research and write policy for the 

neighbourhood plan.  

From this a draft plan was produced in September 2013.  However 

many of the aspirations of the neighbourhood could not be supported 

as policy and as a result the plan stalled.  The forum applied for both 

financial and direct support from Locality and they were awarded 

nearly £7,000 and also direct assistance from Planning Aid.   

The forum, recognising that it did not have sufficient skills in this area, 

used part of their funds to employ a specialist to write the plan.  This is 

currently being undertaken and it is hoped to have this completed by 

the end of 2014, after which the draft will be published as part of a six 

week consultation exercise.  Following amendments, it will then go to 

an Independent Examiner appointed by Camden and Haringey Councils.  

If accepted that it complies with the Councils' Local Plans, the Regional 

Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework, the Councils will 

organise a referendum. 

Assuming all goes well then the Plan should be published in mid-2015, 

some 3 ½ years from inception. 

 

 

Page 80



  

 

Very few areas have expressed an interest in local plans…  

Seventy-eight neighbourhoods in London have begun to engage in the 

process, but to set this figure in context, there are 624 electoral wards in 

London and the London Plan identifies some 1,200 neighbourhoods in 

relation to local shopping areas. 

The legislation does not set a high bar in terms of criteria for establishing 

a neighbourhood forum that can be recognised by a local authority.  Only 

21 individuals are required to establish a forum, and these can be 

residents, workers or elected councillors for the area.  So, why have 

relatively so few neighbourhood forums been formed and recognised?   

The answer, in part, is probably reflected in London’s unique composition 

and the difficulties of satisfying the requirements for a commonly agreed 

geographical area when there are many distinctive communities living 

within the same part of the city.  

As the City of Westminster commented “… Trying to transpose it [the 

legislation] into an incredibly complex area like the heart of a 

metropolitan global city, it is quite an uneasy fit because it is very easy to 

have community groups when you have a few hundred people, it is a lot 

more difficult … actually trying to find out how you represent Soho when 

you have people that are in the media industries, you have the sex 

industry, you have restaurants, you have bars and clubs, you have people 

that are there 24/7 who know the place and you have residents; trying to 

actually get that to gel together is incredibly complex.”
8
 

As our earlier work highlighted questions of establishing a group’s 

legitimacy, in terms of being truly representative, is a challenge for 

neighbourhood forums and has put a further brake on their formation. 

For example, disagreements in Tower Hamlets have led to the failure of a 

proposed neighbourhood forum in Wapping to gain recognition from the 

local authority.
9
  The council was "not satisfied that the proposed forum 

is representative of the local community to an extent that will lead to 

successful neighbourhood planning within the Wapping area".  The area 

application included St Katharine Docks to the west of Wapping, but local 

group the Friends of St Katharine Docks "strongly objected" to its 

inclusion. 

There have been challenges in explaining the new role and structure of 

neighbourhood forums and how those will be different from [traditional] 

community groups, for example, the fact that the membership has to be 

open.  “Some neighbourhood amenity societies have found it odd that 

Page 81



  

 

the membership has to be open to people who work in the area in 

addition to those that live in an area”.
10

 

Yet another complication arises from the fact that only one 

neighbourhood plan and forum can be produced for each designated 

neighbourhood area.  With competing applications from different groups 

with overlapping geographical boundaries, local authorities are placed in 

a difficult and time consuming mediation role, further hindering the 

ability for a forum to jump the first hurdle. 

…with almost half of activity in Westminster and Camden  

“People interested in having a neighbourhood forum under the new 

system are very much clustered in the centre.”
11  

 

We have found that the boroughs of Westminster and Camden account 

for 46 per cent of interest expressed so far in establishing neighbourhood 

forums.  More than one third of London boroughs (12) have no 

community expressing interest in neighbourhood plans. 
12

 

The boroughs with no community interest are mainly in outer London and 

are varied in terms of affluence and development pressure.  However, 

this is not to say they do not contain established amenity societies, many 

that have been active and effective for some considerable time, that 

could spark interest in a more formal role in neighbourhood planning.   

Conversely, almost the whole of Westminster is now covered by 

designated neighbourhood forums – 21 in total, with three more forums 

awaiting formal recognition.
13 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



  

 

 

 

 

 

A number of reasons might explain this concentration of interest and 

activity. 

Boroughs with historically large numbers of civic and amenity societies, 

and with established experience of supporting those groups, may be in a 

better position to react to neighbourhood planning applications.  

Historically, Westminster has always had very active engagement in 

planning.  Prior to the Localism Act, it had 19 amenity societies that were 

fully involved in both policy making and in response to applications and 

commenting on them. Westminster also has seven business improvement 

districts and the first parish council in London for 60 years in Queen’s 

Park. 

 48 - Area/forum designated 

 12 - Designation application submitted 

 18 - Interest expressed 

Neighbourhood planning forums in London – October 2014

Page 83



  

 

Another factor may be the response in one area to the creation of a 

forum in a neighbouring area: “there are others happening in my borough 

so we have to have one, do we not?”
14

  Thus there are suggestions that 

the perceived threats of adjoining neighbourhoods developing policies 

that might affect other areas has led to reactive moves in neighbouring 

areas.
15 

 There may be a threshold above which a critical mass is reached 

that will stimulate the interest in neighbourhood planning.   

There is a perception that the level of expertise that is going to be 

required to undertake neighbourhood planning is beyond the skills of a 

neighbourhood. “Many of the groups have said they are very daunted by 

the prospect of having to draft an evidence-based neighbourhood plan 

and also even completing the initial consultation.”
16

  A lack of capacity of 

the local community to organise and to work effectively through the legal 

and administrative requirements of the system may be linked to areas 

where neighbourhood planning has not taken off may reflect.   

 

What happened to the “front runners”?  
In February 2012, the Committee reported on the status of seven areas 

of London that had responded to a Government invitation to lead the 

way in neighbourhood planning and were defined as ‘front runners’.
17

 

By October 2014 only four of these areas have been recognised by their 

local authority and two have submitted an application for recognition.  

The final neighbourhood of the original seven has given up on the idea 

of producing a plan and is, instead, focussing on efforts to influence 

Kensington and Chelsea’s basement development policy.
18

 

This slow progress is largely reflected nationally, with only 27 

neighbourhood plans outside London passing a referendum. 

 

 

Notwithstanding the issues of capacity in the neighbourhood to progress 

this type of plan, and the hurdles surrounding area definition and 

legitimacy that need to be overcome, the cost of support has been 

mentioned by a number of commentators as one further brake on 

progress.
19

 

Initially, local authorities were only able to ask the Government for 

£5,000 per neighbourhood forum with a total cap of £20,000 per local 

authority.  In an area like Westminster with more than 20 active forums 

Page 84



  

 

"there has to be lots of investment by the city council in assisting with 

neighbourhood planning which we are legally required to do…  This 

seems to me to be a full-time job for at least a handful of planners."
20  

 

Boroughs have to make hard financial choices.  Brent, for example, noted 

the impact of designating a neighbourhood forum: “either additional staff 

resources will be necessary to support neighbourhood planning, 

depending upon the number of Plans that are taken forward, or staff 

resources will be diverted from other plan-making projects to provide 

support and advice.”
21

 

Planning Aid for London has suggested that some of those 

[neighbourhood planning applications] going on in Camden could take 

three years and cost £80,000 to £100,000 to produce.
22

  And at the end of 

the process is a referendum – the one for Queen’s Park parish council, a 

similar size to a neighbourhood, cost £23,000.
23

 

The cost implications are significant.  Westminster alone is facing a 

£500,000 bill for referendums should all the neighbourhood forums 

progress to the final stage alongside the salary costs of “at least a handful 

of planners” for some years to come. 

Furthermore, some commentators have suggested that support from 

locally elected councillors may not be as forthcoming as was envisioned 

by the Government.  Neighbourhoods rarely tie in with wards. Ward 

boundaries and borough boundaries divide neighbourhoods.
24

  Many 

groups “want cohesive planning for their neighbourhood and sometimes 

the councillors find that a bit challenging.”
25

 

Government reform to speed up the process 

The Government is concerned about the time it is taking for 

neighbourhood forums to be recognised.  In July 2014, the Government 

consulted on proposals that will make it easier for residents and 

businesses to come together to produce a neighbourhood plan.
26

  

New measures include requiring local planning authorities to decide 

whether to designate certain neighbourhood areas within 10 weeks and 

removing the minimum six-week consultation period. 

Neighbourhood forums would, however, still need to consult and win a 

local referendum on the final neighbourhood plan. 

 

Page 85



  

 

Neighbourhood planning in London – an evaluation 

Currently, progress towards neighbourhood planning in London seems to 

be slow.  From an analysis of activity to date, it would be difficult to 

imagine more than a handful of neighbourhood plans will be in place by 

the time of the next election – some three years after the legislation 

came into effect. 

The reasons for this are difficult to pinpoint, but there is evidence to 

suggest that the legislation was designed primarily for smaller, more 

homogenous areas than can be found in London.  London’s complex 

network of mixed communities with diverse interests seems to make 

even defining neighbourhood areas a difficult and time consuming 

process.  This is just the first stage of the process. 

Some parts of London have overcome this barrier but they appear to be 

fortunate in having a number of favourable conditions already in place.  

Areas with established community and interest groups, in relatively 

affluent neighbourhoods with access to professional expertise have 

managed to galvanise themselves into action.  Other areas, without these 

advantages, have found the challenges too great to overcome. 

A local authority that is (relatively) well-resourced and willing to allocate 

further resources will make a further positive contribution.  Where these 

factors have come together, progress towards neighbourhood planning 

has been the most significant. 

Neighbourhood planning clearly is only one tool and there are other 

planning tools that communities can use.  If the buzz around 

neighbourhood planning does anything, it can help communities 

understand the alternatives to a neighbourhood plan and the value of the 

[borough] local development plan itself. 

The idea of involving the community in planning is not new.  

“Neighbourhood planning has been going on as long as I can remember…  

We have developed… about 180 community and civic groups across the 

capital in a network for engagement with their local councils for them to 

be involved in decision-making and for those decisions to be in their best 

interests. [So] we have been doing neighbourhood planning for 25 

years.”
27

 

A number of commentators argue that there are alternative ways of 

securing community involvement in planning and achieving the same 

outcome as envisaged by the Localism Act.   

Page 86



  

 

These include: 

• Better public engagement with the borough’s own Local Development 

Frameworks. 

• Area Action Plans that form part of the Local Plan, have statutory 

status and avoid the cost associated with a local referendum. 

• Community networks that link several groups across a wider area to 

develop policy for regeneration and growth.
28

 

• Parish councils are the lowest or first tier of local government – and 

the first one in London for 35 years was established in 2013 – only 

three years after residents first considered the idea of a community 

council. 

Neighbourhood planning is not a legal requirement but a right which 

communities can choose to exercise.  Some communities are deciding 

that they could achieve the outcomes they want to see through other 

planning routes, such as incorporating their proposals for the 

neighbourhood into the Local Plan, or through other planning 

mechanisms such as Local Development Orders and supplementary 

planning documents.  

Neighbourhood planning – what next? 

Despite the slow progress, and the undoubted additional challenges for 

neighbourhood planning in London, the idea of localism in planning is one 

we have supported.  By allowing people involvement in the process of 

deciding local priorities they can have a say in shaping the place where 

they live and work. 

This is not to say that the more established and conventional pathways to 

local planning have failed.  The role of local councillors and the formal 

borough wide local plan will continue to be the main forces that shape 

neighbourhoods.   

As this report shows, there may not be much measurable progress to 

date but there are signs that the renewed focus on neighbourhood 

planning that the Localism Act stimulated is inducing a lot of 

neighbourhood planning activity.  “It may not lead to an end-product 

neighbourhood development plan, but that does not mean that it is not 

worth doing, if it raises the issues and get communities and 

representatives talking to authorities more effectively.”
29

   

This is the reason we believe neighbourhood planning should be 

encouraged in London and we are keen to find out how we can help 

Page 87



  

 

foster its spread across the city.  The idea of neighbourhood planning is a 

positive one but the lack of progress in giving local people real influence 

means that the policy is in need of a refresh.   

At the end of this report we ask a number of questions designed to assist 

the process of neighbourhood planning in London. 

 

 

  

Page 88



  

 

The Community Right to Bid - 

Assets of Community Value 

The Localism Act also introduced new rights for individuals and 

communities to take over community assets through the Community 

Right to Bid.
30

   

The Community Right to Bid (Assets of Community Value in legislation) 

came into force in September 2012 and allows communities to nominate 

buildings or land for listing by the local authority as an asset of 

community value (ACV).  When a listed asset comes to be sold, a 

moratorium on the sale (of up to six months) may be invoked, providing 

local community groups with a better chance to raise finance, develop a 

business plan and to make a bid to buy the asset on the open market. 

The Right to Bid aims to keep valued land and buildings in community use 

by giving local people the chance to bid to buy them, if and when they 

come onto the market.  If something on the list is offered for sale, the 

Right is triggered and communities have up to six months to prepare a bid 

to compete to buy it. 

Community Assets – what are they and… 

Community assets, in the broadest sense, are buildings and pieces of land 

that are an essential part of the social fabric of the area.  The Localism 

Act’s Community Right to Bid legislative definition is that a building or 

piece of land will be deemed to have community value only if: 

• The use of the land or building currently, or in the recent past, furthers 

the social well-being or cultural, recreational or sporting interests of 

the local community.  

• This use (as described above) of the building will continue to further 

the social well-being or interests of the local community.  

• The use of the building or land must not be deemed ‘ancillary’, i.e. of 

secondary purpose. This means that the use of the land or building to 

further social well-being or interests of the community must be its 

principal use. 

• Legislation only permits community or voluntary groups to nominate 

potential assets - local authorities and public bodies are prevented 

from doing so. 

 

Page 89



  

 

…what is the current picture? 

The use of this part of the Localism Act appears to be more widespread 

across London than the provisions that enable neighbourhood planning.  

Of course the process is simpler and, perhaps, reflects something that is 

more tangible to local people. 

In September 2013 (one year after the right came into force) there were 

27 assets listed in London in 12 boroughs.  By May 2014 this list had 

grown to 66 assets in 16 boroughs, and by October this had risen to 100 

in 22 London boroughs. 

Date Listed 

Assets 

Listed Assets Boroughs 

with 

registers of 

community 

assets 

September 

2013 

27 · Pubs (14) 

· Community halls (5) 

· Sporting/recreational facilities (4) 

· Library (1) 

· Nursery (1) 

· Open space (1) 

· Local shop (1) 

12 

May 2014 66 · Pubs (30) 

· Community halls (13) 

· Sporting/recreational facilities (8) 

· Library (4) 

· Nursery (2) 

· Open space (3) 

· Allotment (1) 

· Education facility (1) 

· Cinema (1) 

· Local shop (1) 

· Police Station (1) 

· Public square (1) 

16 

October 

2014 

100 · Pubs (36) 

· Community halls (29) 

· Sporting/recreational facilities (10) 

· Library (6) 

· Nursery (2) 

· Open space (10) 

· Cinema/bingo/theatre (4) 

· Other (3) 

22* 

 

*Data from 

28 of 33 

boroughs 

 

Page 90



  

 

Community assets – an evaluation  

The process by which assets are listed has been described as a ‘seesaw’.  

The first part is weighted towards the organisation nominating and there 

is no right of reply for the owner to object to the proposal as an asset of 

community value.  However, once it is listed, the process then swings the 

other way and is very much in favour of the owner.  They have the right 

to request a review; they have the right to take it to tribunal.
31

  

This asymmetry can be frustrating, for both owners and community, as 

they are unable to be involved at every stage of the often long process, 

when time for producing business cases and raising finance is of the 

essence.   

Speeding up a decision to sell or change use 

Once something is listed it may then become a material consideration in 

planning applications.  Owners are therefore very keen for things not to 

be listed in the first place and there is a danger of forcing through a sale 

or change of use prior to the listing process.  “The six-month moratorium 

buys time for the community, but there may be a risk that the owner 

could just sit out that period of time and then proceed exactly as he or 

she planned.”
32

  

Consistency of the listing process 

At the end of 2013, some of the boroughs still did not have a listing 

process in place and this was delaying registration of assets. 

Nominations for assets must come from the community itself, from a 

voluntary or community body with a local connection.
33

  Some boroughs 

are interpreting the regulations in different ways: “some of the boroughs 

are saying [the nominating group] has to be rather like a neighbourhood 

forum.  It has to have 21 representatives and they have to be 

representatives of all interests in the area where that asset is of value to 

the community.  Others are saying that the [group] can be a charity, so if 

a community group is a registered charity, then that group is enough and 

it can proceed to complete the paperwork.”
34 

 

Boroughs have different interpretations of what constitutes an asset of 

community value.  In Merton no asset nominations have been accepted 

despite eight having been submitted.  A variety of reasons have been 

given, such as a pub “has not furthered the social well-being or social 

interests of the local community in the recent past and realistically will 

not do so again in the next five years.”  This compares with many other 

boroughs that have accepted pubs as assets.  Now, only just ahead of 

Page 91



  

 

community halls, the largest type of asset listed to date in London, are 

pubs.   

“It is often not as clear-cut as it might be.  Some things are quite 

obviously assets of community value, but even with something like a pub 

it can be difficult to determine whether it is an asset of community 

value.”
35 

 

The Ivy House Pub 
The Ivy House in Nunhead is London's first co-operatively owned pub, 

the first pub to be listed as an Asset of Community Value, and the first 

building in the UK to be bought for the community under the provisions 

of the Localism Act.  

The Ivy House was a popular local pub when its tenants were given one 

week's notice to quit by Enterprise Inns in April 2012.  The building was 

boarded up and advertised for sale with vacant possession.  A group of 

local residents successfully applied to Southwark Council to have the 

pub listed as an asset of community value. 

According to the lead campaigner, Tessa Blunden, “Listing the pub 

under the Localism Act was the key to our success in buying the Ivy 

House.  The six-month moratorium triggered by the listing bought us 

the time we needed to prepare a bid.”
36 

  

Once the group had secured the asset of community value status, they 

were referred to Locality, a network for community-led organisations, 

which directed them to a number of organisations to help provide 

finance, business development advice or other support.  The group 

raised £1 million through a mixture of loan and grant finance and 

negotiated with the vendor to buy the building for £810,000 in March 

2013.  The pub re-opened in August 2013. 

 

 

Skill sets and capacity of the local community 

Successfully applying for, and getting an asset listed, is the first step in the 

process.  Purchase of the asset requires business planning, fund raising 

and management skills but also more practical inputs to physically repair 

and maintain the asset. 

 “It is extremely hard work. It is very, very difficult… and you have to be 

very careful not to underestimate that and be prepared for it to be very 

Page 92



  

 

difficult.  However similarly, do not underestimate the resources within 

your community.”
37

 

Valuable support is provided by organisations like Locality and the 

Plunkett Foundation that provide assistance with business planning, 

overcoming legal issues and some funding.   

The Mayor might assist in the process as this aspect of the localism 

agenda seems to fit perfectly with his policy of creating sustainable 

communities.  The Mayor has Supplementary Planning Guidance on 

creating sustainable communities and it has been suggested that he 

modify it to extend the guidance to deal with the registration of assets.
38

 

The Mayor could also provide advice on how local authorities should 

carry out the internal review process and encouraging some consistency 

among boroughs. 

Community assets in a global city 

As with neighbourhood planning, the idea of nominating assets of 

community value seems to have originated with more rural communities 

in mind – protecting the village pub or local shop that might be the only 

asset locally.  In London, however, the principle may have been stretched 

to the limit.   

In March 2013, The Southbank Centre unveiled designs for a £120 million 

redevelopment including the plan to transform the iconic Southbank 

Undercroft skate park into retail units.  

Long Live Southbank was formed to protecting the Undercroft in its 

current form – “believing its cultural and historical status to be 

irreplaceable and that its unique architecture and the vitality of the 

thriving community should be present for future generations.”
39

 

After much confusion in relation to the listing process, Long Live 

Southbank has been successful in securing the Undercroft’s as an Asset of 

Community Value by Lambeth Council. 

The Mayor spoke out in favour of the campaign, recognising the 

Undercroft as ‘part of the cultural fabric of London’ and stating that 

‘redevelopment should not be at the detriment of the skate park, which 

should be retained in its current position.’  

Page 93



  

 

In February 2014, the Southbank Centre withdrew its planning 

applications in order to seek alternative sources of funding for their 

redevelopment project.  

This drawn out, and high profile case, illustrates the challenges of 

applying legislation to community assets on prime central London 

riverside sites worth millions of pounds. 

Assets of Community Value – what next? 

Every neighbourhood is home to buildings or amenities that play a vital 

role in local life.  “Local life would not be the same without them, and if 

they are closed or sold into private use, it can be a real loss to the 

community.”
40

 

As with neighbourhood planning, the ability to register a valued building 

or amenity as a community asset allows local people the time to organise 

themselves to try to keep that asset in public use and part of local life.  

For this reason we support the chance this gives local people to protect 

what they see as important parts of their communities and want to see 

the power this gives used as widely as possible.   

 

Page 94



  

 

The way forward – what next? 

The Planning Committee agrees that the idea of neighbourhood planning 

is a positive one but the lack of progress in giving local people real 

influence means that the policy is in need of a refresh.   

The Committee is also keen to engage with Londoners to understand how 

we can help communities across the city use the legislation to protect 

valued community assets and how, in the first instance the challenges to 

registering an asset can be addressed. 

This report provides an opportunity to start a conversation with 

stakeholders to find out how these parts of the Localism agenda can be 

progressed in the capital – and in particular if Mayoral involvement could 

help support neighbourhood planning and expand London’s list of 

registered community assets. 

Views are sought on the following questions in relation to 
neighbourhood planning in London 

 
Why is interest so limited? 

• Are the requirements for designating neighbourhoods, in terms of 

boundaries, membership and competing interests, simply unworkable 

in London?   

• How can we overcome the barriers to getting a forum recognised? 

Why is interest so concentrated? 

• Do affluent communities with access to professional expertise to drive 

the formation of neighbourhood forums have an advantage over those 

with less capacity or history of community organisation? 

Why is progress so slow? 

• To what extent are financial considerations and the budget pressures 

on local authorities slowing down the progress of neighbourhood 

planning in London? 

Is enough support being given? 

• Would greater promotion for neighbourhood planning in London’s 

opportunity areas both further the aims of localism and regeneration 

and boost a sense of legitimacy and support in these areas? 

 

Page 95



  

 

Views are sought on the following questions in relation to 
assets of community value in London 

 
Are boroughs interpreting the legislation consistently in London? 

• Why are there so few listed assets in some boroughs?   

• Are boroughs interpreting the legislation consistently? 

Can assets of London-wide importance be covered by the guidance? 

• Given London’s city wide communities, is the legislation supportive of 

recognising assets on the basis of communities of interest rather than 

communities of locality? 

If you would like to respond to these questions, or to provide comments 

on this report, please send your views by 30 January 2015.   

You can email your responses to scrutiny@london.gov.uk 

Written responses should be sent to: 

The Scrutiny Team 

London Assembly 

PP10 

City Hall 

The Queen’s Walk 

London 

SE1 2AA 

 

 

 
 

Page 96



  

 

Endnotes 

                                                                 
1
 Coalition Agreement, May 2010 

2
 The first review of community involvement in planning culminated with the publication 

of a report on the role of neighbourhood plans in February 2012 

http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/NBH%20Planning_v3%20AB.pdf   The 

Committee followed this up in October 2013 with a review of the progress in London 

towards establishing neighbourhood planning 

http://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s29408/13-10-10-Neighbourhood-

Planning.pdf and how provisions in the Localism Act that allow the listing of community 

assets are being used http://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s29409/13-

10-10%20Community%20Assets%20Report.pdf 

3
 Minister for Decentralisation, November 2010 

https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/participation-in-planning 

4
 http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/neighbourhood-

planning/what-is-neighbourhood-planning/ 

5
 Beyond consultation: The role of neighbourhood plans in supporting local involvement 

in planning, February 2012 

http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/NBH%20Planning_v3%20AB.pdf    

6
 Kit Malthouse AM and Rosemarie MacQueen, Strategic Director, Westminster City 

Council, Planning Committee, 10 October 2013 

7
 http://www.londoncommunications.co.uk/cms/wp-

content/uploads/2013/02/LdnNForum.Map_.13.02.12.pdf 

8
 Rosemarie MacQueen, Strategic Director, Westminster City Council, Planning 

Committee, 10 October 2013 

9
 Neighbourhood forum bid is thwarted by local opposition 

http://www.planningresource.co.uk/article/1230304/neighbourhood-forum-bid-

thwarted-local-opposition 

10
 Rosemarie MacQueen, Strategic Director, Westminster City Council, Planning 

Committee, 10 October 2013 

11
 Peter Eversden, Chairman, London Forum of Amenity and Civic Societies, Planning 

Committee, 10 October 2013 

12
 Barking and Dagenham, Bromley, City of London, Croydon, Greenwich, Harrow, 

Havering, Kingston upon Thames, Merton, Newham, Redbridge and Wandsworth 

13
 https://www.westminster.gov.uk/neighbourhood-planning-news 

14
 Peter Eversden, Chairman, London Forum of Amenity and Civic Societies, Planning 

Committee, 10 October 2013 

15
 Ibid 

16
 Rosemarie MacQueen, Strategic Director, Westminster City Council, Planning 

Committee, 10 October 2013 

Page 97



  

 

                                                                                                                                                                
17

 Beyond consultation: The role of neighbourhood plans in supporting local involvement 

in planning, February 2012 

http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/NBH%20Planning_v3%20AB.pdf    

18
 http://www.rbkc.gov.uk/planningandconservation/neighbourhoodplanning/markham

square.aspx 

19
 Planning Committee, 10 October 2013 

20
 Rosemarie MacQueen, City of Westminster 

http://www.planningresource.co.uk/article/1164244/council-inundated-

neighbourhood-planning-applications 

21
  http://www.brent.gov.uk/media/4599231/The%20Unity%20Neighbourhood%20Foru

m%20Designation%20Report.pdf 

22
 Peter Eversden, Chairman, London Forum of Amenity and Civic Societies, Planning 

Committee, 10 October 2013 

23
 Rosemarie MacQueen, Strategic Director, Westminster City Council, Planning 

Committee, 10 October 2013 

24
 Three neighbourhood forums cross borough boundaries – Highgate, Kings Cross and 

East Shoredtch 

25
 Peter Eversden, Chairman, London Forum of Amenity and Civic Societies, Planning 

Committee, 10 October 2013 

26
 Technical consultation on planning, DCLG, July 2014 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/3395

28/Technical_consultation_on_planning.pdf 

27
 Peter Eversden, Chairman, London Forum of Amenity and Civic Societies, Planning 

Committee, 10 October 2013 

28
 For example the Our Tottenham network that brings together a number of community 

groups working together to formulate alternative plans for their area of north London 

29
 Gavin Parker, Royal Town Planning Institute, Planning Committee, 10 October 2013 

30
 The other main new rights are Community Right to Challenge and Community Right to 

Build 

31
 Mike Webb, London Borough of Camden, Planning Committee, 10 October 2013 

32
 Tessa Blunden, The Ivy House community pub, Planning Committee, 10 October 2013 

33
 http://mycommunityrights.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2012/04/Step-3-read-

more.pdf 

34
 Peter Eversden, Chairman, London Forum of Amenity and Civic Societies, Planning 

Committee, 10 October 2013 

35
 Mike Webb, London Borough of Camden, Planning Committee, 10 October 2013 

36
 http://www.theguardian.com/social-enterprise-network/2013/mar/28/localism-act-

london-cooperative-pub  

37
 Tessa Blunden, The Ivy House community pub, Planning Committee, 10 October 2013 

38
 Peter Eversden, Chairman, London Forum of Amenity and Civic Societies, Planning 

Committee, 10 October 2013 

Page 98



  

 

                                                                                                                                                                
39

 Long live Southbank http://www.llsb.com/ 

40
  https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/595

9/1896534.pdf 

Page 99



  

 

Orders and translations 

How to order 

For further information on this report or to order a copy, please contact 

Paul Watling, Scrutiny Manager, on 0207 983 4393 or email: 

paul.watling@london.gov.uk 

See it for free on our website 

You can also view a copy of the report on the GLA website: 

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-

assembly/publications 

Large print, braille or translations 

If you, or someone you know, needs a copy of this report in large print or 

braille, or a copy of the summary and main findings in another language, 

then please call us on: 020 7983 4100 or email: 

assembly.translations@london.gov.uk. 

Chinese 

 

Hindi 

 

Vietnamese 

 

Bengali 

 

Greek 

 

Urdu 

 

Turkish 

 

Arabic 

 

Punjabi 

 

Gujarati 

 

 

  

Page 100



  

 

  

Page 101



  

 

 

Greater London Authority 

City Hall 

The Queen’s Walk 

More London 

London SE1 2AA 

Enquiries 020 7983 4100 

Minicom 020 7983 4458 

ISBN 978 1 84781 163 9 

www.london.gov.uk 

This publication is printed on recycled paper Page 102



 

                                                                  

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458


 

Subject:�Options
for

Growth�

Report
to:
 Planning
Committee



Report
of:

Executive
Director


This
report
will
be
considered
in
��




1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�background�information�for�a�discussion�with�invited�experts�to�establish�some�

of�the�key�issues�that�need�to�be�addressed
growth.�





2.
 Recommendations�


2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the
report
as
background
to
hearing
from

questions
to,
a
number
of
invited
experts
on
the
issues
to
be
considered


London’s
future
growth.








3.
 Background





3.1� In�early�January�2015�it�is�estimated�that

8.6�million.��Projections�suggest�that�between�2011�and�2050,�London�is�projected�to�grow�by�3.1�

million�or�37�per�cent.��London’s�population�will�reach�around�11.27�million�by�2050.

�

3.2� The�Further�Alterations�to�the�London�Plan�set�a�ten

but�outlines�an�annual�housing�need�of�

where,�and�how,�this�growth�should�take�place.

�
3.3�� English�planning�policy�has�for�the�last�20�years�promoted�more�sustainable�patterns�of�

development,�with�a�priority�to�make�better�use�of�previously
existing�towns�and�cities�as�the�focus�for�additional�housing.

�
3.4� The�Mayor’s�existing�approach�to�the�spatial�development�of�London�is�aligned�with�this�policy�

direction:�“growth�will�be�supported�and�managed�across�all�parts�of�London�to�ensure�it�takes�place�
within�the�current�boundaries�without�encroaching�on�the�Green�Belt,�or�on�London
open�spaces.”1�
�

                                                 
1�London�Plan�Policy�1.1�–�Delivering�the�strategic�vision�and�objectives�for�London

                                                                     

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


Options
for
Accommodating
London’s


Committee



Executive
Director
of
Secretariat
 Date:
22
January
2015



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public


sets�out�background�information�for�a�discussion�with�invited�experts�to�establish�some�
of�the�key�issues�that�need�to�be�addressed�in�terms�of�options�for�accommodating�London’s�future�

That
the
Committee
notes
the
report
as
background
to
hearing
from

a
number
of
invited
experts
on
the
issues
to
be
considered


it�is�estimated�that�London�will�surpass�its�previous�1939�population�peak�of�

8.6�million.��Projections�suggest�that�between�2011�and�2050,�London�is�projected�to�grow�by�3.1�

million�or�37�per�cent.��London’s�population�will�reach�around�11.27�million�by�2050.

r�Alterations�to�the�London�Plan�set�a�ten-year�housing�target�for�42,000�homes�a�year,�

but�outlines�an�annual�housing�need�of�at�least�49,000.��Increasingly�the�debate�has�focussed�on�

where,�and�how,�this�growth�should�take�place.�

olicy�has�for�the�last�20�years�promoted�more�sustainable�patterns�of�
development,�with�a�priority�to�make�better�use�of�previously-developed�(brownfield)
existing�towns�and�cities�as�the�focus�for�additional�housing.�

approach�to�the�spatial�development�of�London�is�aligned�with�this�policy�
direction:�“growth�will�be�supported�and�managed�across�all�parts�of�London�to�ensure�it�takes�place�
within�the�current�boundaries�without�encroaching�on�the�Green�Belt,�or�on�London

Delivering�the�strategic�vision�and�objectives�for�London�

 

ccommodating
London’s


22
January
2015�

sets�out�background�information�for�a�discussion�with�invited�experts�to�establish�some�
in�terms�of�options�for�accommodating�London’s�future�

That
the
Committee
notes
the
report
as
background
to
hearing
from,
and
putting


a
number
of
invited
experts
on
the
issues
to
be
considered
when
planning


surpass�its�previous�1939�population�peak�of�

8.6�million.��Projections�suggest�that�between�2011�and�2050,�London�is�projected�to�grow�by�3.1�

million�or�37�per�cent.��London’s�population�will�reach�around�11.27�million�by�2050.�

year�housing�target�for�42,000�homes�a�year,�

at�least�49,000.��Increasingly�the�debate�has�focussed�on�

olicy�has�for�the�last�20�years�promoted�more�sustainable�patterns�of�
(brownfield)�land�in�

approach�to�the�spatial�development�of�London�is�aligned�with�this�policy�
direction:�“growth�will�be�supported�and�managed�across�all�parts�of�London�to�ensure�it�takes�place�
within�the�current�boundaries�without�encroaching�on�the�Green�Belt,�or�on�London's�protected�

Agenda Item 6

Page 103



        

3.5� The�Mayor’s�draft�Infrastructure�Plan�confirms�the�intention�to�continue�this�approach�–�but�only�up�

until�20252�when�there�is�a�suggestion�the�large�reservoir�of�brownfield�land�within�the�capital�will�

begin�to�run�dry,�although�new�brownfield�sites�are�always�coming�forward�through�redevelopment.�

�
3.6� The�National�Planning�Policy�Framework�(NPPF)�published�in�March�2012�retains,�as�one�of�its�12�

core�planning�principles,�the�aim�of�encouraging�the�effective�use�of�land�by�reusing�land�that�has�
been�previously�developed�(brownfield�land).��It�further�supports�this�policy�by�noting�that�
“inappropriate�development�is,�by�definition,�harmful�to�the�Green�Belt�and�should�not�be�approved�
except�in�very�special�circumstances.”3�

�
3.7� However,�some�commentators�have�interpreted�the�NPPF�as�somewhat�relaxing�previous�policy:�“the�

NPPF�also�effectively�ends�the�previous�national�brownfield-first�policy,�and�local�authorities�will�
now�be�free�to�set�their�own�targets,�so�there�will�longer�be�a�national�target�for�new�homes�being�
provided�on�brownfield�land.”4�

�
3.8� The�CPRE�is�concerned�that�'brownfield�first'�development�is�no�longer�required�under�the�national�

planning�policy�framework�introduced�by�the�present�government�in�2012.”5�


3.9� The�recent�Lyons�review�noted�that�it�is�“clear�that�the�principle�of�brownfield�first�is�right�and�

should�continue�with�a�sequential�test�that�ensures�that�such�sites�are�considered�first�for�new�
development,�but�the�experiences�of�unintended�consequences�of�national�brownfield�policies�
illustrate�the�importance�of�a�more�tailored�approach�which�can�respond�to�local�circumstances�and�
address�the�particular�barriers�to�unlock�development�on�stalled�brownfield�sites.”6�

�

4.
 Issues
for
Consideration�


4.1� The�current�London�Plan�concludes�that�the�“only�prudent�course�is�to�plan�for�continued�growth”�

and�estimates�the�projected�increase�in�households�(and�by�implication�the�new�homes�required)�to�

be�980,000�in�the�25�years�to�2036.��

�

4.2� While�the�current�approach�(as�set�out�in�paragraph�3.4)�focusses�new�housing�on�brownfield�land�

within�London’s�boundaries,�a�range�of�options�exist�for�accommodating�growth�in�the�longer�term.��

These�may�be�characterised�as:�

• Maximising�London’s�brownfield�potential;


• Intensifying�suburban�development;


• Accommodating�growth�outside�of�London;�and,


• Greenfield�development.





Issues
for
discussion


4.4� Members�may�wish�to�use�this�meeting�to�discuss�a�number�of�themes,�for�example:�

• What�is�London’s�brownfield�land�capacity�and�how�can�this�be�maximised?�

• What�are�the�implications�for�suburban�intensification�and�how�can�this�be�achieved?�

                                                 
2�London�Infrastructure�Plan�2050,�a�consultation,�July�2014,�page�66�
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/London%20Infrastructure%20Plan%202050%20Consultation.pdf 
3
 National�Planning�Policy�Framework,�March�2012,�paragraph�87�
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf 
4�http://www.insidehousing.co.uk/inside-out/6516344.bloglead?tagcode=622%7Cbrownfield-first�
5�Removing�obstacles�to�brownfield�development,�CPRE,�September�2014���
6�Mobilising�across�the�nation�to�build�the�homes�our�children�need.��The�Lyons�Housing�Review,�October�2014�
http://www.yourbritain.org.uk/uploads/editor/files/The_Lyons_Housing_Review_2.pdf 

Page 104



        

• How,�and�should,�some�of�London’s�growth�be�accommodated�in�the�wider�South�East?�

• How�might�greenfield�sites�be�developed�sustainably�to�meet�the�demand�for�housing?�

• What�are�the�relative�advantages�and�disadvantages�of�pursuing�these�options?�

• Are�there�other�options�that�would�negate�the�need�to�build�on�London’s�green�spaces?�
�

Invited
guests


4.5� The�following�guests�have�confirmed�attendance�at�this�meeting:�

• Jonathan�Manns,�Director�of�Planning,�Colliers�International�

• Catriona�Riddell,�Director,�Catriona�Riddell�Associates�

• Marcel�Steward,�Environmental�Risk�and�Insurance�Consultant�

• Philipp�Rode,�Executive�Director,��LSE�Cities���

• A�representative�from�the�Campaign�for�the�Protection�of�Rural�England�

�

5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1 The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�



6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1 There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�to�the�GLA�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:

�
.None�
�
�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�

Contact�Officer:� Paul�Watling,�Scrutiny�Manager�
Telephone:� 020�7983�4393�

Email:� scrutiny@london.gov.uk�

�

�

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                  

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk

 

Subject:�Planning

2014/15�


Report
to:
 Planning
Committee



Report
of:

Executive
Director


This
report
will
be
considered

��




1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�the�Committee’s





2.
 Recommendations�


2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the
content
of
its
draft

2014/15,
as
set
out
in
this
report.




2.2 That
the
Committee
delegate
the
meeting
the
details
of
the
main
agenda
item
for
the
meeting
on
18
March





3.
 Background

�
3.1� The�Committee�receives�a�report�monitoring�the�progress�of�its�wo
�
3.2 The�Planning�Committee’s�remaining�

�
3.3 At�the�meeting�of�the�former�Business�Management�and�Administration�Committee�(predecessor�of

the�GLA�Oversight�Committee)�held�on�
committee�modified�its�approved�work�programme�and/or�number�of�meetings�in�response�to
topical�events,�and�an�ad�hoc�extra�meeting�was�called�for,�that�would�be�permitted�if�the�Members
of�the�committee�concerned�agreed;�if�two�or�more�Members�of�that�committee�did�not�agree�to�a
proposal�for�an�extra�meeting,�the�matter�would�be�referred�to�the�GLA�Oversight�Committee�for
determination.1�
�

4.
 Issues
for
Consideration
�


Future
workprogramme
items

4.1 At�the�beginning�of�the�Assembly�Year,�

items.��This�list�has�been�supplemented�by�additional�suggested�topics�as�the�year�has�progressed.�

The�items�that�now�form�the�long�list�of�potential�projects�i

                                                 
1�http://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s36184/Committee%20Timetable%202014

                                                                     

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


Planning
Committee
Work
Programme


Committee



Executive
Director
of
Secretariat
 Date:
22
January
2015



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public


Committee’s�work�programme�for�the�remainder�of�

notes
the
content
of
its
draft
work
programme
4/15,
as
set
out
in
this
report.


delegates
authority
to
the
Chair
and
Deputy
Chair
to
agree

the
details
of
the
main
agenda
item
for
the
meeting
on
18
March


The�Committee�receives�a�report�monitoring�the�progress�of�its�work�programme�at�each�meeting.

remaining�scheduled�meeting�for�the�year�2014/1

At�the�meeting�of�the�former�Business�Management�and�Administration�Committee�(predecessor�of
the�GLA�Oversight�Committee)�held�on�9�February�2005,�it�was�agreed�that,�if�during�the�year�a
committee�modified�its�approved�work�programme�and/or�number�of�meetings�in�response�to
topical�events,�and�an�ad�hoc�extra�meeting�was�called�for,�that�would�be�permitted�if�the�Members

ittee�concerned�agreed;�if�two�or�more�Members�of�that�committee�did�not�agree�to�a
proposal�for�an�extra�meeting,�the�matter�would�be�referred�to�the�GLA�Oversight�Committee�for

Issues
for
Consideration�


Future
workprogramme
items


At�the�beginning�of�the�Assembly�Year,�Members�suggested�a�number�of�topics�as�work

This�list�has�been�supplemented�by�additional�suggested�topics�as�the�year�has�progressed.�

now�form�the�long�list�of�potential�projects�include:�

http://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s36184/Committee%20Timetable%202014-

 

Committee
Work
Programme


22
January
2015�

�2014/15.�

programme
for
the
remainder
of


Deputy
Chair
to
agree
outside
of

the
details
of
the
main
agenda
item
for
the
meeting
on
18
March
2015.


rk�programme�at�each�meeting.�

/15�is�18�March�2015.� �

At�the�meeting�of�the�former�Business�Management�and�Administration�Committee�(predecessor�of�
9�February�2005,�it�was�agreed�that,�if�during�the�year�a�

committee�modified�its�approved�work�programme�and/or�number�of�meetings�in�response�to�
topical�events,�and�an�ad�hoc�extra�meeting�was�called�for,�that�would�be�permitted�if�the�Members�

ittee�concerned�agreed;�if�two�or�more�Members�of�that�committee�did�not�agree�to�a�
proposal�for�an�extra�meeting,�the�matter�would�be�referred�to�the�GLA�Oversight�Committee�for�

number�of�topics�as�work�programme�

This�list�has�been�supplemented�by�additional�suggested�topics�as�the�year�has�progressed.���

-15.pdf�

Agenda Item 7

Page 107



        

• GLA
land
and
property
assets�

• London’s
mixed
and
balanced
communities�

• Tall
buildings
and
London’s
skyline
�

• Estate
regeneration�

• Social
infrastructure
provision�
�

4.2� Members�are�recommended�to�delegate�authority�to�the�Chair�and�Deputy�Chair�to�agree�the�details�
of�the�main�agenda�item�for�the�meeting�on�18�March�2015.�
�


 Recently
completed
work�

4.3 A�report�elsewhere�on�this�agenda�details�the�Committee’s�recently�published�report�updating�the�
progress�of�the�Localism�agenda�in�London.�





5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1 The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�





6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1 There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�to�the�GLA�arising�from�this�report.�

�
List
of
appendices
to
this
report:
none

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�

None�

Contact�Officer:� Paul�Watling,�Scrutiny�Manager�

�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4393�
�

Email:� scrutiny@london.gov.uk�

�

�
�

Page 108


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Appendix minutes

	4 Summary List of Actions
	5 Localism in London
	15-01-22-Appendix 1-Final-Localism-Report

	6 Options for Accommodating London's Growth
	7 Planning Committee Work Programme 2014/15

